
Agenda - Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus
Lleoliad:
Ystafell Bwyllgora 3 - Senedd
Dyddiad: Dydd Mawrth, 15 Medi 2015
Amser: 09.00

I gael rhagor o wybodaeth cysylltwch a:
Fay Buckle
Clerc y Pwyllgor
0300 200 6565 
SeneddArchwilio@Cynulliad.Cymru

 

1 Cyflwyniadau, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon
(09:00)  

2 Papurau i’w nodi
(09:05-09:35) (Tudalennau 1 - 2) 

Buddsoddiad Llywodraeth Cymru yn Isadeiledd Band Eang y Genhedlaeth Nesaf: 
Llythyr gan Llywodraeth Cymru (17 Gorffennaf 2015)

(Tudalennau 3 - 6) 
Fframwaith Cenedlaethol ar gyfer Gofal Iechyd : Llythyr gan Llywodraeth Cymru 
(21 Gorffennaf2015)

(Tudalennau 7 - 17) 
Glastir: Llythyr gan Llywodraeth Cymru (31 Gorffennaf 2015)

(Tudalennau 18 - 54) 
Gofal heb ei drefnu: Llythyr gan Llywodraeth Cymru (7 Awst 2015)

(Tudalennau 55 - 62) 
Trefniadau Llywodraethu Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Betsi Cadwaladr: Llythyr gan 
Llywodraeth Cymru (1 Medi 2015)

(Tudalennau 63 - 64) 

3 Adroddiad Blynyddol y Bwrdd Cynghori ar Adroddiadau Ariannol 
2014-2015
(09:35-09:50) (Tudalennau 65 - 89) 

PAC(4)-22-15 Papur 1

------------------------Pecyn dogfennau cyhoeddus ------------------------



4 Ymchwiliad i werth am arian Buddsoddi mewn Traffyrdd a 
Chefnffyrdd: Ystyried ymateb Llywodraeth Cymru
(09:50-10:10) (Tudalennau 90 - 99) 

PAC(4)-22-15 Papur 2
PAC(4)-22-15 Papur 3

5 Cynnig o dan Reol Sefydlog 17.42 i benderfynu gwahardd y 
cyhoedd o’r cyfarfod ar gyfer y busnes canlynol:
(10:10)  

Eitem 6 

6 Craffu ar Gyfrifon 2014-15
(10:10-11:00)  



Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus

Lleoliad: Ystafell Bwyllgora 3 - Senedd

Dyddiad: Dydd Mawrth, 14 Gorffennaf 2015

Amser: 09.03 - 11.05

Cofnodion Cryno:
Preifat

Aelodau’r Cynulliad: Darren Millar AC (Cadeirydd)
Mohammad Asghar (Oscar) AC
Jocelyn Davies AC
Mike Hedges AC
Alun Ffred Jones AC
Sandy Mewies AC
Julie Morgan AC
Jenny Rathbone AC
Aled Roberts AC

Tystion:

Staff y Pwyllgor: Michael Kay (Clerc)
Claire Griffiths (Dirprwy Glerc)
Joanest Varney-Jackson (Cynghorydd Cyfreithiol)
Hannah Johnson (Ymchwilydd)
Alistair McQuaid (Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru)
Nick Selwyn (Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru)
Mike Usher (Swyddfa Archwilio Cymru)
Huw Vaughan Thomas (Archwilydd Cyffredinol Cymru)
Nick Tyldesley (Prisiwr Dosbarth)

Tudalen y pecyn 1

Eitem 2



1 Cyflwyniadau, ymddiheuriadau a dirprwyon 
1.1 Croesawodd y Cadeirydd yr Aelodau i’r cyfarfod.

1.2 Esgusododd Jocelyn Davies ei hun ar gyfer Eitem 3 o dan Reol Sefydlog 18.8. 
Dirprwyodd Alun Ffred Jones.

2 Papurau i’w nodi 
2.1 Cafodd y papurau eu nodi.
2.2 Cytunodd y Clerc i ymateb i Dr Andrew Goodall (eitem 2.1) yn gofyn am eglurder 
ffeithiol ynglŷn â chwestiwn Aled Roberts ar agweddau gweithredol ar y gwasanaeth y 
tu allan i oriau (tudalen 13 o'r adroddiad BIPBC). 
 

2.1Trefniadau Llywodraethu Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Betsi Cadwaladr: Llythyr gan 
Andrew Goodall (30 Mehefin 2014) 

2.2Consortia Addysg Rhanbarthol: Ymateb Llywodraeth Cymru i Adroddiad Archwilydd 
Cyffredinol Cymru 

2.3Y rhaglen waith: Llythyr gan y Dirprwy Andrew Lewis, Cadeirydd, Pwyllgor Cyfrifon 
Cyhoeddus, Taleithiau Jersey (2 Gorffennaf 2015) 

3 Cronfa Buddsoddi Cymru mewn Adfywio: Gwybodaeth gan Archwilydd 
Cyffredinol Cymru 
3.1 Rhoddodd Archwilydd Cyffredinol Cymru wybodaeth i'r Pwyllgor am ei adroddiad 
sydd ar y gweill (i'w gyhoeddi ar 15 Gorffennaf) ar Gronfa Buddsoddi Cymru mewn 
Adfywio (RIFW). 

4 Diwygio Lles: Trafod yr adroddiad drafft 
4.1 Trafododd yr Aelodau yr adroddiad drafft, a chytunwyd arno, yn amodol ar rai mân 
newidiadau. Caiff yr adroddiad ei gyhoeddi yn ddiweddarach y mis hwn.

Tudalen y pecyn 2



Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus / Public Accounts Committee
PAC(4)-22-15 PTN1

Deputy Director, ICT Infrastructure
Pennaeth Cyflenwi Seilwaith TGCh

Department for Economy, Science and Transport
Yr Adran Economi, Gwyddoniaeth a Thrafnidiaeth

Welsh Government : Llywodraeth Cymru
First Floor, Southgate House, Wood Street, Cardiff, CF10 1EW

simon.jones@wales.gsi.gov.uk
T: +44 (0) 300 025 8854 
M: +44 (0) 7795 334 340

                            

Eich cyf/Your ref 
Ein cyf/Our ref :  

 

Darren Millar AM
Chair
Public Accounts Committee

17 July 2015

Dear Mr Millar

Public Accounts Committee - Welsh Government Investment in Next Generation 
Broadband Infrastructure

Further to my appearance before your committee on 7 July please find attached the 
additional information requested by the Committee.

The Welsh Government accepts all of the recommendations in the Wales Audit Office 
report.  James Price’s letter of 1 July sets out the Welsh Government position on the 
recommendations.  The only detail to add is that in her oral statement of 7 July, the Deputy 
Minster for Skills and Technology outlined a take-up target of 50 per cent by 2024 and that 
BT have indicated that the Fibre on Demand product will be available to the majority of 
premises by the end of the summer.

Yours sincerely

Tudalen y pecyn 3

Eitem 2.1

mailto:simon.jones@wales.gsi.gov.uk


Public Accounts Committee meeting 7 July 2015

Further information requested.

A list of locations where issues of access have been difficult for Openreach.

Discussions with landowners on wayleave issues are a normal part of BT Openreach day to 
day activities and in the majority of cases a satisfactory agreement is reached. While there 
have been issues in connection with wayleaves during the project at present there are no 
wayleave issues that have been contractually notified by BT as insurmountable.  There are 
of course a small number of areas where negotiations have been protracted but we would 
not want to name these until all avenues to find a resolution have been exhausted.  This 
would be at the point where BT formally advise Welsh Government that they are unable to 
find a solution and therefore that the affected premises would need to be de-scoped from 
the contract.

What the Welsh Government expects to be delivered as part of the £1.7m marketing 
budget and how it is used on a geographical basis.

The delivery of communications and marketing activity is set out in a communications and 
engagement strategy agreed between Welsh Government and BT.  

The strategy was reviewed in the summer of 2014 and subsequently revised to reflect 
changing priorities. The information below is based on the revised strategy.

The aims, objectives and strategy set out are as follows:

Aim

To support the success of the Superfast Cymru programme through the provision of timely, 
accurate and credible communications and engagement activity.

Objectives

 Raise awareness of Superfast Cymru among key audiences by providing up to date and 
credible information about the programme, the roll-out process and timescales.

 Engage regularly with key stakeholders so they are well informed and champion the 
project.

 Encourage take-up of fibre broadband in the Superfast Cymru intervention area by 
highlighting the benefits that the project will bring to households in Wales.

 Outline the benefits to Wales and Welsh society, economically and socially of the 
investment being made in superfast broadband.

 Highlight the benefits to third and public sector organisations of using and delivering 
services through fast fibre.

The Strategy

To deploy a range of communications and engagement activities to inform households and, 
third and public sector bodies about the programme, highlight the benefits it will bring to 
them and to Wales and engage with them to secure their support where necessary.  

Action

The activity required to deliver the strategy is broadly as follows:

Tudalen y pecyn 4



 Marketing 
 Press and PR 
 Internal communications 
 Local and business advertising
 Stakeholder engagement 

Specific activity includes.

 Superfast Cymru website
 Social media – twitter and Facebook
 Press and PR activity
 Marketing collateral – door drops, posters, leaflets, information packs
 Bespoke branding for Superfast Cymru and branding materials – cabinet stickers, 

cabinet wraps, van livery
 Local authority engagement
 Engagement activity – third sector bodies, community leaders, local events
 Social media advertising
 Radio advertising
 Local ambient advertising
 Press advertising
 Major event attendance – Royal Welsh Show, Anglesey Show, Pembrokeshire Show 

and Caerphilly Big Cheese
 Event sponsorship

Geographic spread

It is difficult to split the budget geographically as a number of key items are pan Wales or 
pan regional for example major press advertising and radio advertising, some press and PR 
activity.

However, under the current strategy the activity tracks the deployment; local activity begins 
in an area just ahead of deployment and then continues once deployment is in place. The 
communications activity is designed to be a repeatable process across every new area with 
essentially the same activity broadly taking place in every area and hence the budget is in 
essence spread relatively evenly across the country.

Rugby

With regards to the rugby related activity, advertising hoardings at games, shirt sponsorship 
and the use of regional rugby players in PR activity, this is free to the project as a result of 
the relationship between the project and BT Sport.  A small amount of funding has been 
used on supporting PR activity.

Permitted development rights – telecommunications cabinets

Telecommunications cabinets are covered by permitted development rights. in November 
2014 permitted development rights were liberalised in respect of fixed broadband apparatus 
on article 1(5) land (National Parks and AONBs) so that cabinets are no longer subject to 
prior approval by local authorities and are permitted subject to the developer giving one 
month’s notice to Natural Resources Wales and the National Park Authority; and subject to 
their appearance.

Roll out of Fibre-on-Demand. 

Tudalen y pecyn 5



The Deputy Minister for Skills and Technology highlighted that through negotiations with BT 
in Wales “Fibre on Demand” will be available across the majority of the country.  This is a 
business-focussed ultrafast broadband technology, which will be available by the end of 
summer 2015 to the majority of premises in Wales.

Location of where additional contracts will be required following the anticipated 
announcement on ‘Infill Stage 2’

Those areas that will not be covered by the Superfast Cymru project, including the extra 
premises announced by the Deputy Minister for Skills and Technology on 7 July, or 
commercial roll-outs (taken together those previously described as falling within infill stage 
2) will be addressed through three routes. The new Access Broadband Cymru scheme 
highlighted by the Deputy Minister, community dig projects where communities use a 
combination of public and private sector support to develop local schemes or through re-
investment of clawback funding secured through the contract. 

As highlighted at the committee meeting on 7 July we do not yet know with absolute 
certainty where those premises will be.  Until we have that certainty it could be potentially 
misleading to release any information about where those premises may be.

Tudalen y pecyn 6



 

Yr Adran Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol  
Cyfarwyddwr Cyffredinol a Prif Weithredwr, GIG Cymru 
 
Department for Health and Social Services  
Director General and Chief Executive, NHS Wales 
 

 

 

 

Parc Cathays ● Cathays Park 
Caerdydd ● Cardiff 

CF10 3NQ  

 

Ffôn  ● Tel 02920 801182/1144 

Andrew.Goodall@wales.gsi.gov.uk 
 

Gwefan ● website: www.wales.gov.uk 

 

 
 
 
Darren Millar AM 
Chair of the Public Accounts Committee 
National Assembly for Wales. 
 
 

Our Ref: AG/SV 
  

21 July 2015 
 
Dear Darren 
 
Implementation of the Framework for Continuing NHS Healthcare in Wales 
 
Thank you for your letter of 9 July in which you requested further detail on some of the 
recommendations contained in the Public Accounts Committees follow-up report on the 
implementation of the National Framework for Continuing NHS Healthcare (CHC). I have 
provided an update in relation to the points you raise below. I have also attached a separate 
document, outlining a wider update on progress. 
 
Recommendation 1 - Arrangement for annual audit sample. 
I can confirm the annual audit samples will be undertaken by a central team. Those samples 
are due in September 2015 and on an annual basis thereafter. The audits are expected to 
take one month to complete.  
 
Recommendation 3 - Transfer of retrospective claims to the National Project 
Health Boards have moved the Phase 2 and 3 backlog to the Powys Project, with only a 
small remainder of Phase 2 cases already in progress remaining with each health board. 
This approach enables health boards to focus on getting it right first time, provide timely 
administration of the appeals process for current cases and a prompt assessment of new 
retrospective claims submitted under the Framework. 
 
Recommendation 7 - Distribution of Public Information leaflets 
A key aim of the review of the CHC Framework was to make the process more user-friendly 
and focused on the needs of the individual. We have developed and distributed a range of 
public information leaflets, which are also available in easy read formats. Additional copies 
of the public information leaflet are being sent to each health board for distribution to care 
homes, GP surgeries and frontline services (e.g. one stop shops) and social care 
professionals.  
 
We will also be undertaking further work over the summer. This will include a poster on 
CHC to raise awareness of the service. We will also redevelop the Complex Care 

Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus / Public Accounts Committee 
PAC(4)-22-15 PTN2

Tudalen y pecyn 7

Eitem 2.2

mailto:Simon.Dean@wales.gsi.gov.uk
../../../../../../../../www.wales.gov.uk


Information and Support Site to provide more information for the public and make it more 
available. At the same time we will review the need to issue further information when there 
is a need to reprint further leaflets.  
 
Recommendation 8 - Mandatory guidance on availability of information 
We developed and are about to issue a Welsh Health Circular for health boards, setting out 
where such material should be distributed. It will be displayed on the Welsh Government 
and the NHS website as well as notified directly to health boards and social care providers.  
The guidance directs health boards to undertake best practice by distributing to an enclosed 
standard distribution list as a minimum. It places the onus on health boards to ensure the 
material is provided to individuals so it is widely available. This includes prior to admittance 
to a care home and how the Decision Support Tool is applied to individuals being assessed 
for CHC. We have also asked health boards to report back quarterly on numbers of 
publications placed. 
 
To underpin our work we established clear governance and accountability mechanisms, 
providing us with greater assurance. Delivery of CHC is now monitored by the National 
Complex Care Board which in turn is advised by practitioners and experts from a National 
Stakeholder Reference Group and National Complex Care Performance and Operations 
Group. I have attached further details of these arrangements, together with an update of 
progress to date in the attached document. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 

 
 
Dr Andrew Goodall 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 8



Response to the Public Accounts Committee Report on Implementation of the 
National Framework for Continuing NHS Healthcare Update  
 
Recommendation 1 – The Committee recommends that, to ensure confidence 
in the quality and consistency of decisions on continuing healthcare funding 
awards, the annual audit samples of all Health Boards should be undertaken 
independently, by the same team. 
 

1. The annual audit samples (due in September 2015 and on an annual basis 
thereafter) will be undertaken by a central team. The audits are expected to 
take one month to complete.  

 
Recommendation 2 – The Welsh Government should provide the Committee 
with details of the outcomes and findings from the on-going review of cases 
with learning disabilities, which is concluding in March 2015. 
 

2. Although Welsh Government requested health boards scope their work to 
ascertain whether CHC had been appropriately considered, there were some 
limitations arising as a result of this exercise. The specialist nature of learning 
disability services means the expert pool of staff that could be identified to 
undertake this work is very limited. A full review of all cases would take 
several months to complete and would require an expert health and social 
care team. To do this in the short term would have meant diverting staff away 
from their current roles, potentially leading to risks to those in receipt of 
services.  
 

3. To provide assurance primary health needs are considered both now and 
going forward, we will fully consider eligibility at the next planned review date. 
In the meantime, we commissioned health boards to undertake a dip sampling 
exercise of 50 – 100 cases reviewed to date. These focussed on joint-funded 
learning disability care and support arrangements but on a wider sample than 
that used in the 2014 audit and with learning disability expertise included as 
part of the audit. From the 920 known learning and disability CHC cases 103 
dip samples showed 21 cases could potentially be affected.  
 

4. In addition to the dip sample exercise, Aneurin Bevan University Health Board 
did, however, confirm from their systems the primary health need was 
appropriately considered in determining eligibility and therefore no changes 
were apparent. Hywel Dda University Health Board also proposed they jointly 
review their cases with those of ABMU to ensure an independent peer review 
model is in place and that work is underway. Our approach provides 
assurance and evidence that expert practitioners are considering eligibility 
appropriately, including in those cases where a package of care has been in 
place for some time and where, if the individual is relatively stable, reviews are 
undertaken less frequently. 
 

 
5. The next stage will involve an examination of the financial and service 

implications for those people assessed as being eligible for CHC. Some 
people would argue that bringing people within CHC puts them inappropriately 
within a medical model. We want to ensure that no one has been put at a 

Tudalen y pecyn 9



financial disadvantage and they continue to exercise maximum control over 
their care and support arrangements. 
 

Recommendation 3 - The Committee recommends that the Welsh Government 
continues to monitor Health Boards’ progress in processing retrospective 
claims and if necessary, refer claims not processed within the prescribed 
deadline to the Powys Project and provides the Committee with an update 
before the summer recess. 
 

6. Welsh Government monitors monthly progress on retrospective claims. The 
National Complex Care Board (NCCB) is jointly chaired by the Director of 
Social Services and Integration, Welsh Government and the Chief Executive 
of Powys teaching health board. It actively monitors progress via regular 
reports at each meeting. Health boards are represented on the NCCB by the 
accountable executive director. Welsh Government directly engages with the 
lead directors, challenges progress and agrees additional actions to ensure 
compliance with the required processes and timescales. 
 

7. Retrospective claims are complex in nature, and the nature of their 
management is determined by the date by which the claim refers. June figures 
show 2,091 outstanding claims undertaken by the National Project, down from 
3,250 in January. These are broken down below and the estimated date for 
dealing with these claims is December 2016.  
 Phase 1   (2,454 claims covering 1 April 1996 - 15 August 2010).     

2,452 have been completed or closed. 2 have been reviewed and 
awaiting completion.  
 

 Phase 2   (936 claims covering 1 April 2003 - present). 
200 have been reviewed/closed, 736 have been activated and are being 
worked on (i.e. evidence requested, chronologies being built).  
 

 Phase 3   (2,698 Claims covering 1 April 2003 - 31 July 2013). 
1,345 have been closed. 1,353 to be reviewed. 160 have been activated 
and legal financial evidence requested. 

 
8. Individual health boards have a smaller number of claims to manage, 465 in 

total.  
 
 Phase 2   355 claims remained with health boards. Of those 294 have 

been reviewed and closed, leaving 40 require to be reviewed. Of these 
36 are activated. 

 Phase 3   110 claims received. Of these 8 have been reviewed and 
closed, leaving 96 to be reviewed. Of these 42 have been activated. 

 
9. To speed up this process Health boards will receive further guidance on when 

and how they should fairly consider evidence of proof of payment from an 
individual regarding a claim. It complies with the Ombudsman’s Principles of 
Good Public Administration claimant Welsh Government. This has been 
developed with the approval of the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales 
and the Wales Audit Office and will be issued over the next few weeks.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 10



Recommendation 4 - The Committee recommends that the Welsh Government 
reports to the Committee before the summer recess on the expansion of the 
local and national recruitment programme and whether this has led to 
improvements in the time taken to process current and future claims. 

 
10. As stated at Committee in February, chief executives agreed a revised model 

to process phase 2 and phase 3 claims, moving resources from individual 
health boards to the National Project Team. The exceptions to this 
arrangement are those phase 2 claims currently active and under review by 
individual health boards. This process and necessary recruitment within the 
National Project Team, is underway. This will include clinical advisors (based 
on 12.2 wte), nursing reviewers (14 wte), special investigators (18.6 wte) and 
administrators (12 wte). These arrangements will ensure initial scrutiny and 
chronology stage of the process is conducted in a timely manner.  
 

11. It is expected the National Projects will reach full recruitment capacity in 
November though it is making significant progress already. At present 6 
special additional investigators have been appointed and 5 are already in post. 
A further 6 vacancies interviewed this week. Although only 3 administrators 
and two special investigators have been recruited, though already this has 
created some improvement in the number of cases going through. For 
example there has been an increase in the number of chronologies completed 
from 13 in June to 16 in the first 2 weeks of July. 4 Nurse Reviewer candidates 
were interviewed on 20 July. We will also monitor performance on a monthly 
basis to measure impact.  

 
 
Recommendation 5 - The Committee recommends that the Welsh Government 
monitors Health Boards to ensure that the shorter processing deadline for 
more recent claims does not result in unintended consequences of longer 
resolution times for long-standing claims which are unresolved. 

 
12. As set out in recommendation 3, health boards have moved the majority of 

phase 2 and all of phase 3 claims to the Powys Project. The exception being 
those phase 2 claims health boards are currently reviewing. This approach 
allows health boards to ensure timely and accurate arrangements for current 
cases and new retrospective claims when they are received. 
 

13. The 6 month timescale set out in the Framework is realistic. The 
arrangements above will also address the issue of performance management 
data, as all claims will be managed using their claims database, which meets 
the requirements recommended by WAO.  
 

14. The revised governance arrangements will ensure there is additional scrutiny 
of performance. Chief executives or executive leads for CHC are responsible 
for signing off the provision of monthly data on retrospectives and will ensure 
they are sighted on the latest position and ensure appropriate action is taken. 
Welsh government monitors progress on a monthly basis, including cases 
closed and where payment has been made, to ensure this work is ongoing.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 11



15. In addition, the NCCB receives regular reports at each meeting and monitor 
compliance. 

 
Recommendation 6 - The Committee recommends that the Welsh Government 
ensures that governance arrangements are clear and well understood in 
relation to complex care. This will include monitoring the effectiveness of such 
arrangements and the engagement of members of the National Complex Care 
Board and any task and finish groups which support its work. 

 
16. The Governance and Accountability Framework was approved by each health 

board and is now operational. It provides more formal systems where lead 
executives and or chief executives of local health boards can receive expert 
advice and briefing.  
 

17. The National Stakeholder Reference Group (NSRG) is chaired by the Director 
of Social Services and Integration. In acknowledging issues surrounding CHC 
cannot be isolated from those of complex care, this group provides both Welsh 
Government officials and the NCCB (below) with access to wider expertise. 
Dates for future meetings are being realigned so the NSRG meets 
approximately 2 weeks before the NCCB. Memberships of both groups are at 
doc 1. 
 

18. The NCCB was established and has met on two occasions and will next meet 
on 6 September.  It provides Welsh Government with an assurance and 
monitoring mechanism and is jointly chaired between the Chief Executive, 
Powys (teaching) Health Board and the Director of Social Services and 
Integration, Welsh Government. Advice on implementation and operational 
issues is provided by a National Complex Care Performance and Operations 
Group. Broader strategic advice is made available through the NSRG, whose 
membership includes the lead executive director in each health board. The 
NSRG is developing a detailed programme of work for its next meeting. This 
ensuring health board executive directors are responsible for:  
 

 ongoing monitoring of the 2014 CHC National Framework 
implementation,  
 

 driving implementation of both the WAO and PAC recommendations,  
 

 strategic oversight of retrospective claims, and  
 

 strategic oversight of CHC related performance data.   
 
 

19. Those components will be reviewed in six months to consider progress  and 
potential capacity to accommodate additional more proactive pieces of work. 
The terms of reference for the NCCB have been approved, subject to further 
review.  
 

Recommendation 7 - In addition to the current leaflets that are designed to be 
accessed once an individual is ‘in the system’; the Committee recommends 
that the Welsh Government publishes a general public information leaflet on 

Tudalen y pecyn 12



continuing health care. These leaflets should be shared with health and social 
care professionals and distributed widely, including being made available in 
doctors’ surgeries. 

20. Additional copies of the public information leaflet are being sent to each local 
health board for distribution to local care homes, G.P. surgeries, frontline 
services (e.g. one stop shops) and social care professionals. We developed 
and will issue a Welsh Health Circular in the next few weeks for health boards 
This guides and instructs them on where to distribute this leaflet and other 
CHC material and publicity (see recommendation 8, below). Electronic copies 
of the leaflets have also been issued to the various care homes registered with 
the Care and Social Services Inspectorate (Wales) (CSSIW) as well as social 
care professionals. This leaflet, guidance and other publicity and information 
material is also available on the Welsh Government web page and the jointly 
owned NHS and Welsh Government Complex Care and Information Support 
Site (CCISS).  
 

21. We will be undertaking further work on the website to develop more 
information for the public over the summer. We will also review the need to 
issue further information when there is a need to reprint further leaflets. Care 
homes and voluntary organisations have already received electronic copies of 
this leaflet from Welsh Government to ensure there are no gaps in coverage. 
 
 

22. Welsh Government is presently developing posters and will ask local health 
boards to distribute them signposting to the Welsh Government website, 
where the leaflet and information is available. We ensure this work is also 
placed on the Complex Care Information and Support site (CCISS). 
 

Recommendation 8 - The Committee recommends that mandatory guidance is 
issued to Health Boards and social care providers on where information in 
relation to continuing health care should be made available. This should 
include the provision of information to individuals (and/or their family 
members) who are in, or prior to admission into a care home, including details 
of how the Decision Support Tool is applied to individuals being assessed for 
Continuing Healthcare. 

 
23. Welsh Government provided health boards and social care providers with a 

minimum standard distribution list to ensure the leaflets are widely available. 
As stated in recommendation 7, we have developed mandatory guidance for 
health boards through a separate Welsh Health Circular on the issuing of CHC 
information. This will shortly be made available on the Welsh Government and 
NHS (HOWIS) website and notified directly to health boards and social care 
providers. It reflects the wishes of the Committee that additional copies of the 
public information leaflet will be sent to each local health board for distribution 
to local care homes. This guidance provides a minimum standard distribution 
list to ensure the local health boards issued leaflets in a manner that they are 
widely available, including G.P. surgeries. 
 

24. The guidance also provides links to electronic versions of the public 
information leaflet and both the Welsh Government and CCISS websites. The 
guidance directs health boards to undertake best practice when disseminating 

Tudalen y pecyn 13



information. It specifically requires health boards to consider the provision of 
other information to those individuals (and/or their family members) in or prior 
to care home admission. It also requests the provision of other information 
which may be of benefit, such as how the Decision Support Tool is applied to 
individuals being assessed for CHC.  

 
Recommendation 9 - The Committee remains concerned about the awareness, 
quality and level of provision of advocacy services provided by different Local 
Health Boards and is supportive of patients and carers understanding their 
options and the decision-making process as well as healthcare professionals. 
The Committee recommends the Welsh Government reports to the Committee 
before the summer recess, on how it intends to improve the consistency, 
quality and awareness of advocacy services. 
. 

25. Whilst the 2010 Framework required that individuals be provided with access 
to independent advocacy when required, this has been strengthened in the 
2014 Framework. Welsh Government asked health boards for the position on 
advocacy and will ask for an update on the approach to be taken for the next 
meeting of the Complex Care Board. 

 
26. The role of the advocate has been clarified in the Practitioners’ Frequently 

Asked Questions Booklet. Care co-ordinators are expected to support access 
to effective advocacy by: 
 

 Publicising the availability of local providers 
 Giving the advocate reasonable notice of meetings / support 

required. Arrange for them to meet the individual concerned to 
build trust, obtain their views and be in possession of the relevant 
facts.  

 Where practicable, and with the individual’s informed consent, 
providing assessment reports prior to the multi-disciplinary team 
meeting so that the advocate can talk their client through them and 
help them.  
 

27. The choice as to whether an individual with capacity wishes to access 
independent advocacy lies with them. In weighing up whether they wish to 
pursue this option, the individual may find it helpful to talk to an independent 
advocate who can explain what support they could provide. A family member 
or friend may also wish to access an independent advocacy service to support 
them and should be provided with the same information. 

 
28. Officials are working with the Wales Audit Office to ensure routine advocacy 

can be identified through data collected by the self-assessment toolkit. This 
will be used by health boards by the end of September. 
 

29. The requirements to provide Advocacy and Safeguarding services are 
enshrined within the Social Services and Wellbeing (Wales) Act 2014. The 
code of practice in relation to Advocacy (Part 10) sets out the requirements for 
access to advocacy services and support. These do not include advocacy 
specifically in relation to continuing health care but in responding to the 
population assessment (Part 2) required by the Act, regional partnership 

Tudalen y pecyn 14



boards will need to ensure they are able to respond to advocacy requirements 
for all individuals. The engagement of the WCVA will be important as a 
valuable source of information and advice. The WCVA has previously shared 
information on provision.  
 

30. We want to encourage an integrated approach to securing appropriate 
advocacy provision. An integrated approach based upon evidence in terms of 
demand and activity is likely to provide more stable funding for advocacy 
services and enable them to plan more effectively. 

 
31. As part of the proposed Tranche 1 of regulations within the Inspection and 

Regulation Bill, advocacy will become a regulated and inspected service.  
 

32. Welsh Government sponsored and facilitated a national training workshop for 
advocates on 6 November last year. Officials have also presented at one 
national and two regional advocacy network meetings. We anticipate that with 
additional resources for the delivery of training in relation to CHC that we will 
be able to provide greater support for advocacy services with regard to 
information about CHC.  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 15



DOC 1  
 

MEMBERSHIPS OF NATIONAL COMPLEX CARE BOARD AND NATIONAL 
STAKEHOLDER REFERENCE GROUP 

 
 

a) Memberships of National Complex Care Board 
 
Albert Heaney (Joint Chair)  Welsh Government  
 
Carol Shillabeer (Joint Chair)  Powys (teaching) Health Board 
 
Reena Cartmell   Betsi Cadwaladr UHB 

 
Alice Casey    Cardiff & Vale UHB 

 
Ceri Davies    Welsh Government 
 
Kathryn Davies  Hywel Dda UHB 
 
Lisa Dunsford   Welsh Government 

 
Kath Gallagher   Retrospective Claims National Project 

 
Alex Howells    Abertawe Bro Morgannwg UHB 
 
Rhiannon Jones   Powys (t)HB 

 
Jamie Marchant   Aneurin Bevan UHB 

 
Jill Paterson    Chair of the National Implementation Group 
 
Gaynor Williams   NHS Wales 
 
Lynda Williams   Cwm Taf UHB 
 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 16



 
b) National Stakeholder Reference Group 

 
Albert Heaney   Welsh Government 
 
Lisa Dunsford   Welsh Government  
   
Tracey Williams   Welsh Government      
 
Dave Street    Association of Directors of Social Services Cymru 
 
Mario Kreft    Care Forum Wales 
 
Paul Gilchrist    Aneurin Bevan University Health Board 
 
Daisy Cole    Older People’s Commissioner for Wales 
 
Gareth Haven   Welsh Government  
 
Steve Vaughan   Welsh Government  
 
Steve Ashcroft   Wales Audit Office 
 
Geraint Jones   Public Service Ombudsman for Wales 
 
Bob Hudson    Powys (teaching) Health Board 
 
Colin Jones    Independent Chair 
 
Sarah Powney   Welsh Government  
 
Jim Crowe     Learning Disability Advisory Group 
 
Sue Willis     Children’s CHC Advisory Group 
 
Sarah Watkins    Mental Health Advisory Group 

Tudalen y pecyn 17



 

Yr Adran Cyfoeth Naturiol 
Natural Resources Department  

 

Parc Cathays/Cathays Park 

Caerdydd/Cardiff 
CF10 3NQ 

 

Ffôn/Tel: 02920 82 6162 
E-Bost/E-Mail: andrew.slade@wales.gsi.gov.uk  

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 
Darren Millar AM 
Chair 
Public Accounts Committee 
National Assembly for Wales 
Cardiff Bay 
CF99 1NA 
 

 31 July 2015 
 
 

 
 
Dear Mr Millar 
 
Thank you for your letter to Gareth Jones dated 30 June 2015. I am responding on his behalf.  
Set out below is further clarification on the points that you raised.   
   
In relation to Recommendation 1, and the additional value that Glastir Advanced brings 
in support of the Welsh Government’s objectives, the Committee would welcome some 
further information from the evaluation of a sample of Glastir Advanced, which I 
understand reported in March 2015, in particular how the Glastir Monitoring and 
Evaluation Programme has helped you understand the additional value derived from 
Glastir Advanced. 
 
The remit for the Glastir Advanced Evaluation Panel was to ‘evaluate the effectiveness of a 
selection of Glastir contracts and report back on their conclusions and recommendations.’ 
More specifically, the Panel was asked to: 
 

 assess the extent to which existing contracts have the potential to meet the key 
objectives for which they were selected. 

 assess the extent to which objectives are being delivered at a landscape scale 
 identify what improvements could be made to documentation, guidance and maps to 

support Contract Managers (CMs) to sign more effective contracts. 
 identify where additional training needs may be required by CMs. 

The Panel found a number of examples of best practice in the design and implementation of 
the Glastir Advanced scheme and considerable evidence of measures that would deliver 
significant environmental improvements. The Panel also found some areas where the Welsh  

Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus / Public Accounts Committee 
PAC(4)-22-15 PTN3

Tudalen y pecyn 18

Eitem 2.3



Government can build upon the solid foundation provided by the scheme and made 10 specific 
recommendations which the Deputy Minister for Farming and Food will now consider. 
 
The Panel’s full report is attached and can alson be found at: 
 
http://gov.wales/topics/environmentcountryside/farmingandcountryside/farmcountrypublicationi
ndex/glastir-advanced-evaluation-panel-report/?lang=en 
 
The work of the Glastir Monitoring and Evaluation Programme (GMEP) had, at that stage, not 
progressed to a sufficient stage of reporting detail to be able to support the work of the Glastir 
Advanced Evaluation Panel. However, as previously noted in the earlier response to 
Recommendation 8, the Welsh Government will provide a synopsis of findings in the GMEP 
annual reports to the Committee following the publication of the final year baseline report by 
autumn 2016.  
 
In relation to Recommendation 2, it would be helpful to understand the intended 
timescale for implementation of action to tackle poor practices. 
  
Natural Resources Wales (NRW) are currently finalising arrangements to submit the updated 
River Basin Management Plans (RBMPs) to Welsh Government during this autumn for 
Ministerial sign-off.  The updated plans need to be approved and published by 22 December 
2015.  
  
The updated RBMPs set out progress made during the first RBMP planning cycle (2009-15), 
the current state of our water environment, the significant issues/risks that need to be resolved 
and a summary programme of measures to deliver a sustainable land-water environment.  The 
summary programme of measures includes actions to address the impacts of poor land 
management practices and identifies the key delivery partners. 
  
The Water Framework Directive requires the programme of measures to be made operational 
by 2018 and for progress to be reported to the European Commission. 
 
The Water Strategy for Wales sets out the Welsh Government’s high-level timeline for delivery 
of key objectives and supporting actions. In the near short term, we will be undertaking a 
review of Nitrate Vulnerable Zones (NVZs) across Wales, with new designations to be in place 
by January 2017.  Farms located within any areas newly identified for designation will be 
required to comply with the rules and restrictions set out in the Action Programme, to help 
promote general good practice and improve the water quality in those areas.  
 
In the short term between now and 2020, we will be working with NRW to build on the existing 
River Basin Management Liaison Panels as a means of broadening community involvement in 
the development of policy at the catchment level, informing and evolving with our development 
of the area-based approach to Natural Resource Management.  
 
Within this same timescale the Welsh Government will ask Natural Resources Wales to review 
the effectiveness of their current provision of pollution prevention advice and enforcement 
procedures to ensure they are fit for purpose. We will encourage Natural Resources Wales 
and our own Agricultural Advisory Services to work with landowners to develop a common 
understanding of diffuse pollution and its prevention through improved land management and 
we will consult on and implement regulations to reduce oil pollution in Wales.  

Tudalen y pecyn 19

http://gov.wales/topics/environmentcountryside/farmingandcountryside/farmcountrypublicationindex/glastir-advanced-evaluation-panel-report/?lang=en
http://gov.wales/topics/environmentcountryside/farmingandcountryside/farmcountrypublicationindex/glastir-advanced-evaluation-panel-report/?lang=en


 
As an ongoing and long-term action, we will work with all the relevant sectors to address 
diffuse water pollution through understanding, reviewing and (where appropriate) changing 
practices and regulatory approaches, in line with ‘Working Smarter’ principles.  
 
In relation to Recommendation 3, we would welcome any information you may have on 
Water Framework Directive Failures that can be traced to land managed by Natural 
Resources Wales. 
  
In Wales, nearly 5% of WFD water body failures to achieve good status are related to forestry 
activities (Living Waters For Wales, 2013). Natural Resources Wales are committed to 
reducing that number by dealing with the causes of those failures and improving environmental 
quality across the Welsh Government Woodland Estate (WGWE). 
 
The dominant reasons for failure in water bodies associated with forestry are acidification and 
poor fish populations. Other threats include scavenging of acid deposition, sedimentation, 
pesticides, excessive shading, nutrient enrichment, contamination from fuel oils and barriers to 
fish migration. 
 
Natural Resources Wales are addressing these issues by complying with the UK Forest and 
Water Guidelines 5th edition (UKFWG) published in November 2011. Well maintained culverts, 
effective silt traps, roadside drains separate from any natural watercourses, riparian zones and 
appropriate water management within the forest are essential for maintaining good ecological 
status across the WGWE.  Pollution safeguards are in place when forest operations are 
carried out. 
 
Natural Resources Wales have identified 22 such priority water bodies where they will: 
 

 review the forest riparian management and drainage systems and ensure they 
meet the UKFWG standards by 2021 

 prepare forest resource plans and identify potential risks, such as civil 
engineering, clear-felling and restocking and implement ways to mitigate them, 
considering Low Impact Silvicultural Systems (LISS) where applicable.  

 where unavoidable forest operations, such as felling to comply with a plant health 
order, could have a significant water quality impact they will take all steps to 
mitigate them. 

 
During 2015 Natural Resources Wales are updating their WFD evidence base as part of the 
River Basin Management Plans.  This information will inform their priority water body 
programme. 
 
In relation to Recommendation 6, the committee would be grateful for additional 
assurance that cross-compliance will work better in the future and that knowledge will 
be more effectively transferred – in particular the Rural Inspectorate Wales and Natural 
Resources Wales. We would be interested to understand what progress was made at 
the Welsh Government’s meeting with Natural Resources Wales earlier this month. 
 
Rural Payments Wales(RPW) met with Natural Resources Wales(NRW) on Friday 19th June 
and discussed options for greater co-ordination between our inspectorates, with a view of 
reducing the inspection burdens on farmers and maximising administrative efficiencies. 

Tudalen y pecyn 20



 
There are elements of Cross Compliance inspections that warrant NRW to accompany RPW in 
certain cases and these are combined as part of the RPW annual inspection cycle. It has been 
agreed with NRW that joint training with RPW inspectors in the autumn will allow more RPW 
inspectors to cover the basic requirements of these elements under Cross Compliance, limiting 
the number of inspections NRW will need to complete, and improving efficiency for all 
concerned.  
 
NRW have also agreed to share their annual selection of inspection cases, with a view that 
their inspections can be combined with RPW wherever possible. If a farmer has been selected 
for an inspection by both NRW and RPW, but it is not possible to combine the inspection (as 
they cover specific and separate element), then we will ensure that the inspections of both 
organisations are timed and arranged in a way that lessens the impact on the farmer. 
 
In relation to Recommendation 7, we would welcome an update on current progress 
against the current target for uptake of Glastir, prior to the new targets that you 
undertake to provide by Autumn 2015. 
 
The Welsh Government reports progress for delivering the Rural Development Plan to the 
Programme Monitoring Committee, including the targets for Glastir to achieve by the end of 
the RDP period, and the delivery achieved to date.  Glastir is of course a demand-led scheme, 
and, as previously discussed with the Committee, uptake will depend on a range of factors. 
 
 
 Target Achieved % of target 
Glastir Entry    
Number of supported holdings 7,000 4620 66% 
Total agricultural land supported 
(ha) 

300,000 559,442 186% 

Glastir Advanced    
Number of supported holdings 500 1473 294% 
Total agricultural land supported 
(ha) 

16,667 253,589** 1521% 

Glastir Commons    
Number of supported holdings 200 198 99% 
Total agricultural land supported 
(ha) 

30,000 117,000 390% 

Glastir Woodland Creation    
Number of supported holdings 450 562 125% 
Total agricultural land supported 
(ha) 

1,166 1767 152% 

Glastir Woodland 
management 

   

Number of supported holdings 200 178 89% 
 
** This is the total area of the Glastir Contract that has Advanced elements within it. This does 
not include Glastir Advanced on Common land. 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 21



I hope that the information included within this letter provides the Committee with the 
information required. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you need anything further. 
 
Yours sincerely 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
Andrew Slade 
Director 
Agriculture, Food and Marine 
 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 22



 

 1 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Glastir Advanced Evaluation  

Panel Findings and Recommendations 

  

Tudalen y pecyn 23



 

 2 

CONTENTS 

 

 

 

1.Background  3 

2.Appointment of the panel                   4 

3.Remit and timetable for the evaluation                                        5 

4.Development of a methodology                                                                                     6-9 

5.Evaluation method and scoring 10 

6.Sampling Strategy                           11 

7.Confidentiality and anonymity                          12 

8.Limitations of the assessment                         12 

9.Results                                                         13 

10.Elements of good practice identified                                                         14-16 

11.Areas where there is room for improvement                                                 17-23 

12.Conclusion                                                         24 

13.Recommendations                                                                                                      25-30 

14.References                                                                                                                   31-32 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 24



 

 3 

Glastir Advanced Evaluation Panel Report 
 

1 Background 

Glastir Advanced is the Welsh Government’s primary delivery mechanism for targeted land 
management interventions under the 2014 to 2020 Rural Development Plan for Wales. An 
innovative feature of the scheme is that it uses a GIS-based decision support system to 
inform both selection of holdings and the choice of actions within the scheme.  The decision 
support system is informed by a series of map layers showing the areas where over 100 
different objectives could potentially be delivered across Wales. 

In consulting on the proposals for Glastir under the 2014 to 2020 Rural Development 
Programme for Wales, the Welsh Government (Welsh Government, 2014) reported that 
during the development of Glastir Advanced, concern had been expressed about the large 
number of target layers and the direction to Contract Managers that they should ideally be 
looking to include in the contract at least one activity for all the potential objectives identified. 
They pointed out that fears had been raised in some quarters (e.g. Everett, 2013; Wildlife 
and Countryside Link, 2013), that this might lead to a “tick box” approach, whereby only a 
minimum amount of activity is assigned to each objective to deliver a contract.  

The Welsh Government was very clear in the consultation document that this was not the 
intention of the scheme. They pointed out that Contract Managers are trained to, wherever 
possible, sign applicants up to the maximum amount of activity to deliver the identified 
environmental objectives listed when the farm is selected. The Welsh Government also said 
that there were many examples of contracts where a constructive dialogue had taken place 
between Contract Managers and environmental partner organisations, which had led to 
detailed plans to meet objective requirements, or, alternatively, a mutual acknowledgement 
that objectives should be dropped as inappropriate for that farm.  The consultation document 
made it very clear that this was how scheme implementation was envisaged.  

Nevertheless, in response to the concerns expressed, the Welsh Government made the 
following commitments: 

1.1 ‘To commission and publish a desk evaluation of a sample of contracts for the first 2 years 
of the scheme, which considers how well the signed contract is likely to deliver against the 
objectives for which it was selected. 

1.2 To review working guidance for Contract Managers in light of these findings and provide 
additional training, where necessary, to ensure quality of contracts being signed. 

The Glastir Advanced Evaluation Panel was established at the end of October 2014 in order 
to provide an independent evaluation of a sample of contracts that would fulfil the first of 
these two commitments and inform the second. 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 25



 

 4 

2 Appointment of the Panel 

The remit for the Glastir Evaluation Panel stated that the Panel should consist of an 
independent Chair and two additional independent members, one from an environmental 
organisation and one from the farming community.  Panel members were, however, 
appointed for their individual knowledge and experience, not as representatives of wider 
interest groups. 

Geoffrey Radley, who was appointed to chair the Panel, is an independent environmental 
and ecological consultant who formerly worked for Natural England.  Whilst on secondment 
to Defra from 2002 to 2005 he led a review of the existing English schemes and led the team 
that designed Environmental Stewardship.  He contributed to the agri-environment section of 
the 2007 to 2013 Rural Development Programme for England, worked with CEH on the 
evaluation of Higher Level Stewardship and, since leaving Natural England, has worked on 
projects looking at agri-environment schemes across Europe.  

Arfon Williams of RSPB Wales was appointed as the Panel member from an environmental 
organisation. He has direct experience of agri-environmental schemes, having formerly 
worked as a project officer on Tir Gofal, and he also comes from a farming background. 

Ieuan Joyce, who farms in Ystumtuen, Ceredigion was appointed as the Panel member from 
a farming background. He was previously a lecturer in farm animal science at the University 
of Leeds. He was a council member of the Countryside Council for Wales, is a member of 
ACRE (Advisory Committee on Releases to the Environment, Defra), is Chair of the Elan 
Valley Trust and was a member of the Wales Upland Forum.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 26



 

 5 

3 Remit and timetable for the evaluation 

The remit for the Glastir Advanced Evaluation Panel was to ‘evaluate the effectiveness of a 
selection of Glastir contracts and report back on their conclusions and recommendations.’ 
More specifically, the panel were asked to: 

 Assess the extent to which existing contracts have the potential to meet the key 
objectives for which they were selected. 

 Assess the extent to which objectives are being delivered at a landscape scale 
 Identify what improvements could be made to documentation, guidance and maps to 

support Contract Managers (CMs) to sign more effective contracts. 
 Identify where additional training needs may be required by CM’s. 

The mode of operation was left to the Chair of the Panel’s decision, but it was suggested 
that the evaluation should include: 

 An independent selection of existing Glastir Advanced contracts by the Panel to 
ensure impartiality  

 A desk-based assessment of contract maps against a simple appraisal scale e.g. 
delivers all objectives / delivers most objectives / delivers some objectives, etc. 

 Interviews with CMs to discuss any constraints to better achieving the Glastir 
objectives 

 Potential for live contract  on-farm visits by the panel to further inform their 
deliberations 

The Evaluation was scheduled to run from late November 2014 to the end of January 2015, 
with the report produced in time to inform training, supporting documentation, guidance and 
maps before CMs start to negotiate contracts ahead of the 1st January 2016 start date.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 27



 

 6 

4 Development of a methodology 
 

4.1 Constraints 

As explained in the previous section, the Glastir Evaluation Panel was asked to undertake a 
desk study to be completed between late November 2014 and the end of January 2015, so 
that the conclusions could inform the development of new contracts during 2015.  Given the 
complexity and diversity of Glastir Advanced contracts, the decision was taken at an early 
stage to use an appraisal panel, relying on the expert judgement of the panel members, 
informed by a dossier of relevant information about each holding, its environmental features 
and the contract. A similar approach was taken by the Centre for Ecology and Hydrology to 
assess the potential of agreements under the Higher Level Stewardship Scheme in England 
(Mountfield et al., 2013). 

4.2 Review of available information 

On appointment, the Panel Chair undertook a review of the scheme information and 
supporting data that was available to inform an evaluation of Glastir Advanced contracts. 
The Secretariat supplied copies of a range of generic supporting information, including the 
following: 

 The Glastir Advanced rules booklet  
 A matrix showing which management options are eligible for use against which 

objectives 
 A matrix showing which capital items are eligible for use against which objectives 

The Secretariat also supplied the following Information specific to a sample contract: 

 The Glastir Advanced contract, which, amongst other things, lists the management 
options and capital item with the parcel numbers in which they are located, 

 Glastir Advanced contract maps showing the contract area, the permanent features 
and the locations of the management options and capital items 

 Objective targeting maps, showing relevant target areas for different objectives that 
overlap with the area of the holding 

 The Glastir Water Management Plan for the holding 
 A list of the targeted objectives for the contract, showing which ones have been 

addressed and which ones have not 
 A set of notes explaining why some objectives have not been addressed in this 

contract 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 28



 

 7 

The information supplied allowed a clear picture to be obtained of which options and capital 
items had been applied where, and for which objective. It also allowed an assessment of 
how these options and capital items related to the target areas for the different objectives, 
which is a necessary starting point for an evaluation. Working through the information 
supplied did, however, raise a number of issues:  

 The codes used on the maps are parcel-specific. They had to be cross-referenced to 
the tables in the contract to work out which objectives and capital items are being 
used in each parcel or on each field boundary. Holdings are also shown on multiple, 
overlapping maps with the same actions shown on more than one sheet.  

 In the table relating the options and capital items used in the contract to the 
objectives, the options and capital items are not grouped by objective. This made it 
difficult to get an overview of the management undertaken for each objective. 

 The maps showing the target areas for the different objectives vary considerably in 
their scale of resolution.  Most of the maps are not resolved to anything like parcel 
level, which made it difficult to say whether the location of options within the holding 
is appropriate or not.  

 For a number of objectives where maps showing the target areas did have a finer 
scale of resolution, including lowland grassland, lowland heathland and woodland 
primary network, the target areas shown on the maps bore little or no relation to the 
parcels where suitable options for these habitats had been located in the sample 
contract.  From the scheme information alone, it was not possible to determine 
whether this reflected poor choices in the location of management options or, more 
likely, the limitations of the data used to compile the objective targeting maps. 

By contrast, the maps, schedules and photographs in the water management plan allowed 
detailed comparisons to be made with the locations of relevant management options and 
capital items, providing a good basis for assessing which of the identified priorities had been 
addressed. 

Two things became apparent as a result of this exercise: 

1. That obtaining an overview of which options and capital items had been used for 
which objectives and where these had been placed on the holding was a complex 
process. 

2. With the possible exception of the water quality objectives, additional information 
would be needed in order to make valid assessments of the extent to which existing 
contracts had the potential to meet the key objectives for which they were selected 
and of the extent to which these objectives were being delivered at a landscape 
scale. 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 29



 

 8 

Research by the Panel Chair identified the following potentially suitable sets of additional 
information: 

 Natural Resources Wales Phase 1 habitat maps. These provide comprehensive 
coverage, though the basic survey is now quite old (1979 – 1997).  

 Natural Resources Wales Phase 2 habitat survey includes maps for lowland 
grasslands, lowland heathlands, and lowland peat. Surveys of these habitats were 
carried out at various dates, all later than Phase 1.  

 Remote sensing images, using near infra-red and visible light, which includes 
comprehensive, recent cover of Wales. 

 A wide range of information generated by the Centre for Ecology and Hydrology 
(CEH) for the Glastir Monitoring and Evaluation Programme (GMEP) (Emmett et al. 
2014) including: 
o A wide range of habitat, species, soil, water, landscape and historic 

environment data have been collected from 150 samples 1km2 squares in 2013 
and 2014. 

o CEH remote sensing data on peatlands.  
o CEH impact monitoring studies, which model landscape scale impact 

Given the scale of the work being undertaken by CEH and the prospect of a ready-made 
sampling strategy, the Panel Chair decided to meet them, with the Welsh Government 
Secretariat, to explore the extent to which the data collected could be useful to the Panel. 
This meeting took place on 13th November 2013. 

At that meeting, CEH staff explained the sampling strategy for GMEP, which was based on 
1km2 sample areas, stratified by ITE Land Class.  Within each land class area the All Wales 
sample km2s were selected randomly, whilst the Targeted Component samples were 
weighted proportionately to the total objective score of each km2.  

CEH confirmed that so far 150 squares had been sampled, of which 75 were from the 
targeted element.  57% of the 150 samples overlapped to at least some extent with a Glastir 
contract, but it had proved very difficult to ascertain the full extent of the overlap.  Various 
difficulties of data access and analysis had meant that it had not been possible to provide a 
detailed estimate of the number of Glastir Advanced contracts that overlap with sample 
squares.  CEH estimated that it might be about a third of the 75 targeted element squares, 
though there was at the time no estimate of the extent of that overlap and obtaining such an 
estimate would have required additional analysis.    

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 30



 

 9 

The limited overlap between GMEP sample squares and Glastir Advanced contracts 
suggested that overlap with a CEH sample square would not be a particularly useful basis 
on which to select a sample of Glastir advanced contracts. This in turn limited the usefulness 
of the field survey data collected by CEH for the purposes of the panel.   

The meeting did however result in a very useful discussion about what datasets would be 
most beneficiall in helping the Panel to evaluate Glastir Advanced contracts. As a result of 
this, it was agreed with the secretariat that the following additional reference information 
would be supplied for all contracts sampled: 

 An Ordnance Survey base map of an appropriate scale 
 Recent colour vertical aerial photography, rectified to fit with the base map and 

scheme information, to allow a visual check on the situation on the ground. 
 The phase 1 vegetation survey data from NRW, providing consistent, basic 

information on the range and location of habitats within and adjacent to the holdings  
 The Ecosse 2 and Unified Peat maps to provide a check on the target area maps for 

the carbon soil objectives. 

In addition it was agreed that the secretariat would, where they existed, supply copies of any 
advisory reports, information and formal written advice received by the CMs in relation to a 
contract.  These included: 

 Water Management Plans (for the water quality priority 1 and 2 areas) 
 Nutrient Management Plans 
 Reports on Scheduled Ancient Monuments from CADW and on other historic 

features from Archaeological Trusts 
 Formal and informal advice from NRW on the management of SSSIs and their buffer 

zones 
 Any other written records of consultations over particular objectives 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 31



 

 10 

5 Evaluation method and scoring 

The complexity and diversity of Glastir Advanced contracts, the volume of relevant 
information available and the complex process involved in compiling a contract confirmed 
the original decision to use an appraisal panel-based evaluation process.   

The Panel conducted an exploratory trial run on 26th November 2014 using dossiers 
prepared for two sample contracts (neither of which were included in the sample for the 
evaluation proper).  Having familiarised themselves with the scheme, contract and reference 
information supplied, panel members talked through these two contracts with the CM who 
had helped to set them up. Panel members found these discussions allowed them to get a 
much clearer understanding of the contracts and helped to clarify issues that could not be 
resolved from the written documentation alone. The indications from this exercise were that 
this approach, including a discussion with the responsible CM, would provide Panel 
members with enough information to allow a meaningful assessment of potential to meet key 
objectives, and to identify elements of good practice and areas for improvement.  

 

Before the Panel started to consider the sample contracts to be used in the evaluation 
process they adopted some working practices to structure the assessment process.  The 
Panel chair annotated the contract maps to show which options and capital items had been 
used in which locations. He then compared these to the phase 1 habitat survey map in order 
to get some idea what sort of habitats the actions had been applied to.  He also prepared a 
table showing in one place the set of options and capital items assigned to each objective.   

Panel members agreed that the main focus of the assessment should be the extent to which 
existing contracts have the potential to meet the key objectives for which they were selected. 
For each contract, they were asked to consider three aspects of contract potential before the 
meeting at which the contract was to be discussed: 

Selection of objectives to address / reject 

Given all the objective layers relevant to the farm, how good were the decisions on which 
objectives to address and which not to? Did any of those not addressed represent major lost 
opportunities? Were any objectives addressed that should not have been? Did the selection 
make for a manageable contract, or is it over-complex?  

Choice of management options and capital items 

For the objectives to which a contract is intended to contribute, how good was the choice of 
management options and capital items? This was a particularly important question where 
achieving an objective requires a combination of several different management options 
and/or capital works.  

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 32



 

 11 

Deployment of management options and capital items 

For each management option and capital item, how well were they targeted within the farm? 
Were there any examples where options or capital items appear to have been put in the 
wrong place?  Was the area/length/number of units too small/short/few to have the required 
impact, about right or too large/long/many to be cost-effective? 

From this assessment, Panel members were each asked to identify good points in the 
contract and potential weaknesses and to identify issues that needed to be clarified or 
explored further with the CM at the Panel meeting.   

Following the discussion, Panel Members were asked to write down a list of good points 
about each contract and a list of areas where improvements could have been made.  They 
were also each asked to, without conferring; assign the contract an overall score for its 
potential to meet the key objectives for which it was selected.  After some discussion and 
iteration, Panel members agreed to use the following five point scoring system for all the 
sample contracts: 

1. Optimal or near optimal – The contract has the potential to make an optimal 
contribution to scheme objectives.  No improvements to suggest. 

2. Good – The contract has the potential to make a useful, cost-effective contribution. 
Minor improvements may be possible. 

3. Uneven quality –The contract is likely to make a useful, cost-effective contribution to 
some objectives, but there is substantial room for improvement in the contribution 
likely to be made to other objectives. 

4. Poor –The contract has the potential to make some contribution to scheme 
objectives though there is substantial room for improvement across all or most of the 
objectives. 

5. Unacceptable – The contract is deeply flawed and unlikely to make a cost-effective 
contribution to scheme objectives. 

When the Panel re-convened, individual scores were compared and consensus reached on 
what score the contract should finally be allocated. 

6. Sampling strategy 

Based on findings from the preliminary assessment of contracts, it was decided to sample 
fifteen contracts, assessing five contracts per day at each of three panel meetings.  With this 
sample size, choosing the samples on a purely random basis would have risked very uneven 
coverage of the scheme and the issues that it faces. Instead, a procedure was developed to 
ensure that the sample could be broadly representative of the operation of Glastir Advanced 
across Wales, whilst minimising bias. 

Rural Payments Wales administer the scheme through their three regions and it was agreed 
to sample five contracts from each region in case there were big differences between the 
way the scheme was administered within each one. Within each region it was also felt 
desirable to sample a range of farm types in a range of situations and with a range of 
objectives. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 33



 

 12 

 

To this end, the secretariat provided the Panel chair with a long list of potentially suitable 
contracts for each region, with basic information on the type of farm, the broad geographical 
area within the region, the degree of disadvantage (SDA/DA/non-LFA) and whether there 
was a significant carbon or high priority water quality objective. The Panel chair made the 
final selection from the long list on the basis of the information supplied, without knowing the 
details of the farm or the contract. The mix of samples was also intended to reflect the broad 
characteristics of the three RPW regions. 

The sample of five contracts from the North Wales region was selected to include the 
following: 

 Two contracts from the SDA, two from the DA and one from the non-LFA 
 At least one contract for which carbon was a major objective and one for which water 

quality was a major objective 
 Contracts from the three main geographical areas within the region (NE Wales, NW 

Wales and the Snowdonia National Park) 
 Contracts covering a range of types of farming enterprise 

Selection of the samples for the South and East region and West region was done at the 
same time and followed a similar pattern. The sample was chosen to cover all the different 
sub-regions, to ensure that lowland, DA and SDA areas are sampled, to cover a range of 
farm types and to cover a good range of objectives, including at least one with a focus on 
water management.  An attempt was also made to include some complex and some simpler-
sounding contracts. 

After the Panel Chair had made his selection, a check was made with the panel members to 
ensure that they had no personal connections to any of the sampled farms.  In one case this 
proved to be the case and the most similar farm from the long list was chosen instead. 

7.  Confidentiality and anonymity 

The aim of the evaluation was to suggest ways of improving scheme delivery, not to criticise 
individual contracts or CMs.  The contracts we looked at are all still running and we did not 
wish to destabilise them.  It was also essential that CMs felt they could speak freely to the 
Panel about their approach to contract development and the issues that they face.  For these 
reasons, the Panel agreed that the locations of the sampled contracts should not be made 
public.  Details of the contracts sampled and notes of the Panel’s discussions on the 
individual contracts have however been retained by the Welsh Government. 

8.  Limitations of the assessment 

The Panel was asked to focus on delivering improvements to the scheme in the short term. 
This meant that the panel did not focus on deeper structural issues such as payment rates, 
the initial selection of objectives at a scheme level or the weighting of objectives at a scheme 
level.  The desk-based nature of the review also meant that it was not possible to evaluate 
the effectiveness with which actions were implemented on the farm. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 34



 

 13 

 

9. Results  

How well are the signed contracts likely to deliver against the objectives for which they were selected? 

This was assessed by assigning each contract an overall score on the one to five scale 
described in the methodology section. In some cases individual Panel members scored 
contracts differently, though normally only within a range of plus or minus one score. 
Through discussion, the Panel managed to understand the reasons for these differences 
and achieve a consensus score for all of the sample contracts.  Figure 1 shows the 
distribution of the scores for the fifteen sample contracts between the five scores. The 
sample size is not sufficient for any further breakdown of these scores to be meaningful. 

  

We found no contracts that we judged to be unacceptable and only one that we judged to be 
poor.  We judged that seven out of the fifteen contracts were either good or optimal to near 
optimal, with a further seven being classified as of uneven quality.  

The Panel was struck by the amount of work CMs had put into developing the contracts we 
sampled.  In all cases they appeared to have followed the scheme rules and had worked 
their way through huge masses of complex data to develop each contract.  They had to take 
on advice and guidance from multiple sources and reconcile what might be an optimal 
management package with what the farmer is prepared and able to undertake. In some 
cases they had also had to resolve internal conflicts between the management required for 
different objectives. 

We set the bar for achieving the highest score (optimal or near optimal) high. We marked as 
‘good’ any contract where we felt there was even minor room for improvement. Given the 
many practical difficulties involved in compiling and negotiating a contract, a ‘good’ score is 
the best that we would normally expect a contract to achieve under operational conditions.  

 

 

0 2 4 6 8

5. Unacceptable

4. Poor

3. Uneven

2. Good

1 Optimal or near
optimal

Figure 1. Agreed scores for the 15 sample 
agreements  

Number of agreements

Tudalen y pecyn 35



 

 14 

For the seven contracts judged as being of uneven quality, we found that some objectives 
appeared to have been addressed very well, whereas other objectives had been less well 
addressed. We were careful to judge the contracts against the objectives they are recorded 
as addressing and, in some cases this led us to mark in a way that may seem harsh.  For 
example, we assessed as being of uneven quality a contract on a more intensively managed 
farm that included an ambitious programme of habitat creation that we felt would greatly 
benefit generalist farmland species. We scored it as of uneven quality because we were not 
convinced that all the individual species objectives that had been accepted for this contract 
would actually benefit.  

10. Elements of good practice identified 

As would be expected from the good overall scores, we found many examples of good 
practice illustrated by the fifteen contracts that we sampled.  Some of those that we found 
most frequently are listed in this section: 

10.1 Consideration is given to a wide range of objectives, guided by the target area maps 

The system of scoring is based on multiple GIS target layers that is used to select Glastir 
contracts, generally achieves the aim of making CMs consider the full range of objectives to 
which the holding could potentially contribute.  

 The evaluation of Tir Gofal identified that its impact on a range of species, selected to 
represent a range of differing families, ecological requirements, habitat niches and varying 
potential to respond to AES management prescriptions was negligible (MacDonald et al. 
2012).  The design of Glastir Advanced was intended to address this. The targeting system 
does appear to be focusing more attention on the conservation of individual species. In the 
fifteen contracts we sampled, the species objectives had been considered alongside the 
habitat and other objectives.   

 The Welsh Government has placed the emphasis of Glastir Advanced on soil carbon, water 
quality and water quantity in the early years of the scheme.  The sample contracts reflect this 
intention. Water quality, flood risk management and soil carbon objectives all made major 
contributions to the scoring of the sample objectives (see Table 1).  The sample contracts do 
attempt to address these objectives alongside the more long established biodiversity, 
landscape and historic environment objectives. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 36



 

 15 

Table 1.   Total scores of sample contracts for addressed objectives  

Contract Carbon 
Soil 
objective 
scores 

Water 
Quality 
objective 
scores 

Flood 
risk 
reduction 
objective 
scores  

Combined 
total 
scores for 
these 
objectives 

Species 
objectives 

Habitat 
and 
protected 
site 
objectives 

Landscape 
and historic 
environment 
objectives 

Combined 
total 
score for 
these 
objectives 

1 9.97 16.25 0 26.22 0.07 10.38 3.05 13.50 
2 9.10 10.68 2.43 22.21 13.79 10.66 0 24.45 
3 0 16.00 43.34 59.34 1.89 5.68 3.63 11.20 
4 1.70 5.52 0.95 8.17 6.67 4.21 4.08 14.96 
5 22.59 1.18 14.29 38.06 4.18 3.88 0 8.06 
6 0 0 0 0 14.82 4.47 0 18.70 
7 11.84 0 0 11.84 7.97 6.35 0 14.32 
8 0 2.00 13.33 15.33 4.61 5.04 1.00 10.65 
9 8.20 0 26.18 34.38 1.24 1.90 0 2.14 
10 0 0.02 18.37 18.39 0 4.14 0 4.14 
11 21.03 0 0 21.03 9.08 6.51 0.87 16.46 
12 2.99 9.65 3.99 16.63 13.66 3.20 2.00 18.86 
13 0 0 1.00 1.00 7.04 3.17 2.24 12.45 
14 0 0 0 0 7.68 4.09 3.00 14.77 
15 10.62 11.39 5.78 27.79 4.20 2.92 0.78 7.90 

 

10.2 The management of major areas of semi-natural habitat is generally appropriate and 
well targeted 

Management of semi-natural habitats was identified as a strength of Tir Gofal (Metcalfe et al. 
2012) and the design of Glastir Advanced seems likely to build on that strength. Most of the 
areas of semi-natural habitat in the fifteen sample contracts were under management 
designed to maintain or restore favourable condition.  Reference to the Phase 1 habitat 
survey maps and aerial photographs appeared to show that this management had been 
accurately targeted.  The combinations of management options and capital items used to 
address the management requirements of these habitats were generally appropriate. 

10.3 Most of the sample contracts in areas where water quality management is a high 
priority were supported by good Water Management Plans  

The format of the Water Management Plans is very clear, informative and easy to 
understand and most seem to make sensible recommendations.  

10.4 CMs have generally made good use of the Water Management Plans and 
archaeological reports   

CMs seem to have made appropriate use of these plans, being careful to regard them as 
guidance and adapting their recommendations to match the situation that they found on the 
ground.  In all but one of the six samples we looked at that were covered by a water quality 
priority 1 or 2 objective, there was a well thought out suite of actions to address the 
objective. The influence of the Water Management Plan could be clearly identified in these 
contracts.  

Tudalen y pecyn 37



 

 16 

10.5 In some cases CMs are using more precise information on distribution to establish 
whether management for a species objective with a very broadly defined target area 
is likely to be beneficial on a particular holding 

We heard that in some cases CMs are using Local Record Centre data (available to them 
through a Welsh Government contract) to check whether a species has actually been 
recorded on or within range of a holding where it has come up as an objective. This would 
seem to be good practice where target areas are not closely defined, as management for a 
species that is not present on the farm and unlikely to colonise it risks wasting money and 
undermining the credibility of the scheme.  

10.6 In a few  cases there is evidence that a landscape-scale approach is being taken 

We encountered a few examples of actions for localised bird species that were coordinated 
between different contracts in an attempt to provide for all the requirements of the species 
within its range. The best example was a contract where the management for Twite had 
been coordinated with that under other nearby contracts through the Twite delivery plan 
developed by RSPB Cymru (mentioned in the WAO report on Glastir). CMs also reported 
other examples of helpful advice on landscape scale management for birds given by the 
RSPB. This provides further evidence of the value of facilitation, recognised in the Welsh 
Government’s 2014 consultation document. 

10.7 A range of advice, training and guidance  is available to CMs and there is a 
willingness to seek it 

CMs consistently told us that they value and regularly seek advice on management from 
NRW, CADW and RSPB.   

NRW provide a written summary of their recommendations for SSSIs and detailed Water 
and Nutrient Management Plans for contracts in Priority 1 and 2 areas.  There is also a good 
system for the provision of advice on the historic environment. CADW provide written reports 
on scheduled ancient monuments and Archaeological Trusts provide written reports on other 
significant undesignated features. CMs also report frequent, informal contact with RSPB, 
though here advice is often verbal, or provided through e-mail exchange. 

There is a programme of training in the management required for particular objectives, often 
run by partner organisations, which CMs say they find useful.  More senior CMs are also 
encouraged to mentor their colleagues in areas in which they have acquired particular 
expertise. CMs also regularly seek advice from colleagues on a less formal basis. 

In addition, CMs have access to a range of purpose-made guidance material. 

10.8 The scheme can deliver for more than just its specific objectives  

Amongst the sample contracts that we looked at was one contract that was intended to 
benefit a small number of specific insects. However it included a good package of measures 
that we felt was also likely to benefit a wide range of generalist species, including pollinators 
and the natural enemies of crop pests. This highlighted the potential spin-off benefits of 
options such as red clover and fallow margins. 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 38



 

 17 

11. Areas where  there  is room  for improvement 

 

11.1 The definition of some objective maps 

The Welsh Government’s 2014 consultation document (Welsh Government 2014) 
recognised that a potential difficulty faced by CMs in delivering Glastir Advanced scheme is 
the accuracy and resolution of the objective GIS data layers which support the scheme.  

We were not able to conduct a complete review of the data layers, but we did encounter 
several examples of ‘broad brush’ objective maps making it difficult for CMs to develop fully 
cost effective contracts. In the sample contracts we looked at, the most clear cut examples 
were a small group of species, including lesser butterfly orchid, Euphrasia anglica, the brown 
banded and shrill carder bees and arable plants.  CMs had accepted the species objective(s) 
and included management for one or more of these species in eleven out of the fifteen 
contracts sampled, with seven of the fifteen having more than one of these objectives (see 
Table 2).  In many of these cases they had relied on the targeting maps, without supporting 
evidence that the species were present on or within a suitable distance of the farm.  

Table 2.  Sample contracts with ‘broad brush’ species as accepted objectives 

Contract Lesser 
Butterfly 
Orchid 

Euphrasia 
anglica 

Brown 
Banded 
Carder 
Bee 

Shrill 
Carder 
Bee 

Arable 
plants 

Total no. of 
these 
objectives 
per 
contract 

1      0 
2      0 
3     Y 1 
4   Y   1 
5      0 
6 Y  Y Y Y 4 
7  Y    1 
8  Y   Y 2 
9 Y     1 
10      0 
11 Y Y Y   3 
12   Y Y  2 
13    Y Y 2 
14  Y Y   2 
15 Y Y Y   3 
Total no. of 
contracts 
with this 
objective 

4 5 6 3 4  

 

The current mapping of the upland carbon soils objective is also ‘broad brush’ in some 
places with occasional inaccuracies identified.   

 

Tudalen y pecyn 39



 

 18 

11.2 Management for some species objectives 

The Welsh Government’s 2014 consultation document recognised that concerns had been 
raised that the direction to CMs was that they should ideally be looking to do at least one 
activity for all the potential objectives identified, might lead to a “tick box” approach, whereby 
only a minimum amount of activity is pinned to each objective to deliver a contract.  

We found a mixed picture in the sample contracts, as is evidenced by the fact that seven of 
the fifteen sample contracts were classified as of uneven quality, with some objectives being 
addressed well and others less well.  In this group of contracts, we found a substantial 
number of instances where species objectives had been less well addressed. These 
included several examples of objectives that were supported by a single action. The 
Euphrasia anglica objective was supported by a single action in three of the five samples 
where it had been accepted.  The marsh fritillary objective was supported by a single action 
in three out of its four contracts and the water vole objective by a single action in two out of 
its three contracts. By contrast, the mean number of actions supporting the lesser horseshoe 
bat objective in the seven contracts in the sample, where it had been accepted, was eleven. 

Some of this variation can be explained by differences in the ecology and management 
requirements of the different species.  Bats are wide ranging species and so need action 
over a wide area, whereas others may occur in very small areas and have simple 
management requirements.  This would certainly explain the small number of actions 
supporting the objectives for highly restricted species, such as upland juniper and arctic 
alpine plants, but it does not appear to explain all the variation we observed. 

CMs told us that they feel obliged to record at least one management action for each 
objective and we came across at least one case where a CM had insisted on including 
actions for a species objective in a contract despite having doubts about whether it was 
appropriate for the holding.  

We also got the impression from several conversations that some CMs regarded the 
allocation of one action as sufficient for some of the objectives that they did not see as 
representing the main thrust of the contract. 

Even where more substantive actions had been taken, we were not convinced that these 
would always be effective, especially for species with complex habitat requirements.  The 
actions often appeared to be incomplete, and occasionally inappropriate.  

In some cases this appears to have been caused by unresolved tensions between the need 
to restore to or maintain in favourable condition habitats within designated areas (driven by 
NRW) and the need to accommodate the needs of some rare and declining species.  In one 
particular case this had resulted in management being located outside the designated area 
that was suboptimal, if not unsuitable for the species concerned. 

We were also concerned that the sample contracts may not succeed in helping more mobile 
species and/or those that require complex, landscape scale management packages.  Except 
in a very few cases, there was little evidence that the actions on particular farms were being 
planned as part of a wider species conservation strategy.   

Tudalen y pecyn 40



 

 19 

In making these observations we are not being critical of CMs.  Assembling a multi-objective 
contract for a large holding is difficult enough.  Adding into it well designed packages of 
measures for individual species, whilst avoiding conflicts between objectives, makes the task 
more complex.  When there are a substantial number of different species that all need to be 
catered for it becomes an even more complex task, requiring very wide ecological 
knowledge. 

11.3 The actions taken  for flood management 

Flood management is a major objective of the scheme.  Ten of the fifteen contracts sampled 
included management for a flood risk management objective and in five of those ten 
contracts these objectives scored more than ten (Table 1.) In most of these contracts, the 
high score was reflected in a considerable number of actions intended to reduce flood risk.  

We found the multiplicity of objective layers for flood risk management difficult to understand, 
and we were concerned that CMs were not able to explain the differences between the 
objectives or whether the different objectives required different actions.   

We understand that the inclusion of these objective in the scheme were informed by the 
farmer-led Pontbren Project (Keenleyside, undated ), which showed the importance of run-
off from sheep grazed grasslands on clay soils and that planting small strips of trees across 
slopes in carefully positioned locations could help to substantially reduce the rates of run-off 
(Jackson et al. 2008). This could in turn significantly reduce peak flows, at least at a local 
scale. We also understand that the mathematical models developed from the Pontbren 
project were used to help develop the target maps for these objective layers (Welsh 
Government. pers.comm.) The Polyscape mathematical model can be used to suggest 
where such interventions are likely to be most effective. 

Defra has also financed three more catchment-scale pilot projects in England as part of the 
Multi-Objective Flood Management Demonstration Scheme. These are in the Upper Derwent 
Catchment in Derbyshire, around Pickering, North Yorkshire and on the Horner Water and 
Aller catchments on the Holnicote Estate in Somerset. The interventions tested in these 
pilots include: 

 Moorland restoration in the headwaters  
 Extending woodland on the moorland edge 
 Development of in-channel woody debris dams 
 Implementation of best practice in-bye grassland and associated soil management 
 Implementation of best practice arable soil management 
 Blocking flow pathways such as drains, trackways and erosion gullies between 

hillslope runoff generation areas and receiving arterial watercourses  
 Creation of flood meadows on the middle floodplain 

The Holnicote project (Rose et al. 2010), is showing that, used carefully and in the right 
places, a range of interventions can help reduce flooding.  This project has also developed a 
mathematical model to predict the impact of particular interventions in particular locations 
within the catchment and it is claimed this model can be easily adapted to other catchments 
(Rose pers. comm.). 

Tudalen y pecyn 41



 

 20 

Table 3 summarises the actions deployed to reduce flood risk in the five sample Glastir 
Advanced contracts where flood risk reduction made a major contribution to the score for the 
holding.  These include actions to create or maintain a taller less tightly grazed sward, to 
retain semi-natural habitats, to restore or create new boundary features, to manage 
streamside corridors and to restore farm woodlands.    

Table 3.   Actions deployed for the flood risk reduction objective in sample Glastir Advanced 
contracts where this was a major objective 

Action Sample 
a 

Sample 
b 

Sample 
c 

Sample 
d 

Sample 
e 

Situation Estuarin
e flood 
plain 

River 
valley 

Riparian 
Flood 
plain 

Upland 
fringe 

River 
valley 
and 
upland 
fringe 

15 Grazed pasture no 
inputs 

Y    Y 

15b Grazed pasture low 
inputs 

   Y  

15d Grazed pasture low 
inputs mixed stocking 

  Y   

120 Unimproved acid 
grassland 

    Y 

133 Marshy grassland    Y  
595 Post & wire fencing 
with netting 

Y Y  Y Y 

600 Timber field gates, 
softwood 

Y Y  Y  

589 Hedge 
planting/coppicing 

   Y Y 

588 Hedge laying  Y    
585 Dry stone wall 
restoration 

 Y    

601 Top wiring  Y    
156 Buffer to prevent 
erosion 

 Y    

173 Streamside corridor 
management 

Y     

100 Woodland stock 
exclusion 

  Y* Y Y 

684 Thin broadleaf and 
extract 

   Y  

631 Restocking 
broadleaves – PAWS etc. 

   Y  

647 Rabbit guards    Y  
613 basic restocking, under 
5ha 

   Y  

*Not formally tagged to a flood defence objective, but the Contract Manager said this was 
part of the reason for using the action 

Most if not all of these actions have been shown to be helpful in flood risk management, 
either at Pontbren or other pilot flood risk reduction projects.   

Tudalen y pecyn 42



 

 21 

The five sample contracts were in a variety of situations, coastal plain, river flood plain, river 
valley and upland fringe catchments of headwater streams and there was some evidence 
that the mix of actions reflected the situation. There was woodland management in the 
upland fringe, a reliance of hedges and other boundary features in the river valleys and 
grassland management on the flood plain.  Our discussions with CMs convinced us that 
most were doing their best with the tools available to them, but we did not come across any 
evidence that the interventions on particular holdings were being planned as part of a wider 
strategy for the catchment.  One contract was immediately adjacent to an undeveloped 
estuary and the Panel was uncertain why flood risk reduction was important in this situation.   

A key lesson from the Pontbren Project is that ‘for land management to be effective for flood 
risk requires coordinated interventions across catchments’ (Pagella et al. undated), so this 
lack of coordination is likely to adversely affect the effectiveness of the management.  
Holding back water in the wrong place could even be counterproductive. 

11.4 Avoiding excessive habitat homogeneity In two specific instances 

It has been recognised for some time that there is an inherent risk with all agri-environmental 
schemes that standardised management options, applied across a wide area, will promote 
excessively uniform habitats.  This can in turn limit the range of species they can support 
(Webb et al. 2010).  Glastir Advanced, with its emphasis on management for individual 
species, is probably less prone to this than previous schemes, but there are two specific 
instances where this does appear to be a risk:   

Open hill grassland and moorland 

Almost all the contracts in the sample that included this habitat were being managed under 
option 41a (Grazed Open Country) with Additional Management Payment 411 (Reduce 
Stocking). Under option 41a grazing levels are calculated on the basis of the mix of habitats 
present in the land parcel. Under AMP 411 a further reduction is required beyond this level. 

Further stock reductions will often be justified in this habitat, both for the conservation of soil 
carbon and for habitat management reasons, but in some cases the payment for reduced 
stocking was being made even though heterogeneity in the form of shorter, more heavily 
grazed areas would have benefitted species such as curlew, chough and ring ouzel, or 
where there was little evidence based on the condition of the habitat of the need for 
additional stock reduction. Discussing this with CMs, there appear to be two reasons for this: 

 The need to achieve or maintain favourable condition of upland habitats trumped the 
needs of individual species.  

 The fact that most areas of this habitat are covered by multiple objectives, but the 
choice of management actions is limited. Coupled with an ‘every objective needs an 
action’ approach to scheme implementation, this creates a structural imperative 
within the scheme to use both the basic option and the reduced stocking supplement 
in order to ensure that there was an action booked against each objective.  

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 43



 

 22 

The first of these reasons concerns management policy for the protection of designated sites 
rather than the working of Glastir Advanced.  The second does seem to be a by-product of 
scheme design.  Both could be at least partly addressed by greater use of the stock 
management supplement, but CMs told us that it was very difficult to persuade farmers to 
take up this option because of the way that the area over which it could be paid was 
determined.  Under current scheme rules this supplement can only be paid to achieve the 
desired outcome on a specific area, an area that has to be protected from excessive grazing 
or one where intensive grazing has to be encouraged. It cannot be paid over the whole area 
of land that needs to be shepherded to achieve this. 

11.5 Woodland 

The other instance where the scheme may unintentionally be promoting excessive uniformity 
is in woodland management. The scheme rules state that at least 80% of the area of farm 
woodland on a holding should have stock excluded from it unless there are sound ecological 
reasons for maintaining the current grazing levels.  With one exception, the CMs that we 
questioned on woodland management did not mention this caveat. It is apparent that the 
scheme is suffering from a shortage of specialist woodland advice and, taken together with 
the 80% rule, this seems to have meant that in most woodlands the only management 
undertaken has been to exclude stock. 

We have sought independent expert advice on this (Kirby pers. comm.). This advice is that 
whilst there has been a widespread problem of overgrazing in Welsh woodlands, there are 
some types of woodland and associated priority species that benefit from light grazing. The 
widespread use of stock exclusion does risk replacing one kind of uniformity with another.  

Until the introduction of a light grazing option, option 176, in 2014, the scheme did not 
include an option for reducing rather than preventing grazing in woodlands, which, until now, 
seems to have been an omission, given that the monitoring of Tir Gofal found that light 
grazing of woodland under that scheme had ‘produced the most positive change’ (Metcalfe 
et al. 2012). We did however establish that CMs can request derogations from the 80% rule 
where they feel it is either inappropriate or impractical.  

11.6 Coordination with Glastir Woodland  

The Panel reviewed one contract where a woodland adviser had provided input and where 
the internal management of the woodlands appeared to have been carefully integrated with 
the management of the rest of the holding.  Glastir is designed to encourage such 
integration, but this feature of the scheme design does not appear to have been fully 
exploited.  We also reviewed several contracts on well-wooded holdings which had not 
benefitted from specialist woodland adviser input. This appears to be due to a shortage of 
specialist woodland advisers. 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 44



 

 23 

11.7 Ensuring value for money from capital payments for stone wall restoration, fencing 
and gates  

We were struck by the variation between contracts in the amount spent on these items.  Part 
of this seems to relate to the extent to which these items were tackled in previous contracts 
but this does not appear to be the only cause of the variation.  

Several CMs explained that it is often necessary to include these items in a contract to make 
it into an attractive package and so secure more environmentally valuable management. 
Stone wall restoration, hedge laying, planting or coppicing are popular with farmers, 
contribute to landscape character and provide habitat for some species, but they are high 
cost items, even though there are ceilings for the amount that can be included in a contract.  
Some CMs have said that they try to give priority to walls or hedges that produce multiple 
benefits, for example by allowing differential grazing of adjacent parcels, or by providing 
habitat corridors.   This would seem to be good practice.  Most fencing seems to be 
commissioned to support another environmental objective, such as conservation grazing or 
pollution protection, but the linkages are not always clear. 

11.8 The clarity of the contract documentation supplied to farmers 

We found it difficult to get to grips with the information supplied to us on the sample 
contracts.  The contract maps were always printed on several sheets with multiple overlaps, 
and the codes used to identify the management options and capital items used in each 
parcel could only be interpreted by laborious cross referencing to tables in the contract 
document.  There was also nothing in the contract that explained to the farmer why the 
management specified in the contract was being undertaken, though they were provided 
with separate, generic technical guidance. 

One CM explained to us that when negotiating Glastir contracts he prepares his own 
simplified sets of draft contract documentation in order to discuss the management with the 
farmer.  This includes a contract map on a single sheet of paper and simplified written 
material. 

11.9 Follow up after a contract has been entered into 

We asked several CMs how they would know whether the management they had specified 
in their contracts was working.  Most made reference to the monitoring and evaluation 
programme, but some also said that they felt follow up visits to look at the progress of a 
contract would be valuable.  We were struck by the contrast between the intense effort that 
goes into negotiating and setting up a contract and the absence of systematic follow-up 
support to contract holders.  Follow up advisory visits were provided under the Tir Gofal 
scheme and it is not clear that there are any differences in scheme design that would render 
them superfluous under Glastir Advanced. 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 45



 

 24 

11.10 Control of mink  

Mink is a wide ranging species, so effective control is likely to require coordinated, consistent 
action across a wide area.  Glastir is a voluntary, discretionary scheme operating at the 
holding level, and is therefore not an ideal instrument for achieving this. Even where 
contracts fall within a target area, this does not guarantee that control measures will be 
taken. Three of the sample contracts lie within target areas for the’ Mink control in water vole 
priority areas’ objective, but this was rejected in two out of the three contracts, presumably 
because the land manager was not keen to adopt this action.  

12. Conclusions  

In commissioning this desk evaluation, the Welsh Government was seeking 
recommendations on how to ensure that Glastir Advanced is better placed to deliver and to 
address the concerns already identified in the 2014 consultation on Glastir within the next 
Rural Development programme and in the recent Wales Audit Office report (Wales Audit 
Office 2014).  

In the course of developing these recommendations, the Panel was asked to assess how 
well the signed contracts are likely to deliver against the objectives for which they were 
selected. On the basis of our study, we have concluded that, taken as a whole, there is a 
good prospect that most Glastir Advanced contracts will deliver against most of their 
objectives, though we have found generic weaknesses in the management for individual 
species and in that for flood risk reduction.   

The Glastir Advanced design, with its multi-layer GIS-based targeting system and the linking 
of actions to objectives, is innovative and provides a sound foundation for a successful, 
multi-objective scheme.  However, our review has confirmed some of the concerns about the 
way in which the scheme is currently delivered, which does not always make the best use of 
this foundation. 

We present below a series of recommendations that we believe will help Glastir Advanced 
realise its full potential.  A number of these recommendations may add to running costs.  
The issue of running costs was highlighted by the Wales Audit Office report on Glastir 
(Wales Audit Office 2014), which expressed concern that the running costs of the scheme 
are not routinely monitored.  There is a risk that measuring running costs will lead to a focus 
just on the costs, rather than taking into account the effectiveness of scheme administration 
in achieving the scheme’s objectives.  The Wales Audit Office itself recognises the value of 
additional expenditure (e.g. to facilitate landscape-scale workingIt would seem sensible for 
the Welsh Government, as well as monitoring running costs, to seek a broader measure of 
the cost-effectiveness of scheme administration, enabling cases to be made for additional, 
necessary investments. 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 46



 

 25 

13. Recommendations 

R1. Some of the target area maps need to be further refined 

The Panel’s findings have confirmed that some target areas appear to be too broad to be 
fully effective in targeting management.  There is a risk that some of these very broad target 
areas are leading to management being undertaken that does not benefit the objective and 
which distorts the environmental priorities of the scheme.  Most of the examples we came 
across are species objectives and we recommend that the Welsh Government works with 
the responsible NGOs to refine the target maps for the following objectives as soon as 
possible: 

 Lesser Butterfly Orchid  
 Euphrasia anglica 
 Brown Banded Carder Bee 
 Shrill Carder Bee  
 Arable plants.   

The target map for the upland carbon soils objective would also benefit from refining using 
the Unified Peatland dataset, which appears to be generally more accurate.  

Within the limitation of our desk-based assessment, we were not able to undertake a 
comprehensive review of the other broadly defined target area maps, but this is desirable, as 
the Welsh Government has already identified. 

 

R2. Additional procedures are needed to ensure that the objectives addressed are appropriate 
and the management for those objectives is appropriate and sufficient 

The Welsh Government’s 2014 consultation document recognised that concerns had been 
raised that the direction to CMs, that they should ideally be looking to do at least one activity 
for all the potential objectives identified, might lead to a “tick box” approach, whereby only a 
minimum amount of activity is pinned to each objective to deliver a contract.  

The original purpose of the direction, to ensure that CMs do consider all the objectives that a 
holding has the potential to deliver for, remains sound. However, the Panel found cases 
where objectives that we felt should have been rejected had been accepted.   

We also found cases where the activity recorded against some objectives that had been 
accepted was minimal, as well as cases where we felt that the management was 
inappropriate.  

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 47



 

 26 

To avoid these problems in future, CMs should be encouraged to include two extra steps in 
the process of assembling contracts: 

 A relevance test, particularly for objectives with very broad target areas.  The 
purpose of this is to determine whether action on this particular holding will really 
benefit the objective.  For species objectives this might include looking at distribution 
data, such as that available under an existing contract with Local Record Centres, to 
see if the species is on, or within range of the holding.  Also looking at habitat 
preferences to see if there are areas of suitable habitat, or areas with the potential to 
become suitable.  Contract Managers should be encouraged to reject objectives that 
fail this relevance test. 

 A sufficiency and appropriateness test, checking the package of options and capital 
items being deployed for each objective to check that they can, together, provide the 
management needed to achieve the objective, either on the holding or as part of a 
wider landscape-scale approach.  It is particularly important to conduct this test for 
species objectives, since many species may have quite complex habitat 
requirements that cannot be secured by a single option or capital item. If it there are 
genuine reasons why it is not possible to assemble a sufficient package of actions, 
the objective should be rejected. 

 

R3. Contract Managers need more high quality guidance, support and training 

To be able to successfully carry out tests of relevance and sufficiency, CMs need high 
quality guidance on the management conditions and, for species objectives, the habitat 
requirements that need to be provided to ensure that an objective can be achieved.  Good 
guidance already exists for some objectives.  It needs to be commissioned where it does 
not.  Given the wide range of environmental issues they are expected to know about, CMs 
are likely to need training and site-specific advice as well as written guidance. 

CMs would benefit from a further strengthening of the system of mentoring, with all individual 
CMs, not just HEOs, being encouraged to develop expertise in management for one or more 
objectives and then to use this expertise to advise their colleagues. 

CMs value the formal advice they receive from NRW, CADW etc. and the informal advice 
that they get from RSPB.  They would benefit from more advice on management, particularly 
for the species objectives. It is recommended that Welsh Government and the Welsh 
environmental NGOs review the scope to extend this advice, both on generic management 
principles and their site specific implementation.  

CMs would benefit from additional guidance on the extent to which they can use payments 
for stone wall restoration, hedge restoration and planting, fencing and farm gates to 
persuade a farmer to take up an otherwise unattractive package of management.  This could 
stress the desirability of trying to get added value from these capital items, by giving 
preference to items in locations that support other objectives, for example by facilitating 
differential grazing.  

CMs need additional explanation of the differences between the various flood risk reduction 
and water quality objectives and how these relate to management requirements. 

Tudalen y pecyn 48



 

 27 

R4. Some specific actions are needed to avoid the risk that the scheme will promote excessive 
uniformity of management in woodland and upland habitats 

As the area of woodland covered by Glastir Advanced increases, there is a risk that, in 
tackling the widespread problem of overgrazing in woodlands, the guidance that stock 
should be excluded from 80% of the woodland area will impose a new uniformity on 
woodland management.  This guidance does provide CMs with a strong negotiating position 
with farmers, but we recommend that CMs should be given additional training and 
encouragement to consider woodlands, and the species they support, on an individual basis, 
looking at whether the woodlands are actually suffering excessive grazing, whether 
excluding grazing would risk damage, and, if so, whether light grazing might be more 
appropriate. Tools are available for assessing the degree of grazing in woodland (e.g. 
Thompson et al. 2004).  

A Light Grazing option was introduced to Glastir Advanced in 2014 (Option 176 which allows 
grazing of between 0.1and 0.4 livestock units between 1 October – 31 December). We 
recommend that CMs are given specific training on when and where this should be used. 

Because the number of objective layers in these areas is often large, but the choice of 
actions is limited, CMs should be allowed to depart from the minimum one action per 
objective rule in open hill country where management would be artificially constrained if the 
rule were adhered to. It may also be worth exploring whether CMs could be encouraged to 
use a greater range of management actions, such as re-wetting, (in these areas where they 
will help achieve the desired outcomes. 

The payment for and/or rules governing the application of the stock management AMP 
should be reviewed to make it more attractive to farmers. At the moment it can only be paid 
to achieve the desired outcome on a specific area, an area that has to be protected from 
excessive grazing or one where intensive grazing has to be encouraged. It needs to be paid 
over the whole area that has to be shepherded to achieve this aim in order to accurately 
reflect the costs and time involved. 

If this AMP were paid in this way that should enable it to be more widely used to adjust 
grazing levels within large blocks of open country and so maintain a diversity of habitats. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 49



 

 28 

R5. Actions for flood risk reduction need to be planned on a catchment scale 

We recommend that the delivery of the flood risk reduction objectives should be subject to 
an urgent, expert review to improve its effectiveness. Using land management actions to 
reduce flood risk is a comparatively new area of work, where the evidence base is rapidly 
developing.  The current approach within Glastir Advanced needs to be updated to take this 
into account.  

The key improvement that is needed is for land management actions to be delivered in a co-
ordinated way at a catchment scale, taking into account the insights from pilot projects and 
mathematical models about the cumulative effect of interventions on flooding and about 
which interventions are most effective in which locations.  CMs need guidance on how to 
choose and locate the actions on an individual holding so that they make an optimal 
contribution to a wider flood risk management strategy. Expert guidance at the site level may 
be helpful as a first step, but catchment-specific advice, based on mathematical models of 
individual catchments, is highly desirable.  The modelling work being undertaken as part of 
the Glastir Modelling and Evaluation Programme may be helpful in this. 

We recommend that steps are taken as quickly as possible to allow the actions for flood risk 
management within Glastir Advanced contracts to be delivered within a coordinated, 
catchment-scale framework. We also recommend delaying the implementation of flood risk 
management actions until such a framework is in place, otherwise there is a high risk that 
implemented actions will be ineffective. With the complexity of hydrological processes within 
catchments there is potential in some cases for them to even be counter-productive. 

Because holdings in flood risk reduction target areas often score highly, these target areas 
may also need to be reviewed to ensure that that they focus on the areas where land 
management actions really will result in reductions in flood risk.  

R6. More needs to be done to encourage and help fund facilitation and partnership working in 
order to establish landscape scale working where it is needed 

The limited time available, and the fact that the coverage of Glastir Advanced contracts is 
still relatively limited, has meant that the Panel has not been able to fully evaluate landscape 
scale working within the scheme.   

We have found existing elements of good practice that are helping to achieve coordinated 
landscape-scale delivery for some objectives in some areas. We have has also found 
examples, particularly in the conservation of mobile species and in flood risk management, 
where the lack of such coordinated delivery is an obstacle to effective delivery.  The 
elements of good practice that we found need to be more widely applied in situations where 
landscape-scale of delivery is required to achieve success. Doing this will require additional 
resources.  

The key to success seems to be first a decision to invest in a particular objective in a 
particular area and then to encourage cooperative action by investing in facilitation through 
partnership working, as was recognised in the Welsh Government’s 2014 consultation 
paper.  

Tudalen y pecyn 50



 

 29 

Others with specialist skills and local knowledge are needed to help CMs establish what 
actions are needed in which locations, to raise awareness of and support for the objective in 
the farming community and to persuade farmers with key holdings to enter the scheme.  We 
recommend that scheme resources are made available to pay for this facilitation, either 
within Glastir Advanced, or through the proposed part-farm Habitat Network scheme, or 
both.   

R7. Glastir Advanced is not the ideal mechanism to use for the control of mobile pest species 

As a voluntary, discretionary scheme, Glastir Advanced is not the most obvious mechanism 
for the delivery of control measures for highly mobile species, such as mink. Ideally, an 
alternative mechanism should be found that is capable of delivering coordinated action on all 
holdings across a wide area.  If this is not possible, then these objectives should be amongst 
those where cooperative action is prioritised and mechanisms sought that could involve 
farmers who are not participating in the scheme. 

R8. Coordination with other schemes needs to be maintained and improved 

The approach to delivery of a number of objectives, including water quality, flood risk 
reduction, species conservation and landscape character could be improved if farm 
woodland management funded under Glastir Woodlands was considered in the wider, 
landscape context and was more fully integrated with the management of the farmland and 
woodland boundaries under Glastir Advanced. This would require more woodland advice to 
be provided as a matter of some urgency, since current capacity is very limited. 

As Glastir Efficiency Grants are replaced by the new Sustainable Production Grants, it is 
vital to ensure that water quality issues are still tackled in a coordinated way. Glastir 
Efficiency has funded mainly in-yard investments, whereas Glastir Advanced funds mainly 
off-yard investments, but there is both overlap and considerable interaction between the two 
sets of investments, meaning that they need to be planned together. 

Glastir Advanced CMs should also be encouraged to look critically at any management 
already in place under Glastir Entry.  In cases where a basic option such as ‘Grazed Pasture 
With Reduced Inputs’ is not sufficient or appropriate to deliver the objectives from a parcel of 
land, CMs should be encouraged to insist that management is upgraded to appropriate 
Glastir Advanced options. 

R9. The wider value of some management needs to be recognised 

Amongst the sample contracts that we looked at was one contract where a package of 
measures were put in place to benefit a particular insect, was also likely to benefit a range of 
generalist species including pollinators and the natural enemies of crop pests.  We 
recommend that the Welsh Government asks the Glastir Monitoring and Evaluation 
Programme to document some of these likely spin-off benefits so that they can be accounted 
for in the scheme evaluation and so that CMs can be advised how to make the most of them, 
without losing the primary focus on the objectives for which the contract has been selected. 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 51



 

 30 

R10. Contracts need more follow up visits and advice 

All Glastir Advanced contracts should be visited at least once during their lifetime in order to 
check that the contract holder has understood and is correctly implementing the 
management specified in the contract and to deal with any problems that have arisen. This 
visit should be advisory and distinct from any inspections of the holding. The ideal time to 
visit would probably be at about the end of the first year of the contract, when the farmer 
should have implemented the management and when there is still time to correct mistakes. 
This work could be contracted out, which would have the advantage of clearly separating the 
visits from the inspection process. Using CMs to do the work would have many advantages, 
both for contract holders and for CMs future work, but would impact on other aspects of 
delivery unless the number of CMs could be increased.  

The issue of the documentation supplied to contract holders lies outside the remit of this 
evaluation. However, the Panel do feel that the current format of contract documentation 
needs some improvement to remove barriers to understanding by contract holders. We 
would suggest that: 

 Contract maps should, wherever possible, consist of a single sheet. Where this is not 
possible, multiple overlaps should be avoided and the maps presented as a series of 
‘tiles’. 

 Management options and capital items should be directly identifiable on the contract 
maps, without the need to cross-reference to the contract document parcel-by-parcel. 

The contract should include a short summary of the purpose of the management options and 
capital items that the contract is designed to deliver.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Tudalen y pecyn 52



 

 31 

14.  References 

Emmett B, Abdalla M, Anthony S, Astbury S, August T, Barrett G, Biggs J, Botham M, 
Bradley, D, Brown M, Carter H, Chadwick D, Cigna F, Cooper D, Cooper J, Cosby B, Creer 
S, Cross P, Edwards F, Edwards M, Evans C, Ewald N, Fitton A, Garbutt A, Grebby S, 
Greene S, Halfpenney I, Hall J, Harrison S, Harrower C, Henrys P, Hobson R, Hughes S, 
Isaac N, Jackson B, Jarvis S, Jones D, Keith A, Kelly M, Korenko J, Lallias D, Leaver D, 
Lebron I, Malcolm H, Maskell L, McDonald J, Moxley J, Norton L, O’Hare M, Owen A, 
Pereira M, Peyton J, Powney, G, Pywell R, Rawlins B, Robinson D, Rorke S, Rowland C, 
Roy D, Scarlett P, Scholefield P, Scott A, Scott L, Scott R, Siriwardena G, Smart S, Smith P, 
Swetnam R, Taylor R, Tordoff G, Van Breda J, Vincent H, Wagner M, Waters E, Watkins J, 
White J, Williams B, Wood C, Wright S. (2014) Glastir Monitoring & Evaluation Programme. 
First Year Annual Report to Welsh Government (Contract reference: C147/2010/11). 
NERC/Centre for Ecology & Hydrology (CEH Project: NEC04780), pp.442 
http://wales.gov.uk/docs/drah/publications/140701-gmep-annual-report.pdf 

Everett, S. (2013) Conservation News. British Wildlife 25 (1): p66.  

Jackson, B. M.; Wheater, H. S.; McIntyre, N. R.; Chell, J.; Francis, O. J.; Frogbrook, Z.; Marshall, M.; 
Reynolds, B.; Solloway, I.. 2008 The impact of upland land management on flooding: insights from a 
multiscale experimental and modelling programme. Journal of Flood Risk Management, 1. 71-80. 

Keenleyside C. (undated) The Pontbren Project: A farmer-led approach to sustainable land 
management in the uplands. Report produced by the Woodland Trust in association with Coed Cymru 
and the Pontbren Farmer’s Group. 

MacDonald M, Morris A, Dodd S, Johnstone I, Beresford A, Angell R, Haysom K, Langton S, Tordoff 
G, Brereton T, Hobson R, Shellswell C, Hutchinson N, Dines T, Wilberforce E, Parry R, Matthews V 
(2012) Welsh Assembly Government Contract 183/2007/08 to Undertake Agri-environment Monitoring 
and Services: Lot 2 – Species Monitoring - Final report 
http://wales.gov.uk/docs/drah/publications/130917report2speciesen.pdf  

Metcalfe K, Whittick E, Turton N, Cross D. (2012) Welsh agri-environment monitoring Lot 1: Habitats – 
Final report. A report produced for the Welsh Government by Environment Systems and Thompson 
Ecology http://wales.gov.uk/docs/drah/publications/130917report1habitatsen.pdf  

Mountford, J.O. & Cooke, A.I. (Editors), Amy, S.R., Baker, A., Carey, P.D., Dean, H.J., Kirby, 
V.G., Nisbet, A., Peyton, J.M., Pywell, R.F., Redhead, J.W. & Smart, S.M. (2013) Monitoring 
the outcomes of Higher Level Stewardship: Results of a 3-year contract monitoring 
programme. Natural England Commissioned Reports, Number 114. 

Pagella T,  Reynolds B, Frogbrook Z, Wheater H, Marshall M, Jackson B, Henshaw A, Sinclair F. 
(undated) Pont Bren Case study: Developing markets for ecosystem services in Welsh and English 
catchments. Case study presentation 
http://www.werh.org/documents/TimPagellaPontBrenCaseStudy.pdf  

Rose S, Rosolova Z, Lamb R, Worrall P, Hammond G, Hester N. (2011) Holnicote Multi-Objective 
Flood Management Demonstration Project. An Analysis of the Impacts of Rural Land Management 
Change on Flooding and Flood Risk. A position paper. 

Thompson R, Peace A, Poulsom E (2004) A judgement-based method to identify overgrazing in 
English upland native woodland. English Nature Research Reports 621. 

Tudalen y pecyn 53

http://wales.gov.uk/docs/drah/publications/140701-gmep-annual-report.pdf
http://wales.gov.uk/docs/drah/publications/130917report2speciesen.pdf
http://wales.gov.uk/docs/drah/publications/130917report1habitatsen.pdf
http://www.werh.org/documents/TimPagellaPontBrenCaseStudy.pdf


 

 32 

Wales Audit Office (2014) Glastir 
http://www.wao.gov.uk/system/files/publications/Glastir_English_2014.pdf 

Webb J, Drewitt A, Measures G. 2010. Managing for species: Integrating the needs of England’s 
priority species into habitat management. Part 1 Report.  Natural England Research Report 
NERR024. 

Welsh Government (2014) Proposals for the Glastir Scheme, part of the Rural Development 
Plan for Wales 2014-2020. Consultation document issued 23rd January 2014. 
http://wales.gov.uk/docs/drah/consultation/140123proposalsforglastirv1en.pdf 

Wildlife and Countryside Link (2013) A New Environmental Land Management Scheme for 
England. Internal Report for Department for Environment and Rural Affairs. Nobel House, 
London.  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 54

http://www.wao.gov.uk/system/files/publications/Glastir_English_2014.pdf
http://wales.gov.uk/docs/drah/consultation/140123proposalsforglastirv1en.pdf


 

Cyfarwyddwr Cyffredinol Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol/ 

Prif Weithredwr GIG Cymru 
Grŵp Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 
 
Director General Health and Social Services/ 
NHS Wales Chief Executive 
Health and Social Services Group 
 

 

 

 

Parc Cathays ● Cathays Park 
Caerdydd ● Cardiff 

CF10 3NQ  

 

Ffôn  ● Tel 02920 801182/1144 

Andrew.Goodall@wales.gsi.gov.uk 
 

Gwefan ● website: www.wales.gov.uk 

 

  
 
Darren Millar AM 
Chair 
Public Accounts Committee 
Cardiff Bay 
Cardiff 
CF99 1NA 

Our Ref: AG/KH 
07 August 2015 

 
Dear Mr Millar 
 
I write in response to your letter of 09 July in which you requested a response to the 
following questions in relation to unscheduled care: 
  
1. The Welsh Government’s view on whether there should be a higher target for the 

flu immunisation rate for frontline NHS staff, as the Committee recommended and 
the Minister indicated would be assessed following the 2014-15 flu season 

  
Vaccinating at least 50% of NHS staff with direct patient contact is a priority for the NHS.  
 
In recent years we have made good progress in improving uptake. This season, 44.3% of 
staff with direct patient contact had the flu vaccine across Wales compared to 41.7% in the 
previous year. This compares to just 18.5% in 2010-11. Three health boards/trusts (Betsi 
Cadwaladr, Powys and Velindre) achieved the 50% target this season. See full details 
below. 
 
This improvement demonstrates that the additional emphasis and effort directed towards 
staff vaccination is continuing to have an impact but we are still below where we need to be.  
There remains variation in uptake across health boards overall and the Minister for Health 
and Social Services has written to the poorer performing boards/trusts seeking assurances 
of future improvement.  The Chief Medical Officer has issued a Welsh Health Circular 
stating that NHS leaders should be exploring the full range of measures necessary to 
address low uptake and should demonstrate strong clinical leadership in helping staff 
understand that if they refuse to be vaccinated, they put themselves, their families and the 
people they care for at unnecessary risk. 
 
While we share the ambition of the committee to continually improve vaccination rates, we do 
not regard an increase in the target at this stage as the most effective means of securing 
further improvements.  Negative attitudes to flu vaccination still exist within parts of the 

Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus / Public Accounts Committee 
PAC(4)-22-15 PTN4

Tudalen y pecyn 55

Eitem 2.4

mailto:Simon.Dean@wales.gsi.gov.uk
www.wales.gov.uk


NHS and setting a target that is achievable is likely to provide a more sustained 
improvement over time.  
 
We will continue to engage in constructive dialogue with health boards to encourage more 
staff to have the flu vaccine and to more robustly address those negative attitudes which 
act as a barrier to the improvements we seek and expect. 
 
Uptake of Influenza immunisation in Health Boards:  2010-11 to 2014-15 

 2010-11 
 

2011-12 201-/13 2013-14 2014-15 

Abertawe Bro Morgannwg UHB 11.9% 23.5% 35.9% 41.1% 41.7% 
Aneurin Bevan UHB 24.6% 31.7% 37.6% 39.4% 39.2% 
Betsi Cadwaladr UHB 30.8% 37.6% 35.9% 41.0% 50.3% 
Cardiff and Vale UHB 18.3% 29.7% 36.5% 41.0% 46.7% 
Cwm Taf UHB 9.2% 35.5% 35.9% 41.1% 47.0% 
Hywel Dda UHB 10.5% 30.0% 29.8% 41.2% 37.1% 
Powys Teaching HB - 22.7% 36.8% 42.4% 50.4% 
Public Health Wales NHS Trust - - - 33.9% 41.2% 
Velindre NHS Trust - - - 47.1% 64.9% 
Wales Ambulance Service NHS 
Trust 

- - - 30.2% 31.0% 

Wales (Total) 18.5% 30.9% 35.5% 40.6% 44.3% 
 
2. Your reflections on how the Welsh Government monitors out of hours GP 

services, and whether the March 2015 report Review of General Practitioner Out of 
Hours Medical Services, relating to Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board, 
represented isolated problems, or if similar issues are arising elsewhere in Wales. 
We would be grateful to receive information on the performance data you require 
from Welsh Health Boards on their GP out of hours services and their 
performance against this for the past 12 months  
 

Welsh Government currently monitors GP out of hours services through the established 
processes of Quality and Delivery meetings with health boards, joint executive team 
meetings and regular unscheduled care conference calls. 

Following the Betsi Cadwaladr University Health Board out of hours review and the issues 
identified, Welsh Government asked the GP Out of Hours Providers’ Forum to identify a 
small number of key indicators which would provide valuable local intelligence and inform 
the national assessment.  Officials are expecting their response shortly. 

The Wales Quality and Monitoring Standards for the Delivery of Out of Hours Services was 
published in May 2014.  Health boards have been instructed that the standards should be 
delivered by March 2018.   Arrangements are currently being developed to monitor health 
boards’ progress towards introducing and achieving the standards; this will include a self 
assessment tool and a series of review visits by the NHS Delivery Unit, as well as more 
standardised data collection. 

There has been variation in the collecting and reporting of information on GP out of hours 
services, partly due to the different IT systems used by health boards. This has made all 
Wales comparisons difficult and I am unable to share data that is not robust. To address 
this, since September 2014, Welsh Government has been working with health boards to 
overcome the challenges and develop and test the collection of more consistent and reliable Tudalen y pecyn 56



information.  I issued the new data collection tool in July which will provide data on activity 
since April 2015, using the key access standards from the Wales Quality and Monitoring 
Standards for the Delivery of Out of Hours Services. The data collection will be reviewed in 
November before being formally mandated.  

The pressure on GP out of hours is a UK wide issue. All Health Boards in Wales have 
reported challenges in filling staff rotas with GPs for out of hours services. Welsh 
Government is working with Health Boards, Wales Deanery, Royal College of General 
Practitioners and others to develop national programmes to improve the supply and 
retention of GPs in Wales. At the same time health boards are looking for innovative ways 
of meeting demand more appropriately using other services and health professionals, for 
example pharmacists for repeat prescriptions, advanced nurse practitioners with authority to 
prescribe, and advanced paramedic practitioners to undertake some home visits. The 111 
pathfinder in ABMUHB will test the integration of the current Out of Hours call handling and 
NHS Direct services, providing an easy to remember free to call number that will signpost 
patients to the appropriate services or information.  

 
3. An update on action taken following the Welsh Government’s pilots in relation to 

the Committee’s recommendation on other unscheduled care performance 
measures 

 
The pilots were set up to investigate the opportunity to better describe patient experience 
within the unscheduled care pathway and to identify and measure the time to the key 
clinical interventions that have an impact on outcomes. Three of the pilots looked at 
measuring the time from call to treatment for conditions (stroke, fractured neck of femur and 
heart attack) where evidence demonstrates that the ‘total’ time is a crucial factor in 
delivering better outcomes. Two of the pilots investigated more appropriate measures of key 
interventions within the A&E Department.  

 
The pilots demonstrated that there are measures for unscheduled care that have the 
potential to better describe patients experience and support a move towards the 
measurement of outcomes, both within the A&E Department and across the unscheduled 
care pathway. However, the pilot work also identified that information systems across Wales 
are not at this point sufficiently aligned or consistent to be able to roll out these measures 
across Wales.   
 
The pilot work noted that the procurement of a new A&E system in parts of Wales and the 
consideration being given to implementing the Royal College of Emergency Medicine 
Emergency Care Dataset could support the implementation of new measures. The 
Unscheduled Care Programme Board has asked for further work to be undertaken in this 
area to understand the pilot findings, requirements, costs and the opportunities.    

  
4. An overview of how children should access unscheduled care, particularly when a 

children’s hospital is available, and whether parents and carers are aware of the 
appropriate action  

Children who need to access unscheduled care will be referred via local out of hours GP or 
access direct via the ambulance service, an Emergency Department or Minor Injuries Unit 
to appropriate secondary care services. In these circumstances the arrangements are 
always based on the clinical condition of the child and will vary according to their need. 
For the majority of children across Wales without an existing diagnosis, access to the 
Children’s Hospital would be via the local paediatric service.  The configuration of local 
paediatric services varies between Health Boards. Children with existing illnesses will often 

Tudalen y pecyn 57



have direct ‘open access’ to specialist wards with clear arrangements in place that parents 
can utilise when needed. Parents are often in close contact with the wards and individual 
staff in many cases. 

 
5. An update on the proposed 111 service, including whether a decision has been 

taken on the organisation that will host the service and any observable 
operational impact of the 111 service on the rest of the heath service. 

 
The 111 implementation project has worked closely with a wide range of stakeholders to 
develop proposals for a pathfinder pilot in Abertawe Bro Morgannwg University Health 
Board (ABMUHB) to test the service for Wales. The project team will continue to draw on 
the experiences from England and Scotland to develop the model for Wales, based on 
using a more skilled clinically led workforce with less reliance on risk averse algorithms.  

The originally proposed start date of October 2015 is to be rescheduled until the evaluation 
of the learning and development pilot work currently being undertaken in England can be 
assessed, this is due to be published in the autumn.  The project will also review work in 
Scotland and new pathways put in place in ABMUHB that will complement and support the 
111 service before proposing a new date.  The 111 service will be thoroughly tested before 
going live to ensure it is clinically safe and robust.  The evaluation of the pathfinder service 
will inform decisions regarding the future of the service and ensure issues and any 
unintended consequences are resolved in advance of any further roll out.   

The process for selecting the host organisation has been completed and the Minister for 
Health and Social Services has agreed that the Welsh Ambulance Service NHS Trust will 
host the pathfinder phase in ABMUHB. 111 provides a real opportunity to co-ordinate and 
manage the demand on unscheduled care for NHS Wales, meet the needs of patients 
within their own communities, avoid unnecessary hospital admission and reduce demand on 
acute hospital services. 

6. An updated assessment of how effectively efforts to manage demand are 
operating, including the Choose Well campaign, along with understanding 
patients’ choices, particularly when accessing accident and emergency  
 

Both the Choose Well campaign and NHS Direct Wales (NHSDW) emphasise the 
importance of supporting patients in choosing alternatives to hospital visits where 
appropriate. NHSDW Cat C triage typically supports the ambulance service to avoid over 
1,000 unnecessary ambulance journeys each month. A significant rise in NHSDW web 
based activity is an indication that the public are beginning to take responsibility for their 
own healthcare before contacting healthcare services. In 2014/15 the NHSDW web site 
received 4.5 million visits (not just hits) up from just 0.5 million 5 years ago. 
 
Welsh Government recently held a workshop with all Health Boards to assess progress of 
the choose well campaign and agree the next steps. It was agreed that a baseline of activity 
be developed so that performance indicators relating to impact can be established, to help 
assess impact of the campaign as choices made can be influenced by a variety of actions 
and activities. 
 
Specifically the ambulance service continues to implement a range of demand management 
initiatives, include development of the clinical desk in the control room increasing the rates 
of ‘hear and treat’. Specialist and advanced paramedics attending patients in their home, 
are showing promising results in rates of ‘see and treat’ and transport to places other than 
ED. The recent announcement of the clinical response model pilot, should further improve 
the ambulance services ability to efficiently manage the emergency demand it receives. Tudalen y pecyn 58



 
7. Information of how GPs’ compliance with their contracts is being monitored by 

Health Boards and the Welsh Government, in particular the provision of extended 
opening hours  

NHS Wales Shared Services Partnership (NWSSP), Health Boards and Welsh Government 
monitor GPs compliance with their GMS contracts.    
 
NWSSP has a dedicated Primary Care Services function which provides a wide range of 
services in relation to GP practices, in particular, annual scrutiny of primary care service 
system controls (in order to provide assurances to Health Boards the systems in place to 
pay GP practices are both efficient and accurate) and annual local claims verification audits 
undertaken on behalf of health boards ( In 2013/14, over 100,000 records were checked 
during 348 visits and approximately £260,000 was recovered for Health Boards from 
incorrect reimbursement claims in relation to General Medical and Ophthalmic services). In 
addition, NWSSP’s Primary Care Services ensures (a) GP practice patient list sizes are 
updated as patients leave and join GP practices (b) ensures the secure, timely and accurate 
transfer of paper medical records from GP practice to GP practice; and (c) ensures the safe 
inclusion and removal of Doctors onto individual Health Board’s Primary Care Performers 
Lists.  
 
Health Boards carry out a wide range of GP contract compliance checks, including general 
contract reviews, review of Quality and Outcome Framework (QOF) and review of GP 
enhanced services.  General contract reviews are undertaken annually (typically, as part of 
annual practice development visits) and also include a focus on any practice specific issues 
and targeted practice visits. In relation to the review of QOF, many health boards conduct a 
three year rolling programme of structured review of compliance against the requirements 
set out in QOF. Health Boards also monitor delivery of the cluster network development 
QOF which includes, review of practice development plans; cluster network action plans 
and annual reports and review of general practice national priority areas. Issues relating to 
primary care monitoring and development, including contract compliance, contract concerns 
and cluster development, will be considered at Board level.    
 
Health Boards monitor access to GP services through a number of mechanisms such as 
access improvement groups / access forums (which includes GP, LMC and CHC 
representation); surveys of patient access; CHC patient access surveys and GP practice 
visits. In addition, headline GP access statistics reported to Welsh Government. In relation 
to enhanced access to GP services after 6.30pm, Health Boards assess the reasonable 
patient need through a range of mechanisms, for example, specific reviews of extended 
access; review of practice complaints and concerns; review of Community Health Council 
survey results; review of practices detailed assessment of patient activity, demand and 
satisfaction.  Where there is a Health Board assessed reasonable patient need for 
enhanced access after 6.30pm, access will be expected to be provided.      
 
Welsh Government monitors Health Boards management of GP contract compliance 
through regular meetings with GPC Wales, regular meetings with Health Board’s senior 
primary care staff together with reviewing specific statistics and information. In particular, 
Welsh Government and GPC Wales meet monthly through a GP Forum. Health Boards are 
represented at GP Forum by a nominated Director of Primary Care and a nominated 
Associate Medical Director. Specific contract issues, including GP access, are discussed. 
Welsh Government meets monthly with Health Boards’ Directors of Primary Care and meets 
bi- monthly with Health Boards’ Heads of Primary Care. GP access is a standing item on 
these meetings. Health Boards submit GP access monitoring reports to Welsh Government. 

Tudalen y pecyn 59



Welsh Government also reviews annual published reports for GP access and the 
achievement of clinical QOF indicators. From 2015/16, Welsh Government will be reviewing 
published GP practice development plans objectives and priorities; cluster network action 
plans and annual reports. 
 
8. An update on the pilots for on-line booking systems for GPs’ appointments, 

including the proportion of practices offering such appointments;  
My Health Online (MHOL) is a web-based service that enables patients to manage 
appointments, order repeat prescriptions and update basic details, such as address and 
mobile number, via the internet. MHOL was first made available to GP practices in Wales in 
March 2011.  Rollout has since continued as part of the national GP Systems 
Implementation Project, with Welsh practices moving from 4 suppliers and 6 different 
systems, to just 2 suppliers and systems.  WG provided £1.7 million to support the initial 
development.  
  
All GP practices in Wales are now capable of offering the MHOL service to their patients.  
Not all GP practices utilise MHOL with 47% (215 of 458) actively offering either online 
appointment and/or repeat prescription facilities.  To date, approximately 140,000 patients 
have registered to use the service (as at end of June 2015) with further potential to continue 
to improve this.  
 
Practices are currently able to choose whether they offer MHOL to their patients.  GP 
practices are also able to decide on which ‘modules’ of the system they would like to use, 
e.g. appointments only, prescriptions only or both.    
 
WG officials work closely with colleagues in NWIS to monitor the overall effectiveness of the 
MHOL service, as well as the benefits being delivered.  Monthly statistics detailing both 
practice and patient uptake are provided and scrutinised.  An agreement has also recently 
been reached to re-establish a MHOL project to more formally tackle some of the issues 
detailed above. 

 
9. Information on the number of did not attends at GP practices and hospitals in 

Wales for the past 12 months  
 
In relation to the number of “did not attends” at GP practices in Wales, the following DNA 
rates were reported at December 2014.   

 
Health  Board  
  

Average 
DNA rate  
 

Highest  
DNA rate  
 

Lowest  
DNA rate   

Aneurin Bevan UHB * 5.6%  13.0%  2.7% 
Betsi Cadwaladr UHB    4.0% 7.1% 1.9% 
Cardiff and Vale UHB 6.1% 12.3% 3.% 
Cwm Taf  UHB * 3.6% 4.4% 2.7% 
Hwyel Dda UHB  5.5% 13.0%  3.0% 
Abertawe Bro Morgannwg*  N/A 13% 0.04% 
Powys Teaching UHB   4.0%  17.4% 2.0%  

 
* Note, the calculation of the average DNA rates for Aneurin Bevan and Cwm Taf has been 
calculated by proxy information from cluster data. Consequently, the data is not a 
comprehensive picture of the health board’s estimated DNA rate and should be considered 
with caution.  An average DNA rate for Abertawe Bro Morgannwg was not supplied.   Tudalen y pecyn 60



 
Actions being considered to address DNA rates include:  

 Alternative appointment systems:  Telephone triage, use of e-mail/internet to book 
appointments and walk in clinics.   

 Promotion of telemedicine.  
 Patient education; DNA rates, promotion of self management tools, alternative 

primary care services and telephone consultation. 
 Patient reminder and cancellation services:  the use of text messaging.  
 Review of demand & capacity, missed appointment processes and reviewing 

services through patient satisfaction questionnaires. 
 Sharing best practice: Cluster group meetings, practice visits and peer support. 
 Improved staff training, skills mix and wider community roles. 

 
10. An overview on the proportion of GPs’ appointments that are urgent, compared 

with routine appointments  
 

The data to assess the proportion of GP appointments that are urgent, compared with 
routine appointments, is not systematically available and I am therefore not able to respond 
to your question.   
 
11. An update on workforce planning issues, including the provision of Welsh 

language services and the potential impact of the Immigration Bill announced in 
the Queen’s Speech  

 
The Welsh Government’s intention is to make primary care the engine room of the NHS in 
Wales and a plan to develop the workforce to support this was launched by the Minister for 
Health and Social Services on the 17th of July.  This fulfilled a commitment made under “Our 
plan for a primary care service in Wales up to April 2018”, which gives the overall strategic 
vision for primary care and which was published in February. 

 
The workforce plan contains a number of actions to be taken in the immediate and medium 
terms.  One area of focus is the need to put in place the foundation for a more robust 
approach to workforce planning.  An early action is to develop a more rigorous and 
consistent understanding of the current workforce.  Work on this has already begun with 
changes to the GP contract meaning that from this year GP contractors will publish practice 
workforce data contained within practice development plans on an annual basis as part of a 
wider drive towards greater transparency. 

 
More generally, workforce data must be more systematically collated, analysed and fed into 
the wider system to develop an up to date ‘as is’ picture from which planning the future 
primary care workforce can proceed. This includes establishing a better understanding of 
the Welsh language capability of the workforce to ensure commitments made in More Than 
Just Words are being met. The plan therefore contains an action for health boards to 
undertake an analysis of existing and future Welsh language population need and the 
support required by the workforce to develop the necessary language abilities. 

 
Whilst an understanding of the workforce implications of service redesign has significantly 
improved with the introduction of Integrated Medium Term Plans (IMTPs), there remains 
more to be done to identify the full range of traditionally hospital-based services (or parts of 
services) which will in the future be delivered in the community. Clear and specific 
commitments to service redesign in the medium and long-term are a fundamental 
requirement for successful workforce planning.  Health boards have therefore been tasked 

Tudalen y pecyn 61



with identifying a priority list of services currently delivered in secondary care settings which 
can in the future be delivered by primary care as part of the next round of IMTPs.   

 
As regards workforce planning more broadly, work was undertaken ahead of the last IMTP 
commissioning cycle to improve the guidance on what is expected for workforce planning 
and the process by which those involved in this aspect of the overall plan are engaged 
during its development.  The Welsh Government also continues to work with the Workforce 
Education and Development Service (WEDS) to ensure that a programme of work is in 
place to educate and train health board staff in the skills necessary for workforce planning 
including, horizon scanning and all Wales workforce modelling, the application & 
development of workforce planning approaches and workforce intelligence & analysis.   

 
In respect of the impacts on the NHS Wales nursing workforce of the forthcoming changes 
to the immigration laws being introduced by the UK Government, all health boards have 
been asked to consider the impact of this legislation.  Although there a number of non EU-
national nurses working in the Welsh NHS, when those who have indefinite leave to remain 
are discounted, considerations of returns from all heath boards shows that the actual 
number of nurses likely to be affected by the proposed legislation is 11 although these 
numbers will vary over time based on the criteria.    

 
The changes to immigration laws and the impact on nurses currently practising in Wales 
however remains a concern and the Welsh Government has previously provided evidence 
to the UK Government’s Migration Advisory Committee’s review of the shortage occupation 
lists, in favour of including nursing within the UK list.   
 
There are also other immigration issues which impact the workforce for NHS Wales. For 
example, the length of time it takes the visa paperwork and processes to be put in place can 
have an impact on the start date for internationally recruited doctors; with recruitment at 
Withybush Hospital in Haverfordwest being a recent example. Issues have also been raised 
in relation to doctors in training and we are currently considering what steps can be taken to 
help address this problem. 
 
Changes to the immigration laws will also impact staff working in the social care sector. The 
Welsh Government is liaising closely with Care Forum Wales on this issue, initially working 
with Care Forum Wales to collect the data on the numbers of staff affected in order to inform 
a possible response to the Migration Advisory Committee. It is important we establish the 
impact on the overall system and there are material concerns being expressed by this 
sector.  
 
The Welsh Government is carrying out workforce planning with the Care Council for Wales 
and the sector as a whole to prepare the workforce for the future.  This includes giving 
attention to the need to provide services through the medium of Welsh. 
 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
 
 
Dr Andrew Goodall 

Tudalen y pecyn 62



 

Cyfarwyddwr Cyffredinol Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol/ 

Prif Weithredwr GIG Cymru 
Grŵp Iechyd a Gwasanaethau Cymdeithasol 
 
Director General Health and Social Services/ 
NHS Wales Chief Executive 
Health and Social Services Group 
 

 

 

 

Parc Cathays ● Cathays Park 
Caerdydd ● Cardiff 

CF10 3NQ  

 

Ffôn  ● Tel 02920 801182/1144 

Andrew.Goodall@wales.gsi.gov.uk 
 

Gwefan ● website: www.wales.gov.uk 

 

  
 
Darren Millar AM 
Chair 
Public Accounts Committee 
Cardiff Bay 
Cardiff 
CF99 1NA 

Our Ref: AG/KH 
01 September 2015 

 
Dear Mr Millar 
 
Further to my letter of 30 June 2015, you asked for further clarification about the accuracy of 
my response to Aled Roberts’ concerns and the statement in the Betsi Cadwaladr University 
Health Board Review of GP Out of Hours Medical Services, specifically:  
 
“This potential for a long wait is recognised by ED staff who will often treat a 

patient who would be suitable for the OOH service as the ED wait would be 

less. Conversely, patient can be kept waiting in the ED and when the 4-hour 
target approaches, referred to OOH, putting added pressure on the OOH 

service. The interviewers found during interviews with ED and OOH clinicians, 
there was a willingness to work together but that this lacked the leadership 

necessary to be effective.” 
 
As the review was conducted mainly through interviews with staff, who were assured of their 
anonymity, the health board has not been able to further explore the basis of the contention. 
The health board has accepted and is acting on all of the report’s recommendations. 
However, the health board has also confirmed that their own local analysis has not identified 
any pattern of inappropriate activity relating to transfers of patients between the Emergency 
Department (ED) and GP out of hours services. 
 
Due to the nature of the different services provided by Emergency Departments which are 
open 24/7, and out of hours services which open weekdays at 6:30pm and throughout the 
weekend, there is quite rightly a transfer of patients between the two when they are both 
open.  It should be noted that there was no suggestion in the report or the recommendations 
that patients were being referred to the out of hours service when it would be more 
appropriate for them to stay in the Emergency Department. 
 
You are aware that GP out of hours services forms part of the Special Measures instigated 
in Betsi Cadwaladr UHB.  Dr CDV Jones, Chair of Cwm Taf UHB, is working closely with the 

Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus / Public Accounts Committee 
PAC(4)-22-15 PTN5

Tudalen y pecyn 63

Eitem 2.5

mailto:Simon.Dean@wales.gsi.gov.uk
www.wales.gov.uk


health board to support them in delivering the necessary improvements to their GP out of 
hours services.  Dr Jones will be providing a report to Welsh Government in September 
which will address any issues of concern and I will ask that this specific issue is addressed 
in his report. 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
 
 

Dr Andrew Goodall 

Tudalen y pecyn 64



Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus / Public Accounts Committee 
PAC(4)-22-15 P1

Tudalen y pecyn 65

Eitem 3



 

 
   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

18th Report of the 
Financial Reporting 

Advisory Board 

Report for the period 
April 2014 to March 2015 

HC 304		
 

Tudalen y pecyn 66



 

 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

  
 
 

 

 

  

FINANCIAL REPORTING 
ADVISORY BOARD 

Report for the period  
April 2014 to March 2015 

Presented to the House of Commons pursuant to Section 24(4) of the Government 
Resources and Accounts Act 2000 

Laid before the Northern Ireland Assembly under Section 20(3) of the Government 
Resources and Accounts Act (Northern Ireland) 2001 by the  

Department of Finance and Personnel 

The report is laid before the Scottish Parliament and presented to the Audit and 
Finance Committees of the Scottish Parliament by agreement with the  

Scottish Ministers 

The report is submitted to the Public Accounts Committee of the National 
Assembly for Wales by the Welsh Government 

Ordered by The House of Commons to be printed on 16 July 2015 

HC 304 

SG/2015/104 

Tudalen y pecyn 67



    

f

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

  

RREPORT FFOR THE PPERIOD AAPRIL 20144 TO MARRCH 2015 


© Crown copyright 20155 

Thhis publicatiion is licenssed under thhe terms of tthe Open GGovernment Licence v3.0 
exxcept where otherwise sstated. To vview this liceence, 
vissit nationalaarchives.govv.uk/doc/oppen-governmment-licenc e/version/3 or write to 
thee Informatioon Policy Team, The NNational Arcchives, Keww, London TTW9 4DU, oor 
emmail: psi@naationalarchiives.gsi.govv.uk. 

WWhere we havve identifiedd any third party copyrright informmation you wwill need to 
obbtain permisssion from thhe copyrighht holders cooncerned. 

Thhis publicatiion is availaable at wwww.gov.uk/goovernment/ppublicationss 

Anny enquiriess regarding this publicaation shouldd be sent to us 
at michael.sunnderland@hhmtreasury. .gsi.gov.uk 

Priint ISBN 977814741230037 
WWeb ISBN 977814741230044 

IDD 02071508 07/15 500536 19585 

Priinted on papper containiing 75% reccycled fibree content miinimum 

Priinted in the UK by the Williams LLea Group oon behalf of the Controoller of Her 
Maajesty’s Staationery Offfice 

Tudalen y pecyn 68

mailto:michael.sunnderland@hhmtreasury
www.gov.uk/government/publications
mailto:michael.sunderland@hmtreasury.gsi.gov.uk
nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3


 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

   

 
 

 

Chairman’s Foreword 


The two main themes of the FRAB report this year are planning for and 
implementing important new standards and considering other improvements to aid 
users of the financial statements produced by the public sector. 

The International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) is in the process of 
finalising a series of major new and revised accounting standards. Some of the 
changes have been prompted by lessons learned from the financial crisis and have 
taken (and are still taking) some years to come to fruition. Several of these will 
have a significant impact on the public sector and the Board has been encouraged 
by the amount of time and effort invested by the Relevant Authorities towards 
planning and operationalising implementation. 

The Board accepted there were complex issues to deal with in relation to the 
standard on applying fair value accounting (IFRS 13) and although application has 
been delayed by the difficulties in working out the best approach, this has now 
been accomplished.  The lessons learned from the implementation of the standard 
are being taken on board and additional planning time and stages are proposed for 
the new standards on revenue and financial instruments, due to come into force in 
the next couple of years, both of which are likely to have a substantial impact. The 
Board looks forward to aiding the Relevant Authorities in the important work on 
these standards, not least the move to a more forward-looking model for 
anticipating losses on financial assets such as debtor balances. A proposed new 
leasing standard is further away, not yet having been finalised by the IASB, but 
that will, if completed and adopted in Europe, represent an even more significant 
challenge to UK public sector financial reporting. 

After these standards we expect a period of calm from the IASB, which will allow 
more time to focus on improving and streamlining both the public sector 
accounting manuals and public financial statements themselves. Important 
initiatives to improve the usability of financial statements are already in progress, 
as outlined in this report, and I look forward to the Board assisting with further 
work to give users of the financial statements all they need to hold government to 
account. 

As I approach my last year as Chairman, we also seem to be approaching an 
opportunity for a period of reflection on the current regime and whether it if fit for 
purpose. This reflects a wider debate in Europe and internationally on 
governmental accounting and, as a country in the vanguard of good accounting 
practice, the UK has much to contribute to that debate. 

Kathryn Cearns 

July 2015 

3 
Tudalen y pecyn 69



 

 

 

 
 

 
 

              

 

 

  
 

 

 
 

Executive Summary 

This is the 18th report of the Financial Reporting Advisory Board (the Board).  The 
Board’s primary objective is to promote the highest standards of financial reporting 
by government. The report is addressed to the Committee of Public Accounts and 
the Treasury Select Committee in the Westminster Parliament, to the Northern 
Ireland Assembly, to Scottish Ministers and to the Public Accounts Committee of 
the National Assembly for Wales.  The report covers the year April 2014 to March 
2015. 

This year the work of the Board has been more wide ranging than last year. Not 
only has it been providing advice to the Relevant Authorities on accounting 
guidance but it has also extended its efforts to finalise the planned improvements to 
financial reports within the public sector.  

Changes to accounting guidance 

Last year’s report described the Board’s disappointment that no conclusion was 
reached on the application of International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 13 
Fair Value Measurement in the public sector context. IFRS 13 outlines how to 
measure ‘fair value’ which seeks to present how much an asset could be sold for or 
a liability settled. As no agreement was reached, application of the Standard was 
delayed beyond 2014-15. For much of this year the Board’s focus has been to 
continue its work in this area and provide advice on the revised proposals for 
implementing the Standard. 

At the start of the year, the Relevant Authorities returned to a principles based 
approach grounded on the conceptual basis of measuring service potential.  In 
November 2014 the Board accepted proposals that IFRS 13 applies to assets which 
are not held for their service potential and to surplus assets which can be disposed 
of and where there are no restrictions on disposal. IAS 16 (the Standard that deals 
with Property, Plant and Equipment) will continue to be adapted to ensure that 
assets in use and held for their service potential are held at ‘current value’.  The 
Board’s agreement has paved the way for the adoption of IFRS 13 in the public 
sector from 2015-16. The financial reporting manuals have been updated and 
agreed on this basis. 

Other developments in accounting guidance are on the horizon and the Board has 
turned its attention to the forthcoming introduction of two new Standards: IFRS 15 
Revenue from Contracts with Customers and IFRS 9 Financial Instruments. Each 
are not currently due to be effective until reporting periods beginning on or after 1 
January 2017 and 1 January 2018 respectively (although the IASB is currently 
consulting on delaying the effective date of IFRS 15 by one year), but the Board is 
very aware of the lead time needed to ensure that the full implications on the public 
sector are adequately considered. This programme will continue into next year and 
the Board will work closely with the Relevant Authorities to secure this objective 
and introduce the Standards by the effective dates. 

5 
Tudalen y pecyn 70



 
   

 

 

 
   

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

   

 

 
 

                                            
 

 
  

     
  

 

REPORT FOR THE PERIOD APRIL 2014 TO MARCH 2015 


Improvements to financial reporting 

The Board is very pleased to secure the introduction of the Simplifying and 
Streamlining Accounts project1 (the ‘Project’) the aim of which is to better meet the 
needs of users of annual report and accounts (ARAs) and make information more 
understandable. The Project was subject to an extensive consultation exercise with 
Parliament and other stakeholders which then saw the Treasury working with 
Whitehall departments and their arms’ length bodies to ensure a smooth transition 
from 2015-16. The Board is supportive of this significant step change in reporting 
which will see a restructuring of ARAs from the traditional “front half” annual 
report and “back half” financial statements into a more integrated reporting 
framework based on three sections: a Performance report; an Accountability report; 
and the Financial statements.  

The Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) 2015-16 was given due consideration by 
the Board having been revised in line with the Project and then published in 
December 2014 to give early sight of the new structure. The Board will closely 
monitor how these changes are embedded and the feedback from users of the 
ARAs. 

2013 was the first year of mid-year reporting by the main Westminster 
departments. The Board reviewed the outcome of the first year and took feedback 
from both the Liaison Committee and Parliamentary Scrutiny Unit on their 
thoughts of how useful they found the reports. The Board noted that the Treasury in 
particular found this a helpful exercise as it informed the 2014 guidance to 
departments and as a result saw an improvement in the second year of reporting. 
However, the Board recognises there is still scope for increasing engagement 
between departments and Parliament, and for further improvements to be made to 
the quality of reporting. 

The Board welcomed the publication of the Whole of Government Accounts 
(WGA) 2012-13 in June 2014; six weeks earlier than the previous year and a 
significant achievement from the twenty months after year-end publication of the 
very first WGA. Consideration was given to the remaining audit qualifications of 
the accounts but it was noted that important steps were being taken to clear them as 
much and as quickly as possible. The Board was pleased with the useful addition of 
a separate four page summary document which makes the account more accessible 
to users. 

1https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/330725/simplifying 
_annual_reports_print.pdf 
The Simplifying and Streamlining Accounts project does not strictly apply to Scottish Government, 
and the FRAB’s role does not extend to advising Scottish Ministers on the form and content of the 
annual report and accounts (that being a matter for the Scottish Parliament). 

6 
Tudalen y pecyn 71

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/330725/simplifying _annual_reports_print.pdf


 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

  

 

   

  

The Board took great interest throughout the year in emerging proposals for 
European Public Sector Accounting Standards (EPSAS) and noted the rising 
profile accruals accounting for the public sector in Europe. Concern remains over 
the impact on Member States such as the UK that have already integrated 
internationally accepted accrual accounting standards into their wider public 
finance management systems. The Board is also conscious that were there to be a 
move towards harmonised public sector accounting standards at a European level, 
its own role may have to adapt if it is to continue to fulfil its statutory function. 

Priorities for 2015-16 

An important priority for the Board next year will be ensuring the new accounting 
standards IFRS 9 Financial Instruments and IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers are fully considered in the public sector context so that they are adopted 
on a timely basis and with minimised disruption. Work plans are in place to ensure 
this is so but notwithstanding, the Board has much work to do to oversee the 
readiness for their introduction.  

The Board will also take great interest in any further adaptions proposed by the 
Relevant Authorities in respect of the use of discount rates in financial reporting. It 
will be keen to ensure that any proposals that are adaptions of IFRS are justified in 
the public sector context. 

The Board will be keen to closely monitor the IASB’s progress in finalising a new 
Leases Standard that will remove the existing distinction between finance and 
operating leases. It is expected to produce a more consistent approach to the 
recognition and measurement of the rights and obligations that arise from lease 
agreements but its impact on accounts of public sector bodies would be substantial, 
particularly on reported liabilities. The Board will keep a watchful eye on progress 
of the project and deliberate on the implications of the new Standard for public 
sector financial reporting. The Board will address how this evolves in the next 
report. 

Email: 	 michael.sunderland@hmtreasury.gsi.gov.uk    

Telephone: 	 0207 270 5929 

Address:	 Michael Sunderland, FRAB Secretariat, 1 Horse Guards Road, 
London, SW1A 2HQ 

7 
Tudalen y pecyn 72



 
   

 

 

 
 

 
              

  
              

   
 
  

REPORT FOR THE PERIOD APRIL 2014 TO MARCH 2015 

Contents 

1 INTRODUCTION 

2 CHANGES TO ACCOUNTING GUIDANCE IN 2014-15 

3 BOARD ACTIVITIES IN 2014-15 

8 
Tudalen y pecyn 73



 

 

 
  

  

   

 

 
 

 

 

  

 
 

 
 

                                            
 
  
 

 

Chapter 1 


INTRODUCTION 
Background to the Financial Reporting Advisory  Board 
1.1. 	 The Financial Reporting Advisory Board (the Board) is an independent 

body fulfilling the statutory role as the ‘group of persons who appear to the 
Treasury to be appropriate to advise on financial reporting principles and 
standards’ for government, as required by the Government Resources and 
Accounts Act 20002. 

1.2. 	 The Board acts as an independent element in the process of setting 
accounting standards for government and exists to promote the highest 
possible standards in financial reporting by government. In doing so, the 
Board seeks to ensure that any adaptations of, or departures from, generally 
accepted accounting practice (GAAP) in the public sector context, are 
justifiable and appropriate. 

1.3. 	 The Board’s main focus is on examining proposals for amending current, or 
implementing new, accounting policies in the accounting guidance for 
central government departments, executive agencies, non-departmental 
public bodies and trading funds, and for examining the proposals for 
accounting guidance for local authorities. The Board also advises the 
Treasury on the implementation of accounting policies specific to WGA.   

1.4. 	 Further information about the Board (including: membership; Terms of 
Reference; meeting minutes; and papers) is available on the gov.uk 
website3. 

Background to the FRAB Report 
1.5. 	 In accordance with its Terms of Reference, the Board has a responsibility to 

prepare an annual report of its activities, including its views on the changes 
made during the report period to accounting guidance that is within the 
Board’s remit. 

1.6. 	 The Board is required to send a copy of its report direct to the Committee of 
Public Accounts, the Treasury Select Committee of the UK Parliament, to 
the Welsh Government, the Scottish Ministers and the Department of 
Finance and Personnel (Northern Ireland). 

2 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2000/20/section/24 
3 https://www.gov.uk/government/policy-advisory-groups/financial-reporting-advisory-
board-frab 

9 
Tudalen y pecyn 74

https://www.gov.uk/government/policy-advisory-groups/financial-reporting-advisory
http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2000/20/section/24
https://www.gov.uk/government/policy-advisory-groups/financial-reporting-advisoryboard-board-frab


 
   

 

 

 

 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

REPORT FOR THE PERIOD APRIL 2014 TO MARCH 2015 

1.7. 	 The Treasury, the Scottish Ministers, and the Department of Finance and 
Personnel (Northern Ireland) formally lay the Board’s report before 
(respectively) the House of Commons, the Scottish Parliament, and the 
Northern Ireland Assembly.  The Welsh Government submits the report to 
the Public Accounts Committee of the National Assembly for Wales. 

1.8.	 This is the Board’s 18th report and the report structure is summarised below. 

Report structure 

Changes to accounting guidance 
1.9. 	 Chapter 2 of the report summarises changes to accounting guidance 

approved by the Board during 2014-15. 

Board activities 

1.10. 	 Chapter 3 of the report details those issues in financial reporting, both new 
and continuing, which may lead to changes in accounting guidance in the 
future and provides an indication of how those issues will impact the 
Board’s work in future years. 

10 
Tudalen y pecyn 75



 

 

   

  
 

 
 
 

 
 

  

 

  

                                            
 
   
 

Chapter 2 

CHANGES TO ACCOUNTING GUIDANCE IN 
2014-15 
Introduction 
2.1. 	 This chapter details significant changes in accounting guidance within the 

Board’s remit for 2014-15 and 2015-16.  

The 2014-15 Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) 
2.2. 	 The Board agreed the Treasury’s proposed schedule of amendments to the 

2014-15 FReM. 

2.3 	 Two substantive changes were agreed relating to disclosures in the accounts 
on financial instruments. The Treasury gave a commitment to the 
Committee of Public Accounts following a hearing regarding a report by 
the National Audit Office, “Managing debt owed to central government” in 
February 2014 to strengthen guidance and promote best practice on 
reporting of debt in financial statements, where material. Where entities are 
exposed to material financial risk, the FReM now has additional emphasis 
for entities to consider the relevant disclosures for significant credit risk of 
receivables (i.e. the risk that debt may not be paid). The second amendment 
relates to retaining existing disclosure requirements for financial 
instruments (IFRS 7), which are still needed given that a new standard on 
‘fair value’ measurement (IFRS 13) will not be implemented in the public 
sector until 2015-16 

2.4 	 Other amendments accepted were to correct minor errors and reduce 
inconsistencies and possible ambiguity. In 2013-14, the Board had already 
agreed (and previously reported4) a number of issues relating to the 2014-15 
FReM, the most significant of which are detailed in Table 1. 

4 17th Report of the Financial Reporting Advisory Board, Report for the period April 2013 to March 

11 

2014 

Tudalen y pecyn 76



 
   

 

 

 

  
 

 
   

  
  

    
 

   
 

 

    

      
 

     
 

    

   
     

    

 

     
 

  
 

 
   

 
 

 

    
 

    
  

 
 

 
 

    
  

    

   

 
  

 

 
 

REPORT FOR THE PERIOD APRIL 2014 TO MARCH 2015 

Table 1 

Standard Summary FReM impact 

IFRS 10, These Standards were EU-adopted Accounting boundaries are 
Consolidated for annual periods beginning on or adapted in the 2014-15 FReM so 
Financial after 1 January 2014 and affect the that the Westminster 
Statements consolidation and reporting of departmental accounting 

IFRS 11, Joint 
Arrangements 
IFRS 12, Disclosure 
of Interests in Other 

subsidiaries, joint ventures, and 
investment entities: 
• IFRS 10 introduces a new 

definition of control which 

boundary continues to be based 
on control criteria used by the 
Office for National Statistics for 
National Accounts.  

Entities 
IAS 27, Separate 
Financial 
Statements 
(amended) 
IAS 28, 

Investments in 
Associates and Joint 
Ventures (amended) 

requires more judgment which 
may result in new consolidations. 

• IFRS 11 provides a principles-
based definition of joint 
arrangements (joint operations or 
joints ventures) based on rights 
and obligations and requires a 
more consistent accounting 
treatment (removing the option of 
using an accounting method 
called proportional consolidation) 

• IFRS 12 requires more disclosure 

With the continuation of current 
adaptations, the impact on 
departments and agencies mainly 
relates to the disclosure 
requirements under IFRS 12. 

Arms’ length bodies will apply 
these consolidation standards in 
full and their consolidation 
boundary may change as a result 
of the new standards. 

of the financial effects of, and 
risks to, an entity with 
investments in subsidiaries, joint 
arrangements and/or associates. 

IFRS 13, Fair Value IFRS 13 has been EU-adopted for IFRS 13 has been specifically 
Measurement annual periods beginning on or after scoped out of the 2014-15 FReM 

1 January 2013. It has been prepared and will be adopted in 2015-16. 
to provide consistent guidance on Further details on the 
‘fair value’ measurement. The implementation of IFRS 13 are 
Standard defines ‘fair value’, included in Chapter 3. 
provides guidance on fair value 
measurement techniques, and sets out 
the disclosure requirements. 

12 
Tudalen y pecyn 77



 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

                                            
 
 
 

  

2.5. 	 The revised FReM was issued by the Treasury in December 2014. A log of 
all 2014-15 amendments is available on the gov.uk website.5 

Proposed 2015-16 Financial Reporting Manual (FReM) 
2.6 	 The Board also reviewed the form and content of the proposed 2015-16 

FReM presented by the Treasury. The changes fall into three main 
categories: 

•	 Changes resulting from the implementation of IFRS 13 Fair Value 
Measurement in the public sector.  

•	 Changes in the form and content of the annual report and accounts, 
implementing proposals agreed through the Simplifying and Streamlining 
Accounts project. This includes a revised format introducing three sections: 
the Performance Report, the Accountability Report and the Financial 
statements; and 

•	 Minor accounting updates including the introduction of two charity 
Statements of Recommended Practice for relevant arms’ length bodies. 

2.7 	 The Board agreed these changes following a review of the consultation 
exercise with users and the 2015-16 FReM was published to timetable, in 
December 20146. 

5 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/government-financial-reporting-manual-2014-to-
2015 
6 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/government-financial-reporting-manual-2015-16 

13 
Tudalen y pecyn 78

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/government-financial-reporting-manual-2015-16
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/government-financial-reporting-manual-2014-to
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/government-financial-reporting-manual-2014-to-2015


 
   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  

 
 

 

 
 

 

  

 

 

  

 

 

REPORT FOR THE PERIOD APRIL 2014 TO MARCH 2015 


The NHS Manual for Accounts 2014-15 and Foundation Trust Annual 
Reporting Manual 2014-15 
2.8. 	 The Board agreed the 2014-15 Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 

and 2014-15 NHS Manuals for Accounts with no new divergences from the 
FReM. The 2014-15 Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual was 
issued by Monitor in December 2014 (subsequently updated in March 
2015) and the 2014-15 NHS Manual for Accounts was issued by the 
Department of Health in January 2015. 

2.9. 	 The Board reviewed the draft NHS Manual for 2015-16 at its March 2015 
meeting with the aim of publication shortly thereafter.  

2.10. 	 The Board looks forward to approving future versions of the Manual 
continuing on a progressively improved timetable. 

The 2015-16 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting 
2.11. 	 The Board agreed the 2015-16 Code of Practice on Local Authority 

Accounting. The Code was issued by the Chartered Institute of Public 
Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and the Local Authority (Scotland) 
Accounts Advisory Committee (LASAAC) in March 2015. 

2.12. 	 The changes to the 2015-16 Code related to: 

•	 Introducing IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement; 

•	 Small changes to existing IFRSs which were the product of the 
International Accounting Standards Boards annual improvements.  

•	 New guidance on accounting for levies (IFRIC 21 levies); 

•	 Clarification of the reporting requirement for Local Authorities in 
respect of schools; and 

•	 Frequency of valuations for property, plant and equipment 
interpretation.  

14 
Tudalen y pecyn 79



 

 

 

 

 
 

  

   
 

 
 
 

 

   
 

  
 

  

                                            
 
  

Chapter 3 

BOARD ACTIVITIES IN 2014-15 

Introduction 
3.1. 	 This chapter comprises the developments in financial reporting in the public 

sector, both new and continuing, which were addressed during 2014-15. 
An update on each of the developments considered by the Board is 
provided in Table 2 below.  Table 3 provides details of when each topic was 
discussed and papers and minutes from those meetings are available on the 
gov.uk website7. 

3.2.	 In addition to continuing work on known developments in financial 
reporting, the Board monitors international developments in accounting 
standards which may have implications for public sector financial reporting 
and in which the Board has a particular interest.  These include consultation 
documents issued by the IASB, the IFRS Interpretations Committee and the 
International Public Sector Accounting Standards Board (IPSASB). 

3.3 	 The Board’s future work on accounting standards will include considering 
the public sector implications of new standards on leases, revenue 
recognition and financial instruments. 

7 https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/hmt-financial-reporting-advisory-board-minutes 

15 
Tudalen y pecyn 80

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/hmt-financial-reporting-advisory-board-minutes


 
   

 

 

  

 
 

 
 

 

 

  

 

     
   

  

 

 

 
 

 

  

 
     

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

      

 

 

REPORT FOR THE PERIOD APRIL 2014 TO MARCH 2015 

Table 2 

Accounting 
standard or 

reporting issue 
Activities during 2014-15 Future work 

IFRS 

IFRS 9, 
Financial 
instruments 

The Board gave initial consideration 
to a new accounting standard for 
financial instruments (IFRS 9) which 
is effective for annual periods 
beginning on or after 1 January 2018, 
but has yet to be adopted by the EU. 
The Board encouraged the Relevant 
Authorities to set out a clear work 
plan for the implementation of this 
complex standard, focussing initially 
on the transitional arrangements. 

The Board will continue to review 
the implications of the introduction 
of IFRS 9 and provide advice on the 
implementation plans and activities 
undertaken by the Relevant 
Authorities. 

IFRS 13, Fair 
Value 

The Board continued its work 
throughout the year with the 
Relevant Authorities to address the 
practical difficulties in applying this 
Standard in the public sector 
following its decision to delay 
implementation until 2015-16. The 
Standard sets out how to value assets 
and liabilities at ‘fair value’, which is 
broadly how much an asset could be 
sold for, or a liability settled, at the 
reporting date. 

Extensive further work was 
undertaken by the Treasury and 
CIPFA on the valuation bases to be 
applied to assets. It had previously 
been agreed that IFRS 13 would only 
apply to assets which do not provide 
services directly to the public, 
however further clarification was 
required on the scope of this 
application. The Treasury introduced 
an additional category of assets to 
clarify that surplus assets will be 
measured in the accounts at ‘fair 
value’. 

The Board considered the findings of 
the Relevant Authorities consultation 
with stakeholders on this proposal 
and agreed the introduction of IFRS 

The Board has agreed 
implementation of IFRS 13 to the 
public sector from 2015-16 and will 
keep under review the impact of the 
adoption. 

16 
Tudalen y pecyn 81



 

 

  

 
 

 
 

       

 
 

       
 

 
  

  
 

  
 

 

     

 
 

 
  

 

 
 

 

  

      

 
  

 

 

 

 

 

  

       

 
 

  

 

 

 

 

Accounting 
standard or 

reporting issue 
Activities during 2014-15 Future work 

13 into the manuals in 2015-16. 

IFRS 15, 
Revenue 
recognition 

The Board gave initial consideration 
to a new accounting standard on the 
recognition of revenue (IFRS 15) 
which was issued by the IASB in 
May 2014, with initial effective date 
of 1 January 2017 (the IASB is 
currently consulting on delaying the 
effective date by a year). The Board 
provided advice on the potential 
implementation, including drawing 
on experiences in the private sector. 
The Board also highlighted the 
importance of the Relevant 
Authorities deciding on the transition 
arrangements to be applied when 
implementing the Standard for the 
first time. Similarly, to IFRS 9, the 
Board stressed the importance of 
early planning and reviewed the 
Relevant Authorities high level work 
plan. 

The Board will continue to review 
the implications of the introduction 
of IFRS 15 and provide advice on the 
implementation plans and activities 
undertaken by the Relevant 
Authorities. 

Other issues 

Simplifying and 
streamlining 
statutory 
accounts 

In 2013-14 the Board had been 
supportive of proposals by the 
Treasury set out in the Simplifying 
and Streamlining Accounts project. 
This project has the objective of 
improving the quality and usefulness 
of financial reporting and to improve 
scrutiny and accountability of 
Westminster reporting entities to 
Parliament and stakeholders. 

The Board considered the more 
detailed overview of plans and 
subsequent responses to the 
consultation exercise following the 
publication of the project Command 
Paper. This set out the proposed three 
part revised format to the annual 
report and accounts, that being: a 
Performance Report, an 
Accountability Report and finally, 
the Financial Statements. Responses 

The Board will be kept informed of 
the results of implementation of the 
new annual report and accounts 
reporting framework, particularly 
from both preparers of accounts and 
key stakeholders. 

Plans are also on the horizon to 
consider the concept of a Financial 
Reporting Manual for some entities, 
a so called, “FReM light” and the 
Board asked the Treasury to consider 
recent changes to UK GAAP and 
how or if this could be applied in the 
public sector. 

17
 
Tudalen y pecyn 82



 
   

 

 

  

 
 

 
 

 

    

 
 

 
 

    

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

  

     

     
 

 

 

 

  

 

REPORT FOR THE PERIOD APRIL 2014 TO MARCH 2015 


Accounting 
standard or 

reporting issue 
Activities during 2014-15 Future work 

to the consultation were broadly 
supportive of the Project and the 
Board agreed to the proposals 
outlined and then considered the 
amended 2015-16 FReM, prepared 
under the new framework, which was 
also agreed. The new framework will 
take effect from 2015-16. 

The Board were also asked to offer 
views on sustainability reporting 
within the new framework where 
more integrated reporting is 
encouraged. Support was also given 
to this approach. 

Mid-year 
reporting 

The Board reviewed the outcome of 
the first year of mid-year reporting 
by the main Westminster 
departments and considered feedback 
from both the Liaison Committee and 
Parliamentary Scrutiny Unit. A good 
practice example, such as that from 
HMRC, was noted and that the 
exercise could potentially improve 
financial management and assist in 
streamlining the year-end account 
production process. 

Areas of improvements for 2014 
were highlighted including the need 
for greater openness and balance in 
reporting, and secondly to enhance 
disclosures around major projects 
information. The Treasury used this 
feedback to make improvements to 
guidance issued to Westminster 
departments for the 2014 mid-year 
reporting exercise. 

The Board also recognised that mid-
year reporting had been received well 
by Parliament, but greater 
engagement was still needed and that 
a “fair, balanced and understandable” 
reporting requirement would improve 
the quality and usefulness of reports. 

The Board will appraise further 
outcomes of mid-year reporting and 
monitor both improvements to the 
quality of reports and the 
engagement and usefulness of 
reporting. 

18 
Tudalen y pecyn 83



 

 

  

 
 

 
 

 

 
  

        

 

  

 
      

  

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

     

 

 

 

 

 
  

  

 

    
  

 

 

Accounting 
standard or 

reporting issue 
Activities during 2014-15 Future work 

Whole of 
Government 
Accounts 
(WGA) 

The Board was presented with an 
overview of the 2012-13 WGA, 
published in June 2014, six weeks 
earlier than the prior year and the 
twenty months after year-end 
publication of the very first WGA. 
The Board recognised that this was a 
significant step forward in the 
timeliness of the account. 

Although the account was qualified 
on the same basis as the prior year, 
the Board recognised the significant 
progress made along with the useful 
addition of a separate four page 
summary document. 

The Board considered a number of 
substantive issues within WGA 
including those likely to cause the 
retention of the qualification in future 
years but were supportive of the 
continued efforts by the Treasury to 
remove the qualifications where 
possible. 

The Board will continue to review 
the ongoing intention of the Treasury 
to remove qualifications on WGA 
and the continued progress to achieve 
earlier publication.  

The Board will also be updated on 
the notable matters arising from the 
preparation of WGA and those being 
discussed at the WGA Advisory 
Board. 

Accounting for 
schools 

The Board considered the final 
amendments to the 2014-15 Code of 
Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the UK in relation to 
accounting for local authority 
maintained schools. 

The amendments focused on an 
adaptation to the definition of the 
single entity financial statements 
which was subject to a consultation 
process concluding in April 2014. 
The outcomes from a joint working 
group between the Treasury and 
CIPFA/LASAAC concluded that the 
balance of control lies with the local 
authority and thus local authority 
maintained schools should be 
included in the local authority group 
accounting boundary. 

The Board also considered the 

The Board will continue to work with 
CIPFA/LASAAC to provide any 
additional guidance as deemed 
necessary. 

19
 
Tudalen y pecyn 84



 
   

 

 

  

 
 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
    

 
       

 

  

 

 
 

      
 
 

 
 

 
  

 
 

 

 

 

  
 

   
    

 

REPORT FOR THE PERIOD APRIL 2014 TO MARCH 2015 


Accounting 
standard or 

reporting issue 
Activities during 2014-15 Future work 

recommendation within the 
consultation relating to IFRS 12 (see 
above) which applies to schools to be 
aggregated in local authorities’ 
financial statements and treat other 
maintained schools in the same way. 
These steps will improve consistency 
with the FReM reporting 
requirements and may contribute to 
the removal of one of the 
qualifications in the whole of 
government accounts. 

Discount rates 

The Board responded to the 
Treasury’s review of discount rates 
used in the financial statements. The 
Treasury’s review was prompted by 
feedback from users that suggested 
the use of different rates and frequent 
updating of those rates (to reflect 
changes in market conditions) is 
confusing. 

The Treasury submitted a paper to 
the Board as part of this analysis with 
initial conclusions that the financial 
reporting policy on discount rates 
could be improved to better reflect 
the public sector context. 

The Board advised there was no 
compelling reason to diverge from 
the Standards and that confusion may 
be addressed by better disclosure of 
the effects of discounting to improve 
the understanding of users. 

The Board will continue to review 
any further adaptations proposed to 
the methodology employed by the 
Treasury and will be keen to ensure 
that any deviations from the 
Standards are justified by the public 
sector context. 

Tax and spend 
schemes 

The Board considered a paper 
presented by the Treasury providing 
an update on accounting for imputed 
tax and spend schemes in 
departmental accounts. The Board 
supported the Treasury’s decision not 
to attempt to adapt IFRS further in 

The Board will keep under review 
any work planned by the IPSASB on 
such hypothecated tax schemes. 

order to incorporate these schemes. 
The Board supports the Treasury’s 
plan to remove the schemes from 
Estimates with an alternative 

20 
Tudalen y pecyn 85



 

 

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

  

 

  
 

 

 
    

 

 

       
    

 

 

      

 
 

 
  

     
  

 
      

 

 

Accounting 
standard or 

reporting issue 
Activities during 2014-15 Future work 

accountability arrangement agreed 
between the Treasury and 
Parliament. 

The Treasury confirmed that it did 
not intend to introduce further 
adaptations to IFRS to account for 
Contracts for Difference. 

European 
Public Sector 
Accounting 
Standards 
(EPSAS) 

The Board received updates 
throughout the year from the 
Treasury on further developments 
related to Eurostat’s project on 
European Public Sector Accounting 
Standards including: a meeting of the 
Relevant Authorities; a 
Eurostat/PWC fact finding visit; 
events in Brussels; and Eurostat 
Taskforce meetings. 

The primary purpose of the project is 
to improve government finance 
statistics by ensuring common 
consistent audited base data 
established on harmonised standards 
for Member States. 

Two major developments were 
noted. The first was a discussion by 
the Economic and Financial 
Committee of the European Council 
to focus on the need to ensure 
appropriate timing of the project and 
the scrutiny of the balance of costs 
and benefits. The second 
development reported was PWC’s 
impact assessment findings which 
highlighted the significant costs 
involved in adoption of the project. 

The Board examined other 
significant areas of concern of some 
Member States highlighted in the 
EPSAS update including the 
complexity and volume of 
consolidation of entities at a local 
level in individual Member States 
and the anticipated move away from 

The Board will continue to be 
updated on this important project as 
further developments take place. 

21
 
Tudalen y pecyn 86



 
   

 

 

  

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

    
 

 

 

 

 
      
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
  

REPORT FOR THE PERIOD APRIL 2014 TO MARCH 2015 


Accounting 
standard or 

reporting issue 
Activities during 2014-15 Future work 

historic cost asset valuations under a 
new reporting regime. The Board 
reflected on how this project might 
impact on the UK’s existing 
reporting framework. 

Conceptual 
Frameworks 
and future 
developments 

The IASB are revising their 
Conceptual Framework. IPSASB has 
completed its Conceptual 
Framework. Details of developments 
in both frameworks were presented 
to the Board. The Treasury gave an 
overview of a discussion paper 
released in 2013 by the IASB and the 
areas of focus. This was compared 
with the IPSASB Conceptual 
Framework including in respect of 
definitions of assets and liabilities, 
recognition and derecognition of 

The Board will continue to scrutinise 
the results of a consultation exercise 
by the IASB and potential changes to 
the Conceptual Framework. 

The Board plan to undertake a further 
review of the IPSASB Conceptual 
Framework project as it progresses 
and will compare terms used with 
those of the IASB to identify 
substantive differences. 

assets and liabilities, measurement, 
presentation and disclosures. 
However, it was noted that these 
proposals were not incompatible with 
continued use of IFRS in the UK 
public sector. 

The Board will continue to be 
updated on IPSASB projects as 
further developments take place. 

22 
Tudalen y pecyn 87



 

 

  

  

        
 

 

 

    

   

 
 

   

 
  

  

  

 
 

   

   

    

    

     

 
    

   

 
 

 

Table 3 


Accounting 
standard or 

reporting issue 

Board meeting where the accounting standard or issue was discussed 

3 April 2014 19 June 2014 27 November 
2014 

26 March 2015 

IFRS 

IFRS 9, Financial 
instruments 

IFRS 13, Fair 
Value 
Measurement 

IFRS 15, Revenue 
from Contracts 
with Customers 

Other issues 

Simplifying and 
streamlining 
statutory accounts 

Mid-year reporting 

Whole of 
Government 
Accounts (WGA) 

Accounting for 
schools 

Discount rates 

Tax and spend 
schemes 

European Public 
Sector Accounting 
Standards (EPSAS) 

Conceptual 
Frameworks   

23
 
Tudalen y pecyn 88



26 
Tudalen y pecyn 89



1 
 

Ymateb i Adroddiad Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus Cynulliad Cenedlaethol 
Cymru am Werth am Arian Buddsoddi mewn Traffyrdd a Chefnffyrdd  
 

Rydym yn croesawu canfyddiadau’r adroddiad ac rydym y cynnig yr 18 o 
argymhellion sydd ynddo.  
 
Argymhelliad 1  

Mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell y dylai Llywodraeth Cymru ymgysylltu â'r diwydiant i 
ddeall ei anghenion a sicrhau bod y wybodaeth a ddarperir am y prosiectau 
cefnffyrdd sydd ar y gweill yn gywir ac yn gyfredol.  
 
Derbyniwyd. Bydd Llywodraeth Cymru yn cynnal rhaglen dreigl o ddigwyddiadau 
chwe-misol i gyflenwyr er mwyn sicrhau bod cadwyn gyflenwi’r diwydiant adeiladu yn 
cael gwybodaeth gywir a chyfoes am y prosiectau sydd ar y gweill ym maes 
trafnidiaeth. Bydd y digwyddiadau hyn i gyflenwyr yn cael eu defnyddio er mwyn 
rhoi’r wybodaeth ddiweddaraf am bolisïau caffael ac er mewn cael adborth am yr 
arferion a fydd ohoni ar y pryd. Bydd Llywodraeth Cymru yn ymgysylltu’n rheolaidd â 
chyrff cynrychiadol megis Cymdeithas y Contractwyr Peirianneg Sifil a Chymdeithas 
y Peirianwyr Ymgynghorol.      
 
Argymhelliad 2  

Mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell y dylai Llywodraeth Cymru gyhoeddi rhestr wedi'i 
blaenoriaethu'n glir o'r holl brosiectau cefnffyrdd, gyda dyddiadau dangosol. Dylai'r 
rhestr hon gynnwys gwybodaeth am statws cyfredol prosiectau a dylid ei diweddaru'n 
rheolaidd, gan roi rhesymau dros unrhyw newid mewn statws a blaenoriaeth.  
 
Derbyniwyd. Mae Amserlen Gyflenwi yn y Cynllun Cyllid Trafnidiaeth Cenedlaethol  
sy’n adlewyrchu’r rhagdybiaethau cyfredol am y proffil cyflenwi ar gyfer pob cynllun. 
Nodir ar yr Amserlen y gallai’r proffiliau hynny newid, gan gydnabod bod yn rhaid i 
brosesau statudol gael eu cwblhau a bod angen ymateb wrth i amgylchiadau newid. 
Mae’r Cynllun yn cynnwys cyfnod cyflenwi a flwyddynolwyd ar gyfer pob un o’r pum 
mlynedd gyntaf. Bydd yr amserlen gyflenwi yn cael ei hadolygu a’i diweddaru’n 
rheolaidd wrth i’r proffil cyflenwi ar gyfer cynlluniau penodol ddod yn gliriach.   
 
Argymhelliad 3  

Mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell bod Llywodraeth Cymru yn cyhoeddi manylion cwmpas, 
dull gweithredu ac amserlen yr adolygiad o'r Arweiniad ar Arfarnu Trafnidiaeth Cymru 
(WelTAG), gan gynnwys y dull ymgynghori, ac yn cyhoeddi canlyniad yr adolygiad ar 
ôl iddo gael ei gwblhau.  
 
Derbyniwyd. Mae Llywodraeth Cymru wrthi ar hyn o bryd yn cynnal adolygiad trwyadl 
o’r holl feysydd yr ymdrinnir â nhw yn yr Arweiniad ar Arfarnu Trafnidiaeth Cymru, a 
hynny yng ngoleuni’r profiadau a gafwyd wrth ei ddefnyddio er 2008, yng ngoleuni 
canllawiau ategol yr Adran Drafnidiaeth (a elwir bellach yn WebTAG 2), y llyfr Aqua a 
gyhoeddwyd yn ddiweddar gan Drysorlys EM, a’r gwaith sydd ar fin cael ei wneud i 
ddiwygio Llyfr Gwyrdd Trysorlys EM. Drwy wneud hynny, bydd modd sicrhau bod y 
canllawiau’n amlinellu proses drylwyr ar gyfer arfarnu a gwerthuso ymyriadau ym 
maes trafnidiaeth, gan gynnwys, lle bo hynny’n briodol, ddadansoddiadau ansoddol a 
meintiol o effeithiau cymdeithasol, amgylcheddol ac economaidd. Bydd y canllawiau 
drafft yn barod erbyn diwedd 2015 a bwriedir ymgynghori yn eu cylch yn ystod 2016. 

Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus / Public Accounts Committee 
PAC(4)-22-15 P2

Tudalen y pecyn 90

Eitem 4



2 
 

 
 
Argymhelliad 4  

Mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell bod Llywodraeth Cymru yn cynnal adolygiad i ddeall y 
ffactorau sy'n arwain at orwario ar brosiectau gwerth is ac yn ystyried a all Cynnwys 
Contractwr ar Gam Cynnar, neu egwyddorion y model hwn, wella perfformiad 
prosiectau sy'n werth llai na £18 miliwn.  
 
Derbyniwyd. Bydd Llywodraeth Cymru yn cynnal adolygiad llawn o gontractau 
adeiladu is eu gwerth er mwyn ystyried cyfleoedd i wneud y defnydd gorau posibl o 
egwyddorion Cynnwys Contractwr ar Gam Cynnar. Caiff yr adolygiad hwnnw ei 
gwblhau erbyn diwedd 2015 a, lle bo hynny’n briodol, bydd y canllawiau ar 
weithdrefnau ffyrdd yn cael eu diweddaru. 
 
Argymhelliad 5  

Mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell bod Llywodraeth Cymru yn ymchwilio i bob llwybr posibl i 
wella ymgysylltiad ag ymgymerwyr statudol, gan gynnwys offer deddfwriaethol ac 
ymgysylltu ymhellach â Llywodraeth y Deyrnas Unedig. Rydym yn gofyn i 
Lywodraeth Cymru adrodd yn ôl i'r Pwyllgor yn ystod tymor yr hydref ar y cynnydd o 
ran ei gwaith yn y maes hwn.  
 

Derbyniwyd. Ymdrinnir â ffyrdd o fynd ati i gyflawni cynlluniau yn Neddf Ffyrdd 
Newydd a Gwaith Stryd 1991 a Deddf Rheoli Traffig 2004. Un o’r prif rwystrau sy’n 
llesteirio’r broses o gydgysylltu’n llwyddiannus yw methiant rhai o’r awdurdodau 
priffyrdd i gyhoeddi hysbysiadau am waith y maen nhw eu hunain yn ei wneud. Mae 
hwn yn fater yr ydym yn mynd i’r afael ag ef ac mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn annog 
pob awdurdod priffyrdd lleol i gyhoeddi hysbysiadau am waith y maen nhw eu hunain 
yn ei wneud. Nodir hynny yn y strategaeth ddrafft ar waith stryd. Bydd Llywodraeth 
Cymru yn ysgrifennu at bob awdurdod priffyrdd i’w gyfarwyddo i wneud hynny ac i 
gydymffurfio â’r Ddeddf Rheoli Traffig erbyn diwedd mis Medi. Mae unrhyw waith yn 
cael ei drafod yn y cyfarfodydd cydgysylltu rhanbarthol ac, at ei gilydd, mae niferoedd 
da yn bresennol yn y cyfarfodydd hynny. Bydd Llywodraeth Cymru yn ystyried ffyrdd 
eraill o wella’r modd y mae gwaith yn cael ei gydgysylltu, er enghraifft, gwefannau. 
Yn achos prosiectau mawr, mae gan y cyfleustodau gynlluniau 5 mlynedd ac maen 
nhw eisoes yn cyflwyno hysbysiadau blaengynllunio fel y bo’r cynlluniau hynny’n cael 
eu nodi yn y drefn gydgysylltu. Yn y dyfodol a lle y bo modd, bydd Llywodraeth 
Cymru yn cyflwyno hysbysiadau blaengynllunio er mwyn tynnu sylw’r cyfleustodau at 
gynlluniau arfaethedig. Bydd y pwyllgor yn cael adroddiad yn yr hydref am hynt y 
gwaith yn hyn o beth.   
 
Argymhelliad 6  

Rydym yn pryderu nad yw'r cydbwysedd presennol rhwng gwaith cynnal a chadw 
wedi'i gynllunio a gwaith cynnal a chadw adweithiol yn briodol, ac yn nodi sylwadau 
Asiant Cefnffyrdd De Cymru ynghylch effaith cyfyngiadau ariannol ar y dirywiad yng 
nghyflwr y rhwydwaith ffyrdd a'r ffaith bod nifer yr atgyweiriadau heb eu cynllunio yn 
arwain at ddefnydd aneffeithlon o adnoddau. Mae'r Pwyllgor yn 
argymell bod Llywodraeth Cymru yn nodi'n glir y rhesymau dros y dirywiad diweddar 
yn y rhwydwaith cefnffyrdd ac yn cyhoeddi cynllun i fynd i'r afael â'r materion hyn a 
gwrthdroi'r dirywiad hwn o fewn cyfnod penodol o amser.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 91



3 
 

Derbyniwyd. Mae swyddogion yn mynd ati’n barhaus i i fonitro cyflwr y rhwydwaith 
traffyrdd a chefnffyrdd, gan wneud hynny drwy raglen flynyddol o arolygon ac 
archwiliadau o’u cyflwr. Caiff y data hyn eu defnyddio i nodi pa rannau o’r rhwydwaith 
y mae angen gwneud gwaith cynnal a chadw arnynt ac i ganfod beth sydd wedi 
achosi iddynt ddirywio. Eir ati wedyn ar sail y data i ddatblygu blaenraglen waith er 
mwyn cyrraedd targed Llywodraeth Cymru o sicrhau nad oes angen gwneud gwaith 
cynnal a chadw ar fwy nag 8% o’r rhwydwaith. Mae’r rhaglen cynnal a chadw ar gyfer   
2015/16 yn mynd rhagddi ar hyn o bryd a bydd y rhaglen ar gyfer 2016/17 ar ei 
gwedd derfynol erbyn diwedd y flwyddyn ariannol. 
 
Argymhelliad  7  

Mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell, wrth baratoi'r cynllun a argymhellir uchod, y dylai 
Llywodraeth Cymru nodi'n glir sut y bydd yn cyflawni cydbwysedd effeithiol rhwng 
gwaith cynnal a chadw wedi'i gynllunio a gwaith cynnal a chadw adweithiol, a rhwng 
prosiectau mawr (ffyrdd newydd neu welliannau mawr) a gwaith cynnal a chadw ar 
gefnffyrdd presennol, yn y dyfodol.  
 
Derbyniwyd. Er mwyn cynorthwyo i nodi a blaenoriaethu gwelliannau i’r ffyrdd yn y 
dyfodol, byddwn yn nodi safonau gwasanaeth a pherfformiad ar gyfer y rhwydwaith 
cefnffyrdd a thraffyrdd, a hynny ar sail dull coridor, a byddwn yn datblygu maen prawf 
a fydd yn ystyried costau’r rhwydwaith ar hyd ei oed. Bydd y gwaith hwn yn cael ei 
gwblhau yn gynnar yn 2016. 
 
Argymhelliad 8  
Mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell bod Llywodraeth Cymru yn sicrhau cysondeb rhwng 
polisïau Asiantiaid Cefnffyrdd y Gogledd a'r De.  
 
Derbyniwyd. Mae swyddogion yn gweithio eisoes ar ddatblygu polisïau ar gyfer 
Cymru gyfan. Y prif nod yw paratoi dogfennau ar gyfer Cymru gyfan erbyn diwedd 
2016/17. Lle y bo hynny’n briodol, bydd amrywiadau lleol yn y dogfennau hynny er 
mwyn mynd i’r afael â materion penodol. Mae cytundebau lefel gwasanaeth ar gyfer 
Cymru gyfan yn cael eu paratoi er mwyn i’r asiantiaid cefnffyrdd eu defnyddio wrth 
gaffael gwasanaethau eu cyflenwyr. Bydd y cytundebau lefel gwasanaeth yn eu lle 
erbyn dechrau’r flwyddyn ariannol newydd. 
 
Argymhelliad 9  
Mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell y dylai Llywodraeth Cymru, fel rhan o'r adolygiad parhaus 
o Asiantiaid Cefnffyrdd, ystyried manteision ac anfanteision sefydlu un Asiant 
Cefnffyrdd ac a allai hyn ddarparu dull mwy cyson o gyflawni swyddogaethau ledled 
Cymru a gwell gwerth am arian.  
 
Derbyniwyd. Mae model cyflenwi ac ynddo un Asiant Cefnffyrdd yn un o’r opsiynau 
sy’n cael ei ystyried yn yr adolygiad sy’n cael ei gynnal ar hyn o bryd o’r Asiantiaid 
Cefnffyrdd. Bwriedir cyhoeddi canfyddiadau’r adolygiad hwnnw yn ystod hydref 2015. 
 
Argymhelliad 10  
Mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell bod atebolrwydd ar gyfer cynllunio a chyflawni mân 
gynlluniau gwella drwy Asiantiaid Cefnffyrdd a'u hawdurdod lleol a phartneriaid 
sefydliadol eraill yn cael ei egluro ac y rhoddir cyhoeddusrwydd i hynny er mwyn 
sicrhau bod y cyhoedd yn ei ddeall yn glir.  

Tudalen y pecyn 92



4 
 

 

Derbyniwyd. Bydd Llywodraeth Cymru yn darparu gwybodaeth ynghylch atebolrwydd 
am gynllunio a chyflawni mân gynlluniau gwella ar y cefnffyrdd. Bydd yr wybodaeth 
honno’n egluro cyfrifoldebau deddfwriaethol a chyfrifoldebau o ran dirprwyo, 
manylion cytundebau a threfniadau contractiol. Bydd yr wybodaeth honno ar gael 
erbyn diwedd 2015. 
 
Argymhelliad 11  
Mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell y dylid ystyried opsiynau ar gyfer cyfnodau cyllido tymor 
hwy i alluogi gwaith cynnal a chadw i gael ei gynllunio'n well fel rhan o'r adolygiad o 
Asiantau Cefnffyrdd. Dylai Llywodraeth Cymru fonitro effeithiolrwydd y cylchoedd 
cyllideb pum mlynedd a ddefnyddir i gyllido Highways England.  
 
Derbyniwyd. Bydd opsiynau ar gyfer cyfnodau cyllido hwy, ynghyd â monitro pa mor 
effeithiol yw’r model a ddefnyddir i gyllido Highways England, yn cael eu hystyried ar 
yr un pryd â’r Adolygiad o Asiantiaid Cefnffyrdd. Y nod fydd rhoi argymhellion interim 
ar waith o 2016/17 ymlaen. Bydd unrhyw argymhellion terfynol yn cael eu gweithredu 
o 2017/18 ymlaen ar ôl inni gael digon o amser i werthuso’r dull a ddefnyddir gan 
Highways England.               
 
Argymhelliad 12  

Mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell bod Llywodraeth Cymru yn ymchwilio i ddulliau cyllido 
eraill, gan gynnwys buddsoddiad preifat, mewn cynlluniau sy'n cynnig y defnydd o 
lonydd blaenoriaeth neu gludo nwyddau mewn ardaloedd lle ceir tagfeydd. Dylai 
unrhyw gynlluniau a ystyrir gan Lywodraeth Cymru fod yn amodol ar gynlluniau 
busnes cadarn, gan gynnwys dadansoddiad cost a budd llawn.  
 

Derbyniwyd. O ran cludo nwyddau, mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn awyddus i gludo mwy 
ar y rheilffyrdd ond mae’n cydnabod ar yr un pryd y bydd gan y ffyrdd rôl 
arwyddocaol o hyd o ran cludo nwyddau. Buddsoddir mewn prosiectau trafnidiaeth 
os bydd achos busnes cryf a chadarn ar eu cyfer a manteisir ar nifer o ffynonellau 
cyllid. Dyma’r ffynonellau sydd ar gael:  
• Cyllidebau cyfalaf a refeniw Adran Drafnidiaeth Llywodraeth Cymru  
• Cyfalaf canolog Llywodraeth Cymru ar gyfer Cynllun Buddsoddi yn Seilwaith Cymru  
• Cyllid ar y cyd ag Adran yr Economi yn ehangach neu fenthyca ehangach gan 
Lywodraeth Cymru, gan gynnwys cael benthyca’n gynnar  
• Cyllid arloesol (gan gynnwys y model buddsoddi nad yw’n dosbarthu elw (NPD)) 
• Y Cronfeydd Strwythurol Ewropeaidd 
• Y Rhaglen Datblygu Gwledig  
• Ffynonellau eraill o gyllid Ewropeaidd, cyllid llywodraeth leol neu gyllid gan gyrff 
eraill yn y sector cyhoeddus 
• Galluogi llywodraeth leol i fenthyca  
• Cyllid gan Lywodraeth y DU ar gyfer agweddau ar drafnidiaeth nad ydynt wedi’u 
datganoli, cynghorau ymchwil, prifysgolion, y Catapult trafnidiaeth ac eraill  
• Buddsoddiad gan y sector preifat, y Loteri Genedlaethol a ffynonellau eraill o gyllid  
• Incwm o dir neu ddatblygiadau masnachol. Bydd pa mor berthnasol yw’r amryfal 
ffynonellau posibl o gyllid yn amrywio gan ddibynnu ar natur y cynllun penodol. 
 
 
 

Tudalen y pecyn 93



5 
 

Argymhelliad 13  

Mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell bod ymateb Llywodraeth Cymru i'r adroddiad hwn yn 
nodi'n glir y camau sy'n weddill ar gyfer gweithredu offeryn rheoli gwybodaeth 
effeithiol ar gyfer prosiectau gwella cefnffyrdd, rheoli rhaglenni cynnal a chadw a 
monitro cyflwr y rhwydwaith. Dylai hyn gynnwys yr amserlen ar gyfer pob cam a'r 
dyddiad cau ar gyfer ei weithredu'n llawn.  
 

Derbyniwyd yn rhannol. Bydd Llywodraeth Cymru yn mynd ati i roi’r offeryn rheoli 
gwybodaeth y mae’n ei defnyddio ar hyn o bryd ar system rheoli gwybodaeth IRIS. 
Bydd yr offeryn hwnnw ar gael i’w dreialu a’i weithredu’n llawn ym mlwyddyn ariannol   
2016/2017. 
 
Argymhelliad 14  

Mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell bod Llywodraeth Cymru yn cynnal archwiliad o allu a 
chymhwysedd yn y diwydiant cyfan ar draws y sector preifat a'r sector cyhoeddus 
yng Nghymru ac yn amlinellu ei dull o fynd i'r afael ag unrhyw fylchau a nodwyd. 
 

Derbyniwyd. Bwriedir cynnal astudiaeth fanwl o gwmnïau adeiladu yng Nghymru er 
mwyn nodi unrhyw fylchau o ran sgiliau adeiladu. Bydd asesiad meintiol o allu’r 
sector ar draws pob un o’r crefftau sy’n rhan ohono yn cael ei gynnal er mwyn 
cymharu’r gallu sydd ar gael â’r prosiectau a gyhoeddwyd ar gyfer Cymru. Bydd 
offeryn rhagweld anghenion o ran llafur yn cael ei ddatblygu ar y cyd â Bwrdd 
Hyfforddi'r Diwydiant Adeiladu (CITB) ar gyfer seilwaith mawr sy’n gysylltiedig â 
thrafnidiaeth ac ynni. Diben Dyfodol Adeiladu Cymru yw gwella perfformiad cwmnïau 
adeiladu yng Nghymru a’u gwneud yn fwy cynaliadwy. Bydd yn mynd ati i nodi’r 
cwmnïau hynny sy’n gysylltiedig â phrosiectau mawr yng Nghymru ac yn eu 
cynorthwyo i ddatblygu eu gallu, eu capasiti a’u sylfaen sgiliau. Bydd modd cefnogi 
cyfleoedd i brentisiaid drwy Fwrdd Hyfforddi’r Diwydiant Adeiladu, sy’n bartner i 
Lywodraeth Cymru yn Dyfodol Adeiladu Cymru. Bydd y gwaith hwn wedi’i gwblhau 
erbyn haf 2016. 
 
Argymhelliad 15  
Mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell bod Llywodraeth Cymru yn datblygu modd o fonitro 
perfformiad ac adrodd ar berfformiad o ran cydgysylltu, cyfathrebu etc mewn 
perthynas â gwaith ffordd a rheoli digwyddiadau ar y ffyrdd er mwyn caniatáu i 
effeithiolrwydd y dull a fabwysiedir gael ei ddeall. Dylai hyn gynnwys adroddiadau 
rheolaidd ar nifer y cwynion a chyhoeddi data o'r fath yn gyhoeddus. 
 
Derbyniwyd. Mae llawer o’r data hyn yn cael eu casglu fel mater o drefn. Bydd 
swyddogion Llywodraeth Cymru yn gwneud argymhellion ynghylch cyhoeddi data ar 
ffurf a fydd yn addas ar gyfer y cyhoedd. Bydd y data hynny ar gael i’r cyhoedd. Bydd 
angen ychwanegu at y system er mwyn cyflunio’r data a bydd yr ychwanegiadau 
hynny’n cael eu dylunio eleni a’u gweithredu yn 2016/17. 
 
Argymhelliad 16  

Mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell bod Llywodraeth Cymru yn parhau i fonitro'r sgriniau sy'n 
cael eu treialu ar dollfeydd yr M4 hyd Cyffordd 35, er mwyn cadw integredd 
safleoedd damweiniau ac atal gyrwyr rhag ceisio gweld canlyniad damwain traffig ac 
adrodd yn ôl i'r Pwyllgor ar ei llwyddiant.  
 

Tudalen y pecyn 94



6 
 

Derbyniwyd. Bydd y gwaith treialu’n parhau. Ers i’r gwaith treialu ddechrau, ni 
chafwyd unrhyw ddigwyddiadau lle byddai defnyddio’r sgriniau wedi bod yn fuddiol.  
Bwriedir treialu set o sgriniau ar yr A55 hefyd. Mae’r sgriniau ar gyfer y gwaith treialu 
hwnnw ar fenthyg oddi wrth Highways England ac felly, mae pa mor hir y bydd y 
gwaith treialu’n parhau yn dibynnu ar barhau i gael benthyg y sgriniau. Mae 
swyddogion yn rhagweld y bydd y gwaith treialu’n parhau am 3 mlynedd fel y bo 
modd casglu digon o ddata ynghylch sawl gwaith y bydd y sgriniau wedi cael eu 
defnyddio. Bydd adroddiad yn cael ei anfon at y pwyllgor ar ddiwedd pob blwyddyn 
ariannol.  
 
Argymhelliad 17  

Mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell bod Llywodraeth Cymru yn ymgysylltu â defnyddwyr 
ffyrdd a'r sefydliadau sy'n eu cynrychioli i ddeall yn well y pryderon am gyfathrebu a 
chydgysylltu gwaith ffordd lleol a rheoli digwyddiadau.  
 
Derbyniwyd. Bydd Llywodraeth Cymru yn ymgysylltu mwy â sefydliadau sy’n 
cynrychioli defnyddwyr y ffyrdd. Byddwn hefyd yn edrych ar rôl Transport Focus yn 
Lloegr ac yn monitro’i ganlyniadau, gan roi’r canlyniadau hynny ar waith fel y bo’n 
briodol, erbyn diwedd y flwyddyn ariannol bresennol. 
 
Argymhelliad 18  

Mae'r Pwyllgor yn argymell bod Llywodraeth Cymru yn gwella ei chyfathrebu a'r 
ffordd y mae'n cydgysylltu â Highways England ynghylch gwaith ffordd a chynlluniau 
sy'n cael effaith ar ddwy ochr y ffin ac yn sicrhau bod gwybodaeth ar gael i'r cyhoedd. 
 
Derbyniwyd. Bydd swyddogion Llywodraeth Cymru yn datblygu’r berthynas sy’n 
bodoli eisoes rhyngddi hi a’r Adran Drafnidiaeth a Highways England er mwyn 
sicrhau bod fframwaith cyfathrebu effeithiol ar gyfer cydgysylltu materion trawsffiniol 
yn ymwneud â thrafnidiaeth. Bydd y berthynas honno’n cael ei datblygu drwy 
fforymau sy’n bodoli eisoes lle nad yw Llywodraeth Cymru wedi llwyddo i fod yn 
bresennol yn aml yn ddiweddar. Bydd swyddogion yn sicrhau eu bod yn bresennol 
mewn cyfarfodydd trawsffiniol ar gyfer ardaloedd penodol ac mewn cyfarfodydd i 
drafod cynlluniau penodol. Bydd unrhyw wybodaeth ar gael i’r cyhoedd. 

Tudalen y pecyn 95



 

Ffôn Uniongyrchol:  029 2032 0510  E-bost:  huw.vaughan.thomas@archwilio.cymru 

Mr Darren Millar AC 
Cadeirydd y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus 
Cynulliad Cenedlaethol Cymru  
Bae Caerdydd 
Caerdydd  CF99 1NA 
 

 Dyddiad: 4 Medi 2015 
 Ein cyf: HVT/2382/fgb 
 Tudalen: 1 o 4 

 
Annwyl Darren, 

GWERTH AM ARIAN Y BUDDSODDIAD MEWN TRAFFYRDD A CHEFNFFYRDD - YMATEB 

LLYWODRAETH CYMRU 

Roedd llythyr y Dirprwy Glerc dyddiedig 25 Awst yn gofyn am fy nghyngor ar ymateb 
Llywodraeth Cymru i adroddiad y Pwyllgor ar Fuddsoddi mewn Traffyrdd a Chefnffyrdd, a 
gyhoeddwyd ym mis Mehefin 2015. 

Mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi dynodi ei bod yn derbyn 17 allan o 18 argymhelliad y 
Pwyllgor, gan dderbyn yr argymhelliad sy’n weddill yn rhannol. Yn gyffredinol, credaf fod 
Llywodraeth Cymru wedi ymateb yn foddhaol i’r argymhellion. Fodd bynnag, rwyf wedi 
tynnu sylw isod at rai meysydd ble gallai’r Pwyllgor geisio rhagor o wybodaeth o bosib, 
neu esboniad. 

Argymhelliad 3: Mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn derbyn yr argymhelliad hwn ond efallai y 
bydd y Pwyllgor yn dymuno ystyried a yw lefel y manylion sydd wedi’u rhoi’n bodloni ei 
ddisgwyliadau. Er enghraifft, gallai Llywodraeth Cymru fod wedi cynnwys ymrwymiad 
mwy penodol o ran yr amserlen ar gyfer cwblhau proses ymgynghori WelTAG ac wedyn 
nodi pryd yn union y byddai’n disgwyl cyhoeddi a gweithredu’r canllawiau adolygedig. 

Argymhelliad 4: Derbyniodd Llywodraeth Cymru yr argymhelliad hwn ac efallai y bydd y 
Pwyllgor yn dymuno gwneud cais am ddiweddariad ar ganlyniad yr adolygiad o 
gontractau gwerth is, er mwyn ymchwilio i gyfleoedd ar gyfer defnydd optimwm o’r 
egwyddor ECI yn gynnar yn 2016. 

Argymhelliad 5: Mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn derbyn yr argymhelliad hwn. Fodd bynnag, 
nododd adroddiad y Pwyllgor ei fod yn bryderus am raddfa datblygiad strategaeth gwaith 
stryd Llywodraeth Cymru ac nid yw’r ymateb yn rhoi diweddariad penodol yn y cyswllt 
hwnnw. Mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi dweud yn ei thystiolaeth flaenorol i’r Pwyllgor y 
byddai’r strategaeth yn cael ei chyhoeddi yn 2015. Mae i ba raddau y mae’r strategaeth 
gwaith stryd ddrafft yn rhoi sylw i faterion perthnasol i brosiectau mawr y rhwydwaith 
cefnffyrdd, yn hytrach na’r gwaith priffyrdd lleol, yn parhau’n aneglur. 

Y Pwyllgor Cyfrifon Cyhoeddus / Public Accounts Committee 
PAC(4)-22-15 P3

Tudalen y pecyn 96



 Dyddiad: 4 Medi 2015 
 Ein cyf: HVT/2382/fgb 
 Tudalen: 2 o 4 

 

Mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi addo diweddariad pellach yn yr hydref ac efallai y bydd y 
Pwyllgor eisiau gofyn am ragor o fanylion am y pwyntiau penodol hyn fel rhan o’r 
diweddariad hwnnw, os na fydd y strategaeth gwaith stryd wedi’i chyhoeddi eisoes erbyn 
hynny.  

Argymhelliad 6: Mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn derbyn yr argymhelliad hwn ac mae ganddi 
raglen yn ei lle i fonitro cyflwr y rhwydwaith o draffyrdd a chefnffyrdd. Fodd bynnag, 
efallai y bydd y Pwyllgor yn dymuno gofyn i Lywodraeth Cymru am ragor o fanylion am y 
rhesymau dros ddirywiad y rhwydwaith o draffyrdd a chefnffyrdd, a chadarnhau ei 
ddisgwyliadau o ran cyhoeddi cynlluniau Llywodraeth Cymru i wella cyflwr y rhwydwaith, 
er enghraifft, mewn perthynas â’r rhaglen waith flynyddol. 

Nid yw Llywodraeth Cymru wedi cyrraedd y targed a ddatganwyd ganddi o ddim mwy 
nag wyth y cant o hyd y rhwydwaith angen gwaith cynnal a chadw ers 2010. I esbonio, 
rwyf yn deall bod adran o gefnffordd yn cael ei chofrestru ar gyfer y dangosydd hwn pan 
gredir - yn seiliedig ar gyfrif gallu strwythurol y ffordd a’r oes sydd ganddi’n weddill - bod 
angen cynnal ymchwiliad i benderfynu a oes angen gwneud gwaith cynnal a chadw ai 
peidio. Yn y Bwletin Ystadegol ar Hyd a Chyflwr Ffyrdd, 2014 - y bwletin diweddaraf o’i 
fath i gael ei gyhoeddi, adroddwyd ar gyfer 2013 bod 14.3 y cant o’r rhwydwaith yn 
perthyn i’r categori hwn. Fodd bynnag, mae’r wybodaeth berthnasol i'r Rhaglen 
Lywodraethu ar wefan Llywodraeth Cymru yn cynnwys ffigur diweddarach ar gyfer 2014, 
sef 10.2 y cant. Nid yw’r naill ffynhonnell na’r llall yn nodi’r targed o wyth y cant yn ôl yr 
hyn a welir. 

Mae adroddiad y Rhaglen Lywodraethu’n nodi bod canran y cefnffyrdd sydd angen eu 
cynnal a’u cadw, o’u hystyried ar y cyd â nifer y diffygion categori 1, yn dynodi 
perfformiad Llywodraeth Cymru o ran cynnal a chadw integrit’r rhwydwaith o draffyrdd a 
chefnffyrdd yng Nghymru. Diffygion categori 1 yw’r rhai sy’n beryglus, neu’n gallu bod yn 
beryglus, ac sydd felly angen sylw ar unwaith. Nid yw nifer y diffygion o’r fath yn cael eu 
cofnodi fel ystadegau swyddogol, ond maent yn seiliedig ar wybodaeth am reolaeth 
adrannol. Dim ond blynyddoedd calendr 2011-2013 sy’n rhan o’r wybodaeth sydd wedi'i 
chyhoeddi ar wefan Llywodraeth Cymru ond mae’n dynodi bod tua 12,100 o ddiffygion o’r 
fath wedi’u datgan yn ystod deunaw mis cyntaf y cyfnod hwnnw, o gymharu â thua 
18,000 yn yr ail ddeunaw mis. 

Argymhelliad 7: Mae Llywodraeth Cymru yn derbyn yr argymhelliad hwn ond nid yw’n 
glir sut yn union y bydd y cam gweithredu arfaethedig yn rhoi sylw i argymhelliad y 
Pwyllgor a’r flaenoriaeth yn y dyfodol i wariant, yn enwedig mewn perthynas â sicrhau 
cydbwysedd yn y buddsoddiad rhwng prosiectau mawr a chynnal a chadw’r rhwydwaith 
presennol o gefnffyrdd. 

Tudalen y pecyn 97

http://gov.wales/docs/statistics/2014/141210-road-lengths-conditions-2014-en.pdf
http://gov.wales/about/programmeforgov/data?code=OU009&lang=cy
http://gov.wales/about/programmeforgov/data?code=OU009&lang=cy
http://gov.wales/about/programmeforgov/data?code=TR018&lang=cy
http://gov.wales/about/programmeforgov/data?code=TR018&lang=cy


 Dyddiad: 4 Medi 2015 
 Ein cyf: HVT/2382/fgb 
 Tudalen: 3 o 4 

 

Fodd bynnag, yn hytrach na cheisio rhagor o dystiolaeth ei hun, gallai’r Pwyllgor ystyried 
cyfeirio ymateb Llywodraeth Cymru i’r argymhelliad hwn i sylw’r Pwyllgor Menter a 
Busnes, i’w ystyried fel rhan o graffu ar y gyllideb yn y dyfodol.  

Argymhelliad 13: Derbyniodd Llywodraeth Cymru yr argymhelliad hwn yn rhannol ond 
efallai y bydd y Pwyllgor eisiau esboniad ynghylch hyn. Nid yw’n ymddangos bod 
manylion yr ymateb yn rhoi sylw i ddyhead y Pwyllgor i ddatgan yn glir y camau sy’n 
weddill ar gyfer gweithredu adnodd rheoli gwybodaeth effeithiol. Rwyf yn cymryd yn 
ganiataol bod derbyn yr argymhelliad hwn yn rhannol yn adlewyrchu’r ffaith nad yw 
Llywodraeth Cymru yn gwybod eto, heb arbrawf pellach, a fydd yn ymarferol defnyddio 
system IRIS i reoli gwybodaeth am brosiectau mawr. 

Argymhelliad 14: Mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi derbyn yr argymhelliad hwn ac wedi 
ymrwymo i astudiaeth o allu a chymhwysedd y sector adeiladu, yn ogystal â gwneud 
defnydd o waith parhaus gan ‘Dyfodol Adeiladu Cymru’ a Bwrdd Hyfforddi’r Diwydiant 
Adeiladu. Bydd y gwaith hwn yn cynnwys datblygu adnodd rhagdybio llafur ar gyfer 
seilwaith trafnidiaeth mawr. Ceir amrywiaeth o sgiliau arbenigol eraill (heb fod yn 
adeiladu) y mae eu hangen ar gyfer prosiectau mawr ac i gynnal a chadw’r rhwydwaith o 
draffyrdd a chefnffyrdd, fel peirianneg sifil, ymgynghori ar gost, ac ymgynghori 
amgylcheddol. Efallai y bydd y Pwyllgor yn dymuno cadarnhau bod y gwaith a ddisgrifir 
yn cynnwys yr amrywiaeth lawn o sgiliau cysylltiedig. 

Hefyd, nid yw’n glir oddi wrth yr ymateb a fyddai’r gwaith a ddisgrifir yn ystyried persbectif 
y sector cyhoeddus y cyfeiriodd y Pwyllgor ato yn ei argymhelliad, gan ystyried y math o 
archwiliad gallu a chymhwysedd yr oedd y Pwyllgor yn ei ystyried yn seiliedig ar y 
dystiolaeth a glywodd gan yr Athro Smith. 

Argymhelliad 16: Derbyniodd Llywodraeth Cymru yr argymhelliad hwn.  Fodd bynnag, 
efallai y bydd y Pwyllgor yn dymuno ystyried a oes angen derbyn adroddiad gan 
Lywodraeth Cymru ar ddiwedd pob blwyddyn ariannol ar y defnydd o sgriniau ar yr M4. 
Efallai y bydd yn ddigonol i’r Pwyllgor yn y pumed Cynulliad dderbyn un diweddariad yn 
unig, yn sgil casgliad y cyfnod prawf disgwyliedig o dair blynedd. 

Argymhelliad 17: Mae Llywodraeth Cymru wedi derbyn yr argymhelliad hwn.  Fodd 
bynnag, efallai y bydd y Pwyllgor yn dymuno cael rhagor o fanylion am sut bydd 
Llywodraeth Cymru yn ymgysylltu ymhellach â defnyddwyr ffyrdd. Hefyd, efallai y bydd y 
Pwyllgor eisiau esboniad ynghylch a yw ymateb Llywodraeth Cymru’n awgrymu ei bod yn 
ystyried sefydlu trefniadau i efelychu gwaith Transport Focus (Passenger Focus gynt) yn 
Lloegr. Yn ychwanegol at gynrychioli teithwyr ar drafnidiaeth gyhoeddus, mae Transport 
Focus erbyn hyn yn cynrychioli defnyddwyr y Rhwydwaith o Ffyrdd Strategol yn Lloegr yn 
unig. 

Tudalen y pecyn 98



 Dyddiad: 4 Medi 2015 
 Ein cyf: HVT/2382/fgb 
 Tudalen: 4 o 4 

 

Argymhelliad 18: Derbyniodd Llywodraeth Cymru yr argymhelliad hwn. Mae 
Llywodraeth Cymru eisiau datblygu ei pherthynas gyda Highways England a cheir 
fforymau ar hyn o bryd ar gyfer gwella hyn. Fodd bynnag, nodir bod presenoldeb 
Llywodraeth Cymru yn y fforymau hyn wedi bod yn gyfyngedig yn ddiweddar ac efallai y 
bydd y Pwyllgor eisiau cael gwybod beth yw’r rheswm dros hyn, pa fath o bynciau a 
drafodir a pha wybodaeth a gyflwynir i’r cyhoedd. 

Gobeithio bod y cyngor hwn o gymorth i’r Pwyllgor. 

Yn gywir, 

 
HUW VAUGHAN THOMAS 
ARCHWILYDD CYFFREDINOL CYMRU  

 

Tudalen y pecyn 99


	Agenda
	2 Papurau i’w nodi
	2.1 Buddsoddiad Llywodraeth Cymru yn Isadeiledd Band Eang y Genhedlaeth Nesaf: Llythyr gan Llywodraeth Cymru (17 Gorffennaf 2015)
	2.2 Fframwaith Cenedlaethol ar gyfer Gofal Iechyd : Llythyr gan Llywodraeth Cymru (21 Gorffennaf2015)
	2.3 Glastir: Llythyr gan Llywodraeth Cymru (31 Gorffennaf 2015)
	2.4 Gofal heb ei drefnu: Llythyr gan Llywodraeth Cymru (7 Awst 2015)
	2.5 Trefniadau Llywodraethu Bwrdd Iechyd Prifysgol Betsi Cadwaladr: Llythyr gan Llywodraeth Cymru (1 Medi 2015)
	3 Adroddiad Blynyddol y Bwrdd Cynghori ar Adroddiadau Ariannol 2014-2015
	FRAB Report.pdf
	Cover - 18th Report of the Financial Reporting Advisory Board - HC 304
	Title page HC 304
	Crown copyright 2015
	Chairman’s Foreword
	Executive Summary
	Contents
	Chapter 1
	INTRODUCTION
	Background to the Financial Reporting Advisory Board
	Background to the FRAB Report
	Report structure
	Changes to accounting guidance
	Board activities



	Chapter 2
	CHANGES TO ACCOUNTING GUIDANCE IN 2014-15
	Introduction
	The 2014-15 Financial Reporting Manual (FReM)
	Table 1

	Proposed 2015-16 Financial Reporting Manual (FReM)
	The NHS Manual for Accounts 2014-15 and Foundation Trust Annual Reporting Manual 2014-15
	The 2015-16 Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting


	Chapter 3
	BOARD ACTIVITIES IN 2014-15
	Introduction
	Table 2
	Table 3



	Back cover with ISBN


	4 Ymchwiliad i werth am arian Buddsoddi mewn Traffyrdd a Chefnffyrdd: Ystyried ymateb Llywodraeth Cymru
	PAC(4)-22-15 P3 - Ymateb ACC i Lywodraeth Cymru




